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(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

Year ended December 31

Total revenue
Finance costs, net

Profit/(loss) before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

As at December 31

Current assets
Property,plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments in joint ventures
Investments in associates
Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Restricted cash

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

A
MHEM > HH

FRBr3BLRT R, (Bt
FAEBE (B /i
RAER AR TTER

AR/ (k)

B B

A - TR
T B
AELERE
Badxag
EEMAHER
W E SR EE

T e R
SRk

ZIRAIBL 5

BEAH

B A
i R

B A

i

3,485,616
(279,510)

837,037
(295,765)

541,272

1,301,484
6,632,652
603,898
181,636

3,966

178,817
9,687

8,912,140

1,537,565
3,910,392

5,447,957

3,464,183

(T BB UNRK T TR EAL)

BE+-A=+—HILEE

2013 2014
e L L
3,256,061 2,982,909
(345,553) (481,327)
454,867 236,712
(175,083) (214,163)
279,784 22,549
e
2013 2014
“F-= e Siiks
1,186,539 1,650,635
7,160,160 6,629,673
544,469 494,552
273,348 499,284
40,783 20,538
50,422 75,541
34,941 210,389
11,884 12,955
9,302,546 9,593,567
1,555,604 1,345,118
4,042,512 4,683,938
5,598,116 6,029,056
3,704,430 3,564,511

2016 F iR

2015

ZE T4
Re-presented
gy
Note 2.1.1
W5t 2.1.1

722,185
(421,774)

(1,467,259)
121,118

(179,147)

(1,525,288)

2015
S K 2
Re-presented
EHET
Note 2.1.1
W3t 2.1.1

1,033,667
5,633,576
359,595
505,994
23,795
27,105

497,878
8,495

8,090,105

1,191,754
4,687,355

5,879,109

2,210,996

2016
e

534,974
(386,461)

(457,981)
(147,166)

(717,086)

(1,322,233)

2016
ZEAE

2,260,010
2,407,958
8,849

246,667
40,590

63,330

820,224

5,847,628

479,915
4,727,926

5,207,841

639,787



Properties Held by Subsidiaries [ft &2 5 fi 5 & &

Sales volume

Crude oil (millions of barrels)

China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
Export sales
Domestic sales
USA oilfields
Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields
Net annual production

volume

Crude oil (millions of
barrels)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Average daily net crude oil

production

Crude oil (barrels)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Gas (MMscf)

Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Mg
Je ik (B A )
o g it
I T LTI
HOaeE
EE L=
M (Condor)
RAR
(HE R HER)
A i o AT 3
M (Condor)
FERER

b (P A )

o [ {1l E
TR SE T
%8 (Condor)
PR3

G GESYEIN)
WA TE SE T
% [# (Condor)

H - 353 5 i 2

J& 3 (A

[ {1t EH

W& 2 SR

2 (Condor)
RBK

CE GCESYEIN)

A& 2 S 4R

F 1 (Condor)

5.1
4.08
1.01
0.90
0.1
0.01

1,526.43
1,526.43

5.23
4.20
1.02
0.01

1,624.70
1,624.70

14,303
11,487
2,787
29

4.5
4.50
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Year ended December 31

BET A=t —HBULEE

2013
—z—=

5.38
3.77
1.56
1.28
0.28
0.05

1,698.50
1,661.58
36.92

5.36
3.73
1.58
0.05

1,929.72
1,812.44
117.28

14,673
10,208
4,320
145

5.30
5.00
0.30

2014
= ki

5.58
3.67
1.88
1.44
0.44
0.03

2,014.34
1,954.38
59.96

5.569
3.66
1.90
0.03

2,222.90
2,146.48
76.42

15,326
10,033
5,201
92

6.09
5.88
0.21

2015
ZE T

3.65
2.44
1.09
0.96
0.13
0.02

2,021.27
2,001.15
20.12

3.7
2.44
1.25
0.02

2,190.61
2,150.78
39.83

10,153
6,687
3,412

54

6.00
5.89
0.1

2016
“ER

3.24
2.12
1.10
0.95
0.15
0.02

1,717.70
1,703.72
13.98

3.27
2.15
1.1
0.01

1,899.18
1,875.30
23.88

9,241
5,872
3,328

41

5.67
5.60
0.07



Year ended December 31

BET A=t —HBULEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
CR-THE ZE-SE ZE-NE DR ZR-A
Average realized price - 35 B BLE A%
Crude oil (US$ per barrel of  J§iith (35T, 45 4 )5 i)
crude oil) 108.1 97.06 86.15 45.79 36.74
China oilfields P8 i 113.51 104.35 97.89 46.65 36.73
Kazakhstan oilfields WA T e e 86.14 79.64 63.34 43.95 34.85
Export sales HHsHE 90.35 87.80 70.63 48.41 38.39
Domestic sales N & 50.65 41.57 39.68 12.02 13.25
USA oilfields % (Condor) 84.89 90.30 83.11 40.68 37.77
Gas (US$ per MMscf) RBR(FEL,/
FRELHER) 1.17 1.44 1.27 1.03 0.83
Kazakhstan oilfields AR it ie 1.17 1.34 1.14 0.95 0.78
USA oilfields [ (Condor) - 6.10 6.44 2.61 2.30
Lifting costs (US$ per M A (58,
barrel of crude oil)(Note 3) AR ) (177 3) 8.35 9.34 9.46 7.52 8.31
China oilfields r I8 9 8.60 11.08 11.83 9.49 8.31
Kazakhstan oilfields WA T et ie 7.32 5.18 4.85 3.66 2.25
Cash net-back (US$ per B &R (%8,
barrel of crude oil) 540 I )
China oilfields r B il 82.64 74.22 69.62 35.56 26.94
Kazakhstan oilfields WS T ve e 42.80 41.37 29.14 10.94 14.26
Export sales HHsHE 43.88 43.42 28.52 12.40 14.80
Domestic sales B A B 37.61 31.97 31.81 5.11 9.25
Wells drilled during FEREIF (%)
the year (Gross) 442 14 157 3 -
China oilfields o 1 i 431 102 151 - =
Successful T 431 102 151 =
Dry Wt - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields W I v T4 8 10 6 3 2
Successful T R 8 10 6 3 2
Dry LiZa - - - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 3 2 - - =
Successful B R 3 2 - - =
Dry w3 - - - - -

BFFET - Emir Ol JUH B2 KSR SR 85 B AR A= B JRA (L3
TE G PFER G AR RN AR AL BB TR R

Note 1: Revenue from crude oil & gas produced by Emir Oil and relevant operating
expenses were included in loss for the year from discontinued operations of
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

W B e P MR R R I A T R R 11 1E A
M o

Note 2: Kazakhstan's data contains only the first 11 months of our subsidiary. Mtat2 -

PR A L4 A A A i 2 A T R
ot A 7 AR N %2 2 - BT AT - BT R B AL
BH S DA B A8 2 T 4 S R LR TE I o SRR R %
A AR I JE — AT il Y B R

Note 3: Lifting cost includes directly controllable costs to produce a barrel of oil. M3 -
Other production costs such as safety fee, environment expenses, technical
& research expenses and overhead have not been included above since they

are not directly attributable to the production of a barrel of oil.

2016 F iR



Crude Oil Reserves (thousands
of barrels)

Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Total proved+probable
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Total proved+probable+possible
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Equity-accounted entities
(MIE share)

Total proved
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable+possible
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved
Total proved+probable
Total proved+probable+possible

J&k il i 2 ()

18§ 23 w4 B

TR 2 M
3 1
I T FLHTIR
[ (Condor)

PR S
w3y H
I T FLHTIR
[ (Condor)

PRWD ~ B30 vl ok AR
w3y H
I FLHTIR
[ (Condor)

TRl s A\ e 1 1 19T £ I
(K BRER#5)

U
A T e 7 3H
Journey HH
B PG AL (=2 B B L)
F B (White Hawk)

FW RS R
A T e 7 3H
Journey HH
B PG A (=2t B B L)
F B (White Hawk)

TR0~ WESE R VT R ok B A
I T FLHTIR
Journey HH
FR L (=5 R B L)
S (White Hawk)

R ot 2 A
R 1] SLABE ok 22 AL
PRI~ BET T e o AR
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51,328
23,455
26,111

1,762

113,726
36,154
74,212

3,360

168,494
50,643
112,988
4,863

139

139

153

153

175

175

51,467
113,879
168,669

Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+T—HILEE

2013 2014 2015
SRS ZER-NE —F-TF
54,177 48,742 45,163
20,409 14,495 12,440
32,497 33,799 32,525
1,271 448 198
126,107 124,725 120,975
35,998 25,832 24,416
87,374 97,864 96,150
2,735 1,029 409
183,991 171,189 160,404
51,617 36,248 34,088
128,547 130,203 124,952
3,827 4,738 1,364
54,177 48,742 45,163
126,107 124,725 120,975
183,991 171,189 160,404

2016
=

10,668
10,552

116

19,557
18,893

664

28,319
26,487

1,832

18,479
12,611
5,868

42,544
32,457
10,087

50,541
40,454
10,087

29,147
62,101
78,860



Gas Reserves (millions of SCF)

Subsidiaries

Total proved
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Total proved+probable
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Total proved+probable+possible
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Equity-accounted entities
(MIE share)

Total proved
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved+probable+possible
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total proved
Total proved+probable
Total proved+probable+possible

KRR B
(AT %R)

185 23 w4 B

O
A (2 i
A T 5 T 3H
[ (Condor)

O R
[ 51k
WA TiE 7% 73R
28 (Condor)

TR~ W R VT ok B B
o [ 3
WA TL I
2 (Condor)

el s A\ e 1Y 2 12T £ 4
(KL MR #5)

R W i B 4
A T 5e B73H
JourneyJEH
B FEL (=22 4k R Jif Bt )
B (White Hawk)

5 WY SR 5 ok A
e e T3
JourneyJHH
B P L (=22t K B L)
%[ (White Hawk)

RO~ B R v R G A
W& T 5 T 3H
JourneyJEH
A P L (=226 K B L)
B (White Hawk)

TR o B A
R W) S RRE ol A
R0~ W T e B AR

31,402
28,478
2,924

79,543
73,967
5,576

130,043

121,974
8,069

33,352

33,150
202

97,634

97,410
224

207,316

207,060
256

64,754
177,177
337,359

Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+T—HILEE

2013 2014 2015
SRS ZER-NE —F-TF
40,178 44,147 36,262
- 65 43
37,541 43,232 36,006
2,637 850 213
96,090 97,249 93,050
- 125 129
90,416 95,111 92,380
5,674 2,013 541
140,592 131,880 122,081
- 226 237
132,653 122,219 120,438
7,939 9,435 1,406
134,069 364,140 375,870
134,069 364,140 375,870
302,582 466,650 574,260
302,582 466,650 574,260
499,321 579,870 781,830
499,321 579,870 781,830
174,247 408,287 412,132
398,672 563,899 667,310
639,913 711,750 903,911

2016 F iR

2016
=

155
62

93

1,356
187

1,169

3,829
352

3,477

46,696
14,373
32,323

76,408
29,773
46,635

84,016
37,381
46,635

46,851
77,764
87,845



Crude Oil Resources (thousands
of barrels)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Contingent Resources, C2
(mid case)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Equity-accounted entities
(MIE share)

Prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked

Total contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)

A B R (T4i)

G 23 w4 B

ERpEREHE
(B A HE)
g 1k
I ST
[ (Condor)

gH W (2C, P 1E)

H R 3
WA TE 7 TR
2 (Condor)

TRl A\ e 1 5 19T £ I
(LB e 8 7 )

ERpERERE
(B A HE)
A T S 48
JourneyJHH
HE AL (=2t R )
B (White Hawk)

g B (2C, P 1)

WA T 5 BT 3H
JourneyJ& H

R P (=280 K )
B (White Hawk)

R bR R E IR AR
(3 Al st )
g B IR (2C, W i)
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205,811
21,224
184,587

43,140
8,631
33,746
763

205,811

43,140

Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+T—HILEE

=g

205,577
20,990
184,587

9,219
8,456

763

205,577

9,219

2014
TR

245,113
22,176
222,937

11,494
10,190

1,304

245,113

11,494

2015
ZF A

275,337
19,598
255,739

12,508
10,798

1,710

275,337

12,508

2016
=

19,287
19,287

10,085
9,797

288

101,473
101,473

120,760

10,085



Gas Resources (millions of SCF)

Subsidiaries

Prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Contingent Resources, C2
(mid case)
China oilfields
Kazakhstan oilfields
USA oilfields

Equity-accounted entities
(MIE share)

Prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)
Kazakhstan oilfields
Journey Energy
Sino Gas & Energy
White Hawk

Total prospective Resources,
Best Estimate, Unrisked

Total contingent Resources, 2C
(mid case)

ABREWFR
(AL ER)

G 23 w4 B

ERpEREHE
(B A HE)
g 1
I ST
[ (Condor)

g B (2C, P 1E)

H R iy
WA TE 7 7R
28 (Condor)

TRl A\ e 1 5 19T £ I
(LB e 8 7 )

ERpEREHE
(B A HE)
A T S 4
JourneyJHH
HE L (=2t R )
B (White Hawk)

g B (2C, P {E)

WA T 5 BT 3H
JourneyJ& H

R PG (=28 K )
B (White Hawk)

R B R E R R AR
(dg st )
g B IR (2C, W i)

6,589

5,063
1,526

921,570

921,570

679,358

679,358

921,570

685,947

Year ended December 31

BETZA=Z+T—HILEE

2013 2014 2015

“EF S ZE-NE ZFE
1,583 3,260 3,300
1,583 3,260 3,300
1,064,740 675,750 762,450
1,064,740 675,750 762,450
884,406 680,850 758,880
884,406 680,850 758,880
1,064,740 675,750 762,450
885,989 684,110 762,180

2016 F iR

2016
=

676

676

676






Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of MIE Holdings
Corporation (“MIE"” or the “Company”, together with the
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016 (“FY2016").

During FY2016, the Group’s average realized oil price was
US$36.74/barrel (“bbl”), a record low in the past decade. Despite
oil prices dropping from a high of over US$140/barrel to less than
US$40/barrel during the 2008 subprime mortgage crisis, the
Group’s FY2009 average realized oil price was still US$58.58/
barrel, signifying the severe market environment and
unprecedented challenges the Group faced. Faced with such a
challenging environment, the Group’s main focus in FY2016
revolved around “cash”. Our first focus was to sell certain projects
that were not expected to contribute cashflow in the near future so
as to raise valuable cash for the Group during this depressed
market environment. In July 2016, the Group completed the sale
of 100% equity interest in Asia Gas & Energy Ltd. (“AGE”) (holding
company for 51% equity interest in Sino Gas & Energy Limited
(“SGE")) and received a consideration of approximately US$208
million. In November 2016, the Group completed the sale of 60%
of Palaeontol B.V. (“PBV"”) (holding company for 100% equity
interest in Kazakhstan Emir-Qil LLP) to Malaysia listed company
Reach Energy Berhad (“REB”) for a consideration of approximately
US$176 million, of which the Group has received around US$132
million. Secondly, in the Company’s mature projects such as China
Daan project and Moliging project, full efforts were made to
control cost and stabilize the natural decline in old wells so as to
generate higher operating cashflow for the Group. In FY2016, the

'
B
o2

B L AR R

ANGEARRMIREIREE BT BRA 7 (LU iR M
REVRIZE I ) B3 [ A R] |- BUH 70 /] 3 [ 4R
MESFG(EHGDREALEHEE —F
AN A= B IR EAT o

TENAERE > ARSE [T B EIAE A R
A 36.74%T0, M > Al T E 0B LK
TEE A ER AR A TR R o e R R
MEE — R 140 5T,/ MK FTBE
ANIEA0FETT > B EEFEALEEM
SF- 2 HR AR % A 58.58 50T Hil - ML BB
Wk 5 7 4 190 JIT T B 179 f U6 i 5 B R BT R A
FOPREY o B AN RN
AEEMPTEETHEUIRE | BES 27
RRMTIEE S B T S K% ) B4
N REAE AT 0T TR0 B JRR B 4 O 04 T DA S A A A )
IRENEEREER - ZE—NELHAM
A 18] 5% B ER P R AR SR AE IR A BR A A ([ERPH R
SR D) (FRA I e SR RE VR A BR 2 ) ([
1) 51% B y) 100% BEHE M & > Je B H H
AR B 2.08E X LA - ZF—AF
+— Ay > AREME 4 Palaeontol B.V. ([PBV )
(35 W5 1% 32 W I E mir-Oil LLPZA 71100% % 45)
2 60% B HE % T 8 7 5 2k P iR | T /A 7] Reach
Energy Berhad (TREB.) » JA H 48 1) th £ 18 3K
K176 FETTAL > AEED IKE 41.32
fEHRIT o 5 Hh— 7 TTE L 7] B9 BEAIE B i )
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all-in cash cost for China oil project was only US$14/barrel, while
the natural rate was successfully controlled at 12%, such positive
results were only achieved by a handful of onshore oilfields in
China. Based on the aforementioned two aspects, the Group
successfully achieved its targets that were set at the beginning of
2016 and the results embody the hard work done by all levels of
the Group from the operating personnel to the management level,
and | would like to thank everyone for their hard work.

On the Company’s performance, due to the fact that no drilling
has been carried out for more than two years in our main
production blocks and the sale of projects, the Group’s total
operated oil and gas production dropped 11.3% to 6.6 million
barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE"”, converting at 6 thousand
standard cubic feet (“MSCF"”) of gas to 1 BOE for reference
purpose only) while net oil and gas production decreased 11.9% to
3.6 million BOE. As a result of lower production and oil prices, the
Group’s total sales revenue slid 25.9% to RMB535.0 million,
adjusted EBITDA dropped to RMB283.3 million, and reported a net
loss of RMB1.3 billion.

Despite the recent recovery in oil prices, the challenges that the
Group has faced still persist. Since the Group’s initial public
offering in Hong Kong in 2010, we have maintained close ties with
the international capital market and created returns for market
participants. We are cognizant that our bondholders are paying
close attention to both bonds which are due in 2018 and 2019, and
we will spend our utmost efforts in 2017 to balance both the
development of the Company and the optimization of our capital
structure. Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my heartfelt thanks to our Board and staff for riding through these
trying times with us and also our shareholders, bondholders, and
business partners for your continued trust and support.

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Zhang Ruilin, aged 46, has been the Executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 20, 2008.
Mr. Zhang, along with Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 26 years of
experience in the oil and gas business. Following the takeover of
MIE by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL”) in August 2003, Mr.
Zhang joined us in September 2003 and has since been a Director
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for overseeing our
overall strategies, planning and day-to-day management and
operations. Mr. Zhang is also a director for the various subsidiaries
of the Group.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 45, has been the Executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company since December 19, 2008. He
is one of the controlling shareholders. Mr. Zhao has over 24 years
of experience in the oil and gas industry. Following the takeover of
MIE by FEEL from Microbes Inc. in August 2003, Mr. Zhao joined
the Company in September 2003 and has since been a director of
the Company. He is and will continue to be primarily responsible
for assisting the Chairman in overseeing the operations at the
Daan and Moliqing oilfields. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor of arts
degree from Daging Petroleum College in 1999.

Andrew Sherwood Harper, aged 65, has been our Executive
Director since his appointment on July 19, 2013. Mr. Harper has
been the Company’s chief geologist and president of the
Company’s international operations from 2001 to 2008 and
rejoined the Company in April 2010 as the chief geologist. Mr.
Harper is also the Chief Executive Officer and a director of MIE
Jurassic Energy Corporation, overseeing the group’s operations in
the United States. Mr. Harper has over 36 years of experience in
the oil and gas industry, during which he acquired his experience
working in the exploration and production team of ARCO
International Oil & Gas Company prior to joining the Company in
2001. During his time with ARCO, Mr. Harper worked extensively
overseas, including assignments in Chile, Dubai, Norway, the
United Kingdom and Indonesia, and as ARCO’s resident manager
in Bogota, Colombia. Mr. Harper also worked as a basin studies
director, Latin America exploration director and exploration
project director at the headquarters of ARCO International in the
United States from 1990 to 1996 and as an exploration manager at
the Andean Basins in ARCO Latin America Inc. from 1999 to 2000.
Mr. Harper received a bachelor’s degree in Geology from Williams
College and a master’s degree in Geology from the University of
Southern California. Mr. Harper is certified as a Professional
Geologist by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists and a
Certified Petroleum Geologist of American Association of
Petroleum Geologists.
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Tian Hongtao, aged 46, has been our Executive Director since his
appointment on December 5, 2014. He is also the executive
president of the Company. Mr. Tian joined the Company in
January 2014 as vice president. He has over 22 years of experience
in finance and accounting and brings considerable risk and control
management expertise to the Company. Prior to joining us, Mr.
Tian served as financial controller of Digital China Information
Service Company Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000555.SZ). Before that, Mr. Tian held
positions as vice general manager, general manager, assistant
president and vice president of Digital China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (“Digital China”, stock code: 00861), focusing
on risk and control management of Digital China. Prior to his time
at Digital China, Mr. Tian worked at the Lenovo Group, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0992). Mr. Tian
graduated with a bachelor's degree in 1994 and then a master’s
degree in 2001, both in Economics from the Central University of
Finance and Economics in China. He also obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in China in 2007. He is a non-
practicing certified public accountant in China.

Tao Tak Yin Dexter, aged 44, has been our Executive Director
since his appointment on July 19, 2013. He is also the Chief
Financial Offer and senior vice president of the Company. Mr. Tao
joined our company in July 2013. He is a veteran investment
banker with extensive corporate finance and accounting
experience. Before joining the Company, Mr. Tao served as senior
director in the Global Investment Banking team at Bank of America
Merrill Lynch where he spent six years specializing in the
origination and execution of investment banking business for
China’s private sector enterprises. Prior to joining the Bank of
America Merrill Lynch, Mr. Tao has also worked at Bear Stearns
Asia, BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital and Arthur Andersen LLP
(subsequently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers). Mr. Tao holds
both a bachelor degree in Business Administration and a master’s
degree in Accounting from the University of Southern California.
He was a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong from 1996 to
1999. Mr. Tao has resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from May 31, 2016.

Annual Report 2016

HJEE > 4658 > A - F—WF+_HHHALH
IEARNRIATHED - HINBAN FIPATHEE -
TEPAE—H s B A AR 7 AT B4
o AR A RS El Oy WA 22 AF AR B
S 4G A 2 U A JEL B A PR B R
fie o MARNT ZHT » HAATEIIESRZS
P b RN O R RRUIR S R 4 A BR A
(B ZZACHE © 000555.SZ) AT A B — Ik o 7E 1L
Z T BRI 35 P A R\ (B
2 AT 1) TS F P SO 2 B R A T (A
BUG | > BEZEACHS © 00861) FEAT B 444850 > 44
IR > B AR R BRI AR ER SRR o BRI A
SRS 1Y) JE B 428 R 45 TR T o i A ] B
H > 50 AR AT TR A T 28 BT i ] W AR 4R [
(B Z2ARAE : 0992) o HIJEAE i — UL 4 F0 —
T B A7) T AT v g 488 K B8 46 s B B -
KRB > W T RF AR VLR
e TR B A A o MRS P B IR
SR AT S A

FaEE > 44k > 3 —F—=4FEAHILAEE
EARRFYATESE PR AA LA E RS E
AR o =B BWREMA
AT] o W — A ERBCERITR A ER
G RE O AT R KRR o i B AR S R AT
W 515 A 0 A 55 SR SR MR BR IR 4% SR AT 26755 B X Y
FIRREE S o Y HN AR R S R I R
A SE SR B S AT BOE MRAT TS o A SRR
Al > PSR AR s - SRR
R ZOE AR G LR J 28 Sk
) ALHK o B S A R R B A T A
BREL B S R B B o SR — UL
B UL 2 A v B E O —
F—ANELA =+ — HEHERATES) -



Xie Na, aged 41, has been the Non-executive Director of the
Company since November 13, 2015. She is a vice president
(investment) of Shanghai Life Insurance Company Ltd. (“Shanghai
Life”). She joined Shanghai Life in 2015 and is responsible for the
establishment of equity investment section, and the formation of
equity investment strategies. Prior to joining Shanghai Life, Ms.
Xie was a senior vice president of Sequoia Capital China (“Sequoia
Capital”), where she led the portfolio management for Sequoia
Capital’s investment with a focus on consumer and
telecommunications/media/technology sectors. Ms. Xie led also
the investment, post-investment management and exit in related
to various projects of Sequoia Capital, including in relation to Peak
Sport Products Co., Limited (stock code: 1968.HK) and Sky- mobi
Limited (symbol: MOBI.NASDAAQ). Prior to joining Sequoia Capital,
Ms. Xie was a consultant at Monitor Group, where she provided
management advice in marketing, operations and investment. Ms.
Xie is currently an executive council member of the China
Women’'s Chamber of Commerce, the vice president of China
Energy Storage Alliance, and was a visiting professor of the
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xie
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer engineering from the
University of Toronto in 2002 and a master’'s degree in business
administration from Stanford University in 2004.
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Mei Jianping, aged 56, has been our Independent Non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the boards of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (stock code: 1238.HK), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and also Zhong De
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Mei also served as the chairman
of board of Shanghai Zhangjiang JRtan.com Inc. from 2000 to
2012. From November 29, 2013, Mr. Mei has served as an
independent non-executive director of Ground Properties
Company Limited (stock code: 989.HK), and from August 11, 2014,
Mr. Mei has served as an independent non-executive director of
China Rundong Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365.HK) (both
companies listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei worked as a
consultant for various financial institutions, such as Deutsche
Bank, UBS, Prudential Insurance of America and Asia
Development Bank. Mr. Mei has published a number of books and
articles on topics related to finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor’s
degree in Mathematics from Fudan University in 1982, a master’s
degree in Economics and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from
Princeton University in 1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 54, has been our Independent Non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc.
(“Mercuria”), one of the world’s largest independent physical
energy trading firms, he was responsible for Mercuria and certain
of its affiliates’ global portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the
majority of which are located in North and South America. Prior to
joining Mercuria, Mr. Miller spent four years, from 2004 to 2008,
as president of Moncrief Oil International, a private oil and natural
gas company with assets in the former Soviet Union as well as
North America. Prior to his career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller was a
managing director in global energy investment banking for UBS
AG, the successor of Dillon, Read & Co, which he joined in 1993.
Mr. Miller was an investment banker with a focus on the energy
industry and has extensive experience in the fields of corporate
finance. Throughout his career as set out above, Mr. Miller has
been involved in a substantial number of transactions including
initial public offerings, debt offerings and mergers and
acquisitions, which require expertise in financial analysis. As an
investment banker, Mr. Miller also had extensive experience in
valuation analysis, which involved reviewing and analyzing
audited financial statements of public and private companies. Mr.
Miller's professional career began in a technical capacity as a
petroleum engineer with Exxon. Mr. Miller received a bachelor’s
degree, magna cum laude, in Petroleum Engineering from Texas
A&M University and a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Columbia Business School.

Guo Yanjun, aged 64, has been the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 13, 2015. He has
extensive entrepreneurship experience and experience in
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from
China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr. Guo
is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 196.HK), Strong Petrochemical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 852.HK) and Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (stock code: 391.HK) (all being companies listed on
the Stock Exchange). He is also the chairman of CNHK Tech Co.
Ltd, CNHK Media Limited, CNHK Media (H.K.) Advertising Limited
and CNHK Publications Limited.
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Mei Liming, aged 36, is our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Mei joined
the Group in January 2005 and has since worked across various
functions including as an accountant, finance manager and vice
financial controller. During his career in the Group, Mr. Mei gained
extensive knowledge and experience in the oil & gas industry,
financial management and capital markets. Since joining the
Group, apart from daily financial management, Mr. Mei has also
been closely involved in many transactions including various
financings and acquisitions. He also participated in the process of
the Group's initial public offering on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Mei graduated from Beijing Institute of
Petrochemical Technology with a Bachelor of Accounting in 2003.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mei worked as an accountant in
Sony Corporation in 2004.

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and Executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, there
are no familial relationships between any of our Directors and
senior management.

Annual Report 2016

Y] > 365K > AAFIE MR - A
CERLTAEMAARLE > B E S > B
Kz B 5 B A B S AT o A A A A R
> MESEAE TR RT3 > B B B A TS
TR TSR 2 E MR M AL o AR
W% - BRZ M4 R BB TAE > Mo R
2B TARAGEZ N HRIE > GIFZHM
B LA  HIRE R 2 BT AR F B S P
EAR_ETTRAB] TAF  MoEAm 2 =48
SETR AR A T B - MRS AL AL 4 B
i o FEIMAARGE B 2 i o M2 i A 4
B AR e AT R Fl A o

PR A2 ] o A B AR LT B SR VLA A
ARFEIER - BREPATERT EF R AR
PR A ER AL > A m o B e A A B 2 A
SHESHSL B R 1R o



The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this
corporate governance report in the Group’s Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2016.

The Board of the Company has responsibilities towards the
shareholders and related stakeholders to ensure the Company’s
successful operation. Sound corporate governance is not only vital
for the Company to cope with the evolving regulatory environment
and reinforce the relationship with its shareholders and
stakeholders, but also important for the Company’s success and
sustainable development. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and have promoted corporate
governance practices appropriate for our business operations and
development.

The Board considers that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company to
safeguard shareholders’ interests, enhance corporate value and
accountability, formulate its business strategies and policies and
enhance transparency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are established
based on the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”), as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company has
applied and complied with the applicable provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the
deviations with explanations below.

The Company shall review and improve its corporate governance
practices on a regular basis to ensure a continuous compliance of
such practices with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific inquiry with all the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors throughout
the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Board

As at December 31, 2016, the Board comprised eight members,
including four Executive Directors, a Non-executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, members of the Board are listed as follows:
Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper
Mr. Tian Hongtao
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter
(Resigned with effect from May 31, 2016)
Non-executive Director:
Ms. Xie Na
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun
The biographical information of the Directors is set out under

“Directors and Senior Management” on page 15 to page 19 of this
annual report.

22 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION ¢ Annual Report 2016

Nomination
Committee

RUZRG

G

ERGRE TN+ A=+ —H > s
R EALR - B A% BT E T 14 AT
R S 34 S AT -

AR > ERGRERIWT ¢

HiTES

REGFR B (F )

YT E e A

Andrew Sherwood Harper /&£

HH L3 ek

P E B S
(B —FE—

JFEPITHES -

Eip R eun

B EPATES

NERH =+ —HR&HL)

M roe A
Jeffrey Willard Miller 2¢4E
M A

B R E R R AR 15 H R 19H
[ s A B | —



The relationships among members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationships among Directors and Senior Management”
on page 20.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
under the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and made recommendations to the
Company regarding the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the Company’s compliance with the Model Code,
the code of conduct and compliance manual for employees and
Directors, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Ruilin
(“Mr. Zhang”) is the Chairman of the Board. Apart from serving as
Chairman, Mr. Zhang has also been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer. Such appointment constitutes a deviation from the Code
Provision A.2.1. The reasons for deviation are explained as below.

Different from integrated oil companies engaged in upstream and
downstream business, the Company is engaged in the business of
oil & gas exploration and production. Therefore, the Board
considers that, the making and implementation of strategic
planning decision by the same individual is in the best the interest
of the Company’s oil & gas exploration and production business.
The Nomination Committee of the Company also agrees that it is
in the best interest of the Company that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer be performed by the same individual.
Therefore, the Company does not currently proposed appoint
another person to act as its Chief Executive Officer. However, the
Company will continue to review the effectiveness of its corporate
governance structure and consider if any changes are necessary
(including separating the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer).
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Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Tian Hongtao, being the Executive
Directors, act as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
executive president respectively. Executive Directors with
administration duties are responsible for more businesses covered
by administration; which shall be the same with the Executive
Directors without administration duties, their responsibilities are
extended to be responsible for the operation of the whole group.
Executive Directors should actively communicate with Non-
executive Directors, and maintain an open and responsible attitude
in respect of any reasonable administrative suggestions and
enquiries raised by the Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter had resigned as an Executive Director with
effect from May 31, 2016.

The four Non-executive Directors of the Company review the
management’s performance in fulfilling established corporate
targets and principles. They should also ensure that financial
information is reported clearly and accurately, and the risk
management and internal control systems are implemented
effectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016 the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors assume no management
responsibilities in the Company, and hold no more than (either
legally, beneficially or deemed) 1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company; nor have they acquired any interest in securities
of the Company either by gift or other methods; hence their
independence is strongly guaranteed. In accordance with
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Independent Non-executive Directors have provided an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company. The Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are involved
in communications with the auditors, which fully exhibits the role
of independent supervision. During the reporting period, no
objections regarding the proposals of the Board or Board
Committees have been raised by Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Non-executive Directors serving the Board and Board Committees
are equipped with different skills, specialties, backgrounds and
qualifications, benefiting the Board a lot. Independent Non-
executive Directors not only act as Non-executive Directors, but
also equip the Board with expertise and business specialty
supplementary to management, thus providing unique opinion
and independent judgment for the possible situations during the
implementation of the Company’s business. Independent Non-
executive Directors are acting as chairmen and members of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
under the Board of the Company.

The appointment and re-election of all Directors of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2016 was in compliance with the
CG Code. In accordance with the Code Provision A.4.2, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The specific term of appointment for
Directors of the Company is three years, which is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
appointment of Non-executive Directors of the Company shall
comply with the Code Provision A.4.1 under the CG Code, namely,
all Non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election.

The Board is responsible for leading and supervising the
businesses, strategic policies and performance of the Company,
as well as being collectively responsible for facilitating the
successful development of the Company by detecting and
supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board makes objective
decisions in the interest.

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and through
him to senior management the authority and responsibility for
carrying out the Company’s day-to-day management and operation.
The delegated duties and responsibilities will be reviewed on a
regular basis. The aforementioned senior executives shall obtain
the approval from the Board prior to entering into any significant
transactions.

In addition, the Board has established the Board Committees and
delegated responsibilities as set out in their respective written
terms of reference.
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All Directors (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors) have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and expertise to the
Board, facilitating an efficient and effective operation thereof. All
Directors shall ensure that they will perform their duties in good
faith, comply with applicable laws and regulations and act in the
interests of the Company and shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company and the services and advice of the company
secretary, to ensure that procedures of the Board and all
applicable laws and regulations are complied with. Upon request,
Directors, may seek independent professional advice when
appropriate for discharging their duties to the Company, at the
Company’s expense.

Directors shall disclose to the Company details regarding other
offices held by them, and the Board shall review the contribution
required from each Director in performing his duties to the
Company on a regular basis.

The Board reserves the decision-making power over all important
issues, including the Company’s policy matters, strategies and
budget, internal controls and risk management, significant
transactions (especially those that may involve conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational issues. The responsibilities regarding to
implementing Board decisions, directing and coordinating the
Company’s daily operation and management are delegated to be
the Management.

In respect of legal actions against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities, the Company has
made arrangements for appropriate insurance cover Directors and
executives regarding their duties.

Every newly appointed Director will obtain on-board induction
upon first occasion of his/her appointment, in order to ensure
appropriate understanding of the Company’s business and
operation and full awareness of the Directors’ duties in accordance
with Listing Rules and related laws. The Director shall keep abreast
of the duties as a Director of the Company, and the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

All Directors are continually updated on the legal and regulatory
regime as well as the business environment, so as to assist in their
performance of duties. The Company will make arrangements
when necessary and provide briefing and professional
development training to Directors.
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All Directors should participate in appropriate continuing
professional development for developing and updating their own
knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that they can remain
informed and continue to make contribution to Board as
appropriate. The Company will arrange internal briefing sessions
for Directors and distribute reading material on relevant topics
where appropriate. The Company encourages all Directors to
attend related training courses at the Company.

On December 9, 2016, all Directors of the Company attended a
training held by PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
regarding the amendments to the CG Code under the Listing
Rules.

Three Committees have been established under the Board,
namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, to supervise particular aspects of the
Company. All Board Committees of the Company are established
based on functions and powers set out in the written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange for shareholders’ reference.

All members of the Board Committees list of the chairman and
members of each Board Committee is set out under “Company
Information” are Independent Non-executive Directors on page 2.

Board Committees are also equipped with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, and can seek independent professional
advices when appropriate (upon reasonable request) at the
Company’s expense.

S HME RS B R R R BRI
ST SRR SRR > DARE RO A A A HL 4
mEM AT EHEREL T EFEMEE
K o AR 2% W A 22w oA A o 4 PR A
3l ) 2 A B R B A o AR
SUR) A o LA BRI - B R AL
A ST e

CEARETTHAILA KRR EEY S
NSRS R p g SR bR R
BRI A SR <7 R BB §T MRS 3 T AR 15
Al

ERFORVIMEAE > WEKZAT ¥
MZEEE ML ZEE > UEBARRRET
MW - AN AHEGE RGN EN
B 2 W REHE B AT > A IR R A A
O ) g S T A (H B AR B B o

PrasER g% A E Y B AT HS
REHFGREGHNEN LA L EHRFR 2 H
Z [ RFEERH -

HEHE G LB LR EIRIETIE -
SRR - AT E T LT R S B
B B E A A S -

Committees Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee!"
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Chairman Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive
Director: Director: Director:
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Mr. Mei Jianping Mr. Mei Jianping
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Jeffrey Willard Miller 5c4: A HaFit

Composition All other members are All other members are All other members are
Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive
Directors: Mr. Mei Jianping and Directors: Mr. Jeffrey Willard Directors: Mr. Jeffrey Willard
Mr. Guo Yanjun Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Committees

ZA"

Main responsibilities

FRBEE

Audit Committee
¥

Review financial statements
and reports before they are
submitted to the Board, and
consider any significant or
unusual issues raised by
external auditors

Review the relationship
with the external auditors
by reference to the work
performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of
recommendations on the
appointment, re-
appointment and removal
of external auditors to the
Board

Review the adequacy and
efficiency of the Company’s
financial reporting system,
internal control system, risk
management system and
related procedures
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Remuneration Committee

Hi

Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Directors
and senior management to
the Board

Review and make
suggestions on the
remuneration of Non-
executive Directors to the
Board

Review and make
suggestions on the
Company'’s remuneration
policies and structure of
remuneration of all
Directors and senior
management to the Board
Review and make
suggestions on the
appointment letter of
Executive Directors newly
appointed during the year
to the Board

Review and approve the
compensation
arrangements of Executive
Directors and senior
management
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Nomination Committee'"

B4

Review the structure, size
and composition of the
Board, and make suggestions
on any changes

Formulate and develop the
relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment
of Directors

Identify suitable candidates
for appointment as Directors
Make suggestions on the
appointment or re-
appointment of and
succession planning for
Directors to the Board
Assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive
Directors
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Committees Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee'"

ZHE #H¥ B ’g0

Number of meetings Two meetings were held for A meeting was held for A meeting was held for

held in 2016 and reviewing of the financial reviewing the granting of share formulating the nomination

summary of work done performance and reports, options to the directors, policies for Directors, reviewing
financial reporting and substantial shareholders and the structure, size and
compliance procedures, employees, granting of composition of the Board,
reviewing and reporting on the awarded shares to directors independence of Independent
Company’s internal controls and employees. The meeting Non-executive Directors and
and risk management system  was also held for evaluating the appointment and re-election of
and procedures, work scope performance of the directors Directors .
and further engagement of and management discussing

external auditor, related party  the remuneration policy and

transactions and arrangements  structure.
focusing the staff on possible
inappropriate acts
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When evaluating the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider different aspects required by the Board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualification, skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience.
The Nomination Committee will discuss and reach consensus on measurable
objectives of diversification of members of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination procedures for
selection of candidates for directors by making a reference to the skills,
experience, expertise, personal conduct and time commitments of individuals,
the Company’s needs and relevant laws and regulations. When necessary,
external recruitment professionals may be engaged to carry out the selection
process.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, the details regarding
Directors’ attendance of meetings held by the Board and the Board
Committees during their tenure are set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

W/ Ek
Extraordinary  Extraordinary
Annual General General
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration General Meeting Meeting
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting (note1) (note2)
BEAERIREG  BOREERAE
G HREHE REZHE HMEHRE  BORAEXE (1) (i#2)
Executive Director WHES
Mr. Zhang Ruilin e ek 4/4 N/A R N/A R N/A R 1N 1N 1N
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei LA R 4/4 N/A R N/A R N/A R o1 o1 01
Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper  Andrew Sherwood Harper J:/f 4/4 N/A A N/A A N/A A 1N 1N 1N
Mr. Tian Hongtao ke 4/4 N/A R N/A i N/A R 0n 0n 01
Mr. Tao Tak Yin Dexter
(Resigned with effect from  FEE A (BR-F—R4E
May 31, 2016) A=+ —HEIT) n N/A i N/A i N/A i 0n 0n 0n
Non-executive Director FOTESR
Ms. Xie Na Eilly e 4/4 N/A i N/A i N/A i 01 0n 0n
Independent Non-executive BukaEs
Director
Mr. Mei Jianping A 44 12 10 1N 1N 1N 1N
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 562 4/4 2/2 n n 0n 0n 0n
Mr. Guo Yanjun THERE 44 20 10 n n n n
Note (1): The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on June 20, 2016 for (1) : AAREIR ZFE—/NENH Z+ H 847 R A4 Hl R

approving and confirming the sale and purchase agreement dated March 5,
2016 entered into between the Company, Palaeontol Cooperatief U.A. and
Reach Energy Berhad and the transactions contemplated thereunder and to
authorize any one of the directors or other person to take such action or
steps to give effect to and implement the agreement.
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Note (2): The Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting on June 20, 2016 for it (2) :
approving and confirming the sale and purchase agreement dated April 26,
2016 entered into between the Company and China New Energy Mining
Limited and the transactions contemplated thereunder and to authorize any
one of the directors or other person to take such action or steps to give

effect to and implement the agreement.
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, apart from regular
Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings with Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors.
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The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2016.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
concise annual reports and interim reports, announcements on
inside information and other disclosures as stipulated by the
Listing Rules as well as other statutory and regulatory provisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
regarding events or situations which may cast significant doubts
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The management has provided necessary explanations and
information to the Board, such that the Board can make an
informed assessment of on the Company’s financial statements
submitted for its approval.

The Company’s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers,
whose responsibilities in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on page 107 to 115.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors (i.e., PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms within the same network) is set out below:
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“E A
RMB’000
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Audit and related services o 5T B RRE R IR B
— Included in continuing operations — EEERHESE 4,655
— Included in discontinued operations — EEE&ILRE 475
Non-audit service El 87
— Included in continuing operations — B EFHERE 604
5,734
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Risk management and internal controls are part of the core
operational management activities and business activities of the
Group. The Board aims to establish a comprehensive risk
management system complied with group strategies and business
features, perfect the organizational structure of risk management,
standardize risk management processes, adopt qualitative and
quantitative risk management methods, carry forward risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation, and facilitate the
sustainable and healthy development of different businesses of
the Company. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system so as to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls e on a yearly basis, with the
assistance of the Audit Committee.

The Company’s risk management system and internal control
system are established for an efficient and effective operation, so
as to ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, identification and management of
potential risks and safeguarding of the Group’s assets. Senior
management reviews and evaluates internal control procedures,
monitors any risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the
Audit Committee the results and measures for handling
differences and risks identified.

1. Risk management structure and other details

Risk management and internal controls of the Group are
guided by the “three lines of defense” as listed below:

The Board
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1st Defence

Operational
Management and
Internal Controls
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2nd Defence
Risk Management
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Internal Audit
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As the highest level decision-making body for the Company’s
risk management and internal controls, the Board is
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of overall risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, performs the duties
regarding risk management and internal controls, supervises
management design, implements and monitors work
regarding risk management and internal control system, fully
understands various significant risks and corresponding
management faced by the Company, and supervises the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
system.

Three lines of defence
1st defence: operational management and internal controls

The 1st defence comprises the Company’s internal control
system, including (i) corporate policies shared with staff via
the internal network; (ii) operational policies, procedures and
practices covering authorization and transaction approval,
etc.; (iii) application of financial reporting standards and (iv)
review of financial performance and significant judgments.

(1) Company policies:

o The Corporate Management Manual is categorized
into three parts: The Organization Chart,
Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide, and
Management System Compilation. Organization
Chart depicts the internal organizational structure
of the Company. Segregation of Duties and
Authority Guide covers the key components of all
functions of the Company’s project companies,
the Board Committees and Management. It
establishes clear management responsibilities,
authorization and accountability. The Management
System Compilation covers the processes and
approval procedures related to internal controls
within the Company, clarifying the responsibilities
and rights of various departments. Since 2016, we
have initiated a plan to reorganize and amend the
Management Manual in a bid to update related
systems and enhance operation efficiency based
on the latest organizational structure.

o The Staff Manual regulates the behaviors of the
staff of the Company, aiming at facilitating the
penetration of integrity and moral values into the
Company.
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o The Whistleblowing Policy encourages the staff
and other business-related personnel to report
events involving misconducts or fraud in the
Company, without being persecuted.

o The Information Disclosure Policy regulates the
handling and publishing of inside information of
the Company. We ensure that inside information
is saved and accessed in an absolutely confidential
manner until the Company makes timely disclosure.

The Information Disclosure Policy includes:

o Applicable scope of policy

o Form of information disclosure

o Periodical reports

o Management of information disclosure
matters

(2) Operational policy:

The Accident Management Regulations help the
Company to systematically and timely report and
handle accidents in a detailed, unified and coordinated
manner, with corresponding follow-up and monitoring
conducted by the Internal Audit Department.

2nd defence: risk management function

The 2nd defence comprises several risk monitoring practices
of the Company, and is subject to the supervision of the
Audit Committee. The Company has adopted a risk
management event library, and develop an exhaustive plan
in respect of various risks, so as to support the Company’s
risk management program and assist the operating
departments to identify and report significant risks affecting
the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s risk
management event library adopts a top-down risk
assessment at the corporate level, and at each operating unit,
a bottom-top approach is adopted for re-examination by
using the individual risk register (based on the impact from
risks). The risk management event library identifies the main
challenges faced by the Company, thereby assisting the
Board and the management to make informed decisions.
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The Company’s risk management event library and register
classify risks into five different categories for assessment:
strategic, market, legal, financial and operational risks, also
comprising 70 types of risk data of the Company’s project
companies. The Company has noted the major risks posing
significant impact on the above categories, and will
periodically assess each major risk for its potential impact on
finance and opportunity of occurrence. The existing controls
are able to identify and address all the major risks and help
improving the skills, benefits and costs required for the risks.

Project companies submit their respective updates on the
risk register to the Internal Audit Department semi-annually,
so as to assist in preparation of the Company’s risk
management report. In 2016, after a review of the risk
management procedures, in order to comply with the
Company'’s financial reporting regulations, the Internal Audit
Department of the Company carried out risk review semi-
annually and approved the Company’s risk management
report, to submit to the president office meeting, Audit
Committee meeting and the Board, and finally for the
approval by the Board, to facilitate the Audit Committee
effective monitoring of the Company’s major business risks
and how the management copes with and mitigates the risks.

Details of the Company’s major risks and potential risks are
set out on page 37 to 40.

3rd defence: internal audit

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible
for internal audit, which plays an important role in assessing
the efficiency of the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system, and is responsible for reporting to
Audit Committee periodically. The audit function of the
department covers the whole Group, with evaluations
handled by the head of the internal audit department of the
Company. The head of the internal audit department of the
Company is required to report to the Chief Executive Officer
and may also contact with the Chairman of Audit Committee
directly, and periodically submit the internal audit report on
the efficiency of the controls system in accordance with the
established audit plan to Audit Committee. During the year
under review, Audit Committee is responsible for approving
the annual audit plan and reviewing reports from the Risk
Management Department.

The head of the internal audit department reviews internal
audit based on risks of each project company at the operating
and corporate level, and agrees on correction and
improvement measures. The head of internal audit will
follow up on the recommended implementation and report
relevant results to Audit Committee.
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External auditors

External auditors of the Company raise independent queries
regarding various businesses, operations and the
performance of internal auditors (especially any significant
internal monitoring involving financial reporting confirmed
during audit), so as to further improve the 3rd line of defence.
External auditors will report any defects in the controls to the
Audit Committee.

Audit Committee and the Board

The Audit Committee reviews and examines the audit report
and statements submitted by Management, each financial
department, internal auditors and external auditors according
to the requirements on reporting, and discuss any significant
issues. Regular risk management reports can be divided into
two reports, internal audit and controls report, and company
risk management report, for further discussion. The internal
audit report is submitted in accordance with the audit plan
annually, and the Audit Committee reviews company risk
management report in order to keep in line with the timing of
financial reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee
examines the impact of any defects in respect of content of
reports, evaluation of efficiency of risk management and
internal controls system, and whether responses are valid,
and determines whether to conduct more extensive
regulation. Besides, the Audit Committee will review the
performance of internal auditors and external auditors, and
the advice of external auditors on the internal finance
department.

The Board holds meetings, proposes recommendations in
respect of the final results submitted by Audit Committee,
and discusses to find out the final resolutions.

Main work conducted in 2016 in relation to risk
management

Based on compliance control management, the Company
will establish a sound all-around risk management system
consistent with the highest international standards and
continuously improve risk controls and technology based on
risk governance, guided by risk preference, with risk
quantitative tools and risk performance appraisal as primary
measures, so as to achieve the balance between risk control
and business development.
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The specific work conducted by the Company in 2016 is as
follows:

Establish the Company’s risk management register,
record the Company’s risk trend and specific ratings;

. Develop and improve the guide for project risk
evaluation, provide practical and comprehensive project
tools, and help improve management of major risks
during project cycles;

. Periodically prepare company risk management reports
for submission to senior management of the Company,
subsequently submit to the Audit Committee and the
Board for approval;

. Discuss existing and potential major risks, and
measures and other activities adopted for addressing
such risks.

List of significant risks

In 2016, the Company’s top 10 major risks are as below. The
Company arranges, selects and prioritizes the risks
encountered by existing business, to compile the list of major
risks. During the compilation of the Company’s major risks,
we held a special meeting with management to discuss and
review responses to individual risks, and we have
interviewed and confirmed with management several times.
Review of risk procedures is helpful to emphasize potential
risks and identify new risks.
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Major risks

B30

Risk of oil and gas price
fluctuation

THSRAE S I 80 e

Risk description and risk response

JaN I3 i e e

International oil price is subject to the impact of various factors: changes
in global and local political and economic conditions, supply and demand
of oil and gas, and contingencies and controversies with international
impact. Domestic oil price is determined and adjusted with reference to
the price of international crude oil. The Company’s businesses involve
both domestic and overseas markets, therefore, are subject in particular to
the impact of risks of price fluctuation. However, the Company avoided the
risk through hedging instruments, meanwhile, set up relevant personnel
to continuously focus on the fluctuations of crude oil price and report,
thereby reducing the risk from the fluctuation of oil and gas prices.
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Major risks
BN

Risk of oil and gas resources

TH S Ry

Investment risk

Era-viily

Exchange rate risk

BEE A1) 4 J gt

Risk in international operations
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Risk description and risk response
JoR gt ki ekt B

The implementation of the Company’s business activities may be
impacted, due to the uncertainties in the exploration and development of
oil and gas resources, or the uncertainties during the purchase of oil and
gas resources with substantial funds. Although detailed assessment and
feasibility study and analysis on investment projects in the prior period
have been conducted, the Company cannot avoid the risk arising from the
uncertainties of oil and gas resources.
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The oil industry is a capital-intensive industry, the Company has adopted a
prudent investment strategy to carry out strict and detailed feasibility
study and analysis on investment projects, however, during the
implementation of the projects, the projects may fail to achieve the
expected benefits due to large variations in market environment, price of
equipment materials, construction cycle, etc., therefore, some investment
risks are presented.
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Although the Company has avoided exchanges rate risk by adopting tools
such as forward exchanges, however, the fluctuation in exchange rates
will inevitably have an impact on the profit of the Company. Besides, the
adjustments in the national interest rate policies will also impact the
Company'’s financing cost, thereby impacting the profit of the Company.
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The Company engages in oil and gas businesses in some overseas
territories. Overseas businesses and assets are governed by the laws and
regulations of the country where the business, so the complexity of
internal political and economy, including international sanction, instability
of tax and fiscal policies and culture difference, may increase the risk of
overseas business expansion and operation of the Company. Although the
Company explores overseas businesses in the countries other than those
in an economically or politically unstable situation, and conducts detailed
surveys in prior to commencement of projects, it still cannot avoid the
impact from contingencies in the country where the business locates.
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Major risks
BN

Risk of national policies

I % BB 5 S B

Production safety and
environmental risk

LA EBR AR AR

Market competition risk

T 35 3 e

Confidentiality

PR B

Risk description and risk response

JaN I i e e

The Chinese government oversees the domestic oil and gas industry,
therefore, its regulatory policies may impact the Company’s business
activities. The changes in government regulatory policies, such as tax and
fiscal policies, energy-saving and emission-reducing policies, may impact
the business performance of the Company
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As a high-risk and environmentally-unfriendly industry, oil exploitation is
vulnerable to natural disaster threats, and the production environment is
flammable and proves to explosion. Emergencies such as blowout and
sticking may result in heavy economic losses and social impact as well as
pose major harm to personal safety. Although the Company always
stresses and implements safe production, does whatever it could to avoid
various accidents and makes insurance arrangements for major assets and
inventories and against losses it may cause to any third-party, it still
cannot survive all the economic losses and adverse impacts brought by
such emergencies.
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With the gradual opening of certain domestic petroleum and
petrochemical markets, the Company faces more fierce competition from
other domestic oil producers and foreign oil producers in aspects such as
obtaining rights to enter resource countries, seizing oil and gas resources
and expanding market when it is making efforts to strengthen its own
business. With a price advantage in a competitive environment, the
Company keeps developing more advanced technology and reducing its
cost. However, its earnings will inevitably be impacted by market
competition.
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Information on the Company’s oil reserve and unsigned investment
projects is strictly confidential. It is a policy of the Company that any staff
in a key position should sign a confidentiality agreement and be obligated
to keep information confidential. But even so, risk of information leakage
brought by job hopping, change of employment or other events is still
unavoidable.
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Major risks
F- Al b
Property safety risk

B 22 2 Ay

Potential risks

Risk description and risk response
Jo g i ekt B E 3

With oil and gas exploitation as its principal business, the Company
establishes comprehensive rules and regulations and strict monitoring
process on aspects such as use of assets, production and transportation.
But since oil and gas exploitation is an outdoor activity, there is still a risk
that assets may be lost or stolen.
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In addition to addressing various major risks faced by the
Company, the Audit Committee also reviews specific
potential risks. Such potential risks often stem from changes
in economic, political, legal or technical environments, and
may but not necessarily fall into the scope of current major
risk categories. In the opinion of the Company’s Audit
Committee, such potential risks may have significant impact
on the Company; therefore, it will minimize such impact and
develop risk mitigation plans.

Potential risks
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Network security risk
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Risk description and risk response

J G 4 e B 2k

Due to network virus, hacker attack and system failure maintenance,
leakage of data information becomes more and more frequent. Although
the Company has installed software such as firewall to protect data and
reduce network security risk, it still cannot avoid being impacted by such
risks because of its both domestic and overseas businesses.
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Work focus in 2017

In 2017, the Company will focus on improving its risk
management framework and procedures, strengthening
internal risk communication, raising risk awareness and
defining risk bearers in accordance with the CG Code and
best practices in the industry. We will arrange risk awareness
related trainings for our main operating departments, and
continue to assist the various business departments to
enhance their risk management procedures in accordance
with the Company’s risk management framework and
guidance. In addition, we will identify major risks and make
arrangements in relation to the report and improvement of
risk countermeasures, potential risk framework and close
monitoring initiatives.
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7. Statement of the Board on internal control
responsibilities

The Company’s internal controls are aimed at reasonably
ensuring operation legality and compliance, asset safety and
authenticity and completeness of financial report and related
information, improving operating efficiency and
effectiveness, and facilitating the implementation of
development strategy. The Company has comprehensively
assessed its own internal controls and reported such
assessment to Audit Committee and the Board in 2016. No
material weakness was identified during the assessment. In
the opinion of the Board, for the year ended December 31,
2016, no events that may have significant impact on the
Company’s operation, financial reporting and compliance
have been identified, and the existing risk management and
internal control system remains effective and sufficient to
guarantee the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company discloses information in accordance with securities
regulations of Securities Regulatory and Futures Commission in
Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange, releases its periodical reports
and interim announcements to the public in accordance with law,
and discloses important information such as the Company’s
financial results, material information changes and information on
significant projects to the market on a timely basis, bearing in
mind the timeliness, fairness, accuracy, authenticity and
completeness of information disclosure, therefore protecting the
legal interests of investors and stakeholders.

Ms. Wong Sau Mei of Tricor Services Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company, as its company
secretary. The company secretary reports to the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer regarding corporate governance
issues, and all Directors can seek her advice and support. The
company secretary is also responsible for providing advice to
Directors and the Board Committees on the latest laws and
regulations, such that procedures of the Board as well as all
applicable laws, regulations and rules are complied with. The
company secretary’s primary contact person at the Company is
Ms. Lu Jing, the general counsel of the Company.
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To safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, the
Company will propose a separate resolution in respect of each
significant matter (including the election of individual Directors) at
general meetings. All resolutions put forward at the general
meeting will be voted on by poll in accordance with the Listing
Rules, and the poll results will be announced on the websites of
the Company and HKEx after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or
its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meeting

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send the written enquiry to the Company by post or email as per
the below contact information.

Shareholders may send e enquiries or request by post or email:

Address: Room 521-26, 5F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(with the Board of Directors as designated recipient)
Tel: 852-2511-0028
Fax: 852-2511-1983
Email: investors@mienergy.com

Shareholders must deposit or send (as the case may be) the
original of the duly signed written requisitions, notices or
statements or enquires to the above address, and provide their full
names, contact details and identification such that the Company
could reply to them. It is likely that the shareholder information
will be disclosed as required by law.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for strengthening relationships with
investors and increasing investors’ understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategy. Also, the
Company understands that maintaining transparency and
disclosing the Company’s information on a timely basis are very
important for shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(http://www.mienergy.com), where relevant latest information, the
up-to-date state of the Company’s business operation and
development, the Company’s financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.

The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders, especially through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Non-
executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Chairmen of all Board Committees (or their representatives) will
attend annual general meetings to meet shareholders and respond
to their enquires. The Company’s general meeting is a platform for
the Board and shareholders to communicate with each other.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
=ERHmE (&)

Articles of Association #H 2k =5 7 40 HY)

During the year under review, no changes have been made to A [EIB4ERE A » 24/ ) ol S 36 40 4% 25 7 40 HI 1E
Articles of Association of the Company. An up-to-date version of  HATAT E B o AR ) f5 357 A0 4% 25 2 4 1) & it
the Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites <2\ &) 4835 K I 22 BT 48 o

of the Company and HKEx.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint
controlled entities is to engage in the exploration, development,
production and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products
under production sharing contracts and other similar
arrangements. The Group currently has the following oil and gas
properties: (1) two producing production oil sharing contracts in
northeast China; (2) an exploration contract and four production
contracts in Kazakhstan held by Emir-Oil (60% equity has been
sold on 25 November 2016); (3) a working interest in the Niobrara
shale oil and gas asset in the United States of America held by
Condor Energy Technology LLC's; and (4) Invested in Canadian
listed company Journey Energy Inc..

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 118 to 121.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2016 (2015: Nil).

The business review of the Group for the year has been set out in
pages 13 to 14 of the Chairman’s Statement, pages 85 to 106 of
the Management Discussion and Analysis, and this Report of the
Directors.

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 122 to 123 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 233 to 235 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at December 31, 2016 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company
repurchased in aggregate a principal amount of US$24 million of
the bonds listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange issued by the
Company on April 25, 2014 from the open market. As of August
12, 2016, (i) the repurchased bonds that have been purchased by
the Company have been cancelled by the Company; and (ii)
US$476 million in aggregate of the principal amount of the bonds
remain outstanding.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31,

2016, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had bought-back,
sold or redeemed any other listed securities of the Company.
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A summary of the buy-back, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities is set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business. Under
the Plan, a total of 29,902,758 share options were granted to
Directors, executives and employees, of which 1,818,579
share options lapsed. The share options were granted at nil
consideration.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. The share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.
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(ii)

Details of the share options outstanding as at December 31,
2016 which have been granted under the Plan are as follows:

Number of Number of
options options
Held at granted exercised Held at
January 1, during during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2016 the year the year 2016 (per Share)
REZ—NE
REZ—nE AEEREZ  AEECHE FSAZH-H fitEfE
4 —“H-B#E O BRERE  ZWREYH B (%)
Independent non-executive
Directors
Bk
Mr. Mei Jianping 1,267,933 - - 1,267,933 US$0.25
3o it 0.25%7
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 - - 1,811,333 US$0.25
Jeffrey Willard Miller &4 02570
Other employees 17,048,120 - - 17,048,120 US$0.13
BT 0.13%7C
Total 20,127,386 - - 20,127,386
Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”) (ii)

On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group.
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director,
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of
the Scheme.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.
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The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from
the subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27, 2010,
share options to certain employees of the Company, entitling
the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 ordinary shares of the Company of USD0.001
each at the exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011
Grant”).

Since February 2013, the exercise price of the vested options
has been higher than the prevailing market price of the
Shares. As a result, the options could no longer serve as an
effective incentive. In view of this, the Company offered
these option holders a cash consideration of HK$0.20 per
Share to cancel vested options under the 2011 Grant, subject
to the option holders consenting to such cancellation. As a
result, options in respect of 65,358,066 Shares were cancelled
on March 21, 2014.

Grant of Options

On March 21, 2014, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 151 eligible participants
comprising certain directors, substantial shareholders and
employees of the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,280,000 Shares. These options have an exercise price of
HK$1.40 per share and a term of 10 years from the grant
date, and will vest over the next three or four years.

The closing price per share as at March 20, 2014, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$1.34.

On December 9, 2016, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 93 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 95,920,000
Shares. These options have an exercise price of HK$0.816
per share and a term of 10 years from the grant date, and will
vest over the next three years.
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The closing price per share as at December 8, 2016, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$0.78.

Under the Scheme, a total of 305,248,000 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
10,474,866 share options were lapsed during the year ended
December 31, 2016. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2016 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

Number of Number of Number of Number of
Heldat  options granted options  options lapsed options Held at
January 1, during the  exercised during during the ~ cancelled during December 31,
Name 2016 period the period period the period 2016
REZ-R
REZ-AE RGN RMRREZ  MERCERE RERCERN LRS-
i% ik TS B L ] TRRHES B TR AR B 1
Executive Directors
ArEy
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000
FHRELE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000
- 2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000 - - - - 2,347,000
BITALE
2,640,000 - - - - 2,640,000
- 2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000
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TR () RHER LRt E
HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
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HKS$140  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016
14087 —F-WE=A1—A to March 20, 2024
BoF-AEZRCT-RE
FORTMESA AL
HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
0816 —F-AEFZANA to December 8, 2026
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HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
254878 “E——EAAZTH to September 19, 2021
BoF-CHETCAZT-RR
ECRELATAALE
HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2016
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE (A

Number of Number of Number of Number of
Heldat ~options granted options options lapsed options Held at
January 1, during the  exercised during during the  cancelled during December 31, Exercise price
Name 2016 period the period period the period 2016 (per Share)  Date of grant Exercisable period
REZ-RE
RZ-R IMmEle  RMAGEZ  RUREERR RMRCEE SRS
4 ~A-B#H TR HES TR TS H TR RHES #H THHER () R ERgiizL
Mr. Andrew Sherwood 441,000 - - - - 441,000 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
Harper 25480 ZF-—FANHH to September 19, 2021
Andrew Sherwood Harper AZF-ZEFZAS-RE
b3 ECRTRAATAAL
3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 HKS$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016
140878 —F-WE=AZ1-H to March 20, 2024
BoF-AFEACT-HE
FIECNEZAZTAL
- 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08161 “Z-AFTALHE to December 8, 2026
A-E-AETZAARE
BIRIAEFZAARL
Mr. Tian Hongtao 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2015
Mk 1408 “F-MEZA-+-H to March 20, 2024
BoF-TESAZT-AR
FETNESACTALE
- 17,000,000 - - - 17,000,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08161 —F-AETANLE to December 8, 2026
B-Z-AETZILRE
FCRIREFZAAR L
Other employees 21,827,334 - - - - 21,827,334 HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
AT VLT ST S B to September 19, 2021
AZZ-CEPZA=-AR
FZRZ-FAATAAL
70,705,371 - - 10,474,866 - 60,230,505 HK$1.40  March 21, 2014 from March 21, 2015
14088 “F-MEZH-F-H to March 20, 2024/
from March 21, 2016
to March 20, 2024
AZZ-HE=A"t-HiE
FCRCMEEAZTHLE
BoF-AFZRZT-HE
FCECNEZAZTAL
- 69,120,000 - - - 69,120,000 HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08161C “Z-AFTALE to December 8, 2026
BoE-AETZAARE
FOEOARFCAANL
Total it 108,947,705 95,920,000 - 10,474,866 - 194,392,839

2016 54 » MIBERIZRERAE 51



(iii) 2012 Share Award Scheme (“2012 Share Award

Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs”), the Board resolved to adopt a
2012 Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to
which the Company granted to selected grantees who are
persons holding SARs under the Plan, such number of
awarded shares as is equal to the number of outstanding
notional shares to which the SARs of the selected grantees
relates. The 2012 Share Award Scheme does not constitute a
share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The Board resolved to adopt on November 20, 2015 the
amended Plan, pursuant to which, restrictions on grant price
of SARs granted after the adoption of amended Plan are
removed. Lapsed SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon
terms and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company in its sole discretion, in
accordance with the amended Plan.

According to the 2012 Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless
early terminated by the board of the Company, the 2012
Share Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect
until the date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or
expired.

As at December 31, 2016, the trustee held 41,195,002 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$77,337,547 (including
transaction costs). As at December 31, 2016, the trustee sold
3,218,998 shares upon exercise of SARs so exercised by
certain grantees.

Annual Report 2016

(iii) 2012 JBt i 3% Bh 51 3 ([2012 % £ 38

Bt ])

Ry RZ T WA O 1 (B (T Bt B (E
MED T > EHE R % A
T = H AR A —TH 2012 B A7 52
FEE > AR ) ) ARSIk R B R AR AR
B A - 5% S5 AR IR JE AR % wt
Fr A o (M 2 N T PR i 2 B
Je 5 5 i 19 AR 5 i B A Pk 2 R AR AR B
Z By 1 (L HE 2 0 R B AT 4 IR B
I o 2012 fBC 53 5% J i 300 07 A A 180 L T R
JU565 17 B 5 el ) 0 PR o) > R )
HATEYG B E AT H] -

EHGOR T —HFE+—H -+ HE
PR E T RZ R # > RIBE AT R
) B Rz R B R R T 0 B
{EHE > J5Caz w3 b S 3 (IR T 1H
A% 14 B A BB > I HLJRURZ A R
T 2R S50 F P 96 (MBI A 68 ey A 2 )
P 2= B I 17 DR A9 F T AR A AL
PEHHL T

MR35 2012 B iy S w1 &8 » R AL ek 32
M UARRAN R R H SR TSR
5% 44,415,800 B A= 28 & e 473 - 3 LA A
PeBseRZE N B Z s NUMEHREEE -
DARRAT (00 1 (B RE - A SR PRI A
A7 (0 R A0 188 (B R IR > A2 36 35 P 47 (8
2 By 1 (R S 5 A A £y - SIF HL 1) £
PhgR I AT R E BAT AN AL Z AT #
TE N I BB RE 2 A 3 AT - BRI
HERBA > 2012 B 58 B 53051 —
BT A S AR BE A B3 (A
REMEATRE - AR sB 0 H A 1k o

BE-F—-NE+HA=1+—H %
NFHEF 41,195,002 I fy > 7ETH 5 DA AR
A8 4k ¥ 77,337,547 7T (L 45 28 5 Il
K)EE - BE_F—AFETH=Z4—
H > 240 A B TR EEAAT M B 03 4
(EHERE 251 3,218,998 B 5% Bl % 4y -



(iv) 2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award

Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to
give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group, and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015 and
amend on November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share Award
Scheme, pursuant to which the Board may at their absolute
discretion select any grantee, who is an employee or
consultant of the Group or of any affiliate, for participation in
the 2015 Share Award Scheme and determine the number of
awarded shares to be granted to such grantee. The 2015
Share Award Scheme does not constitute a share option
scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a
discretionary scheme of the Company, and will be in effect in
parallel with the Plan, the Scheme and the 2012 Share Award
Scheme.

Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules,
the 2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective
from January 6, 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded
shares has been vested and transferred to the relevant
grantee or has lapsed, whichever is later, in accordance with
the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award
shall be made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the
adoption date.

As at December 31, 2016, the trustee held 94,104,000 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$79,931,367.74 (including
transaction costs).
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(v)

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to certain directors and employees 14,200,000 shares
under the 2015 Share Award Scheme.

On December 9, 2016, the Board has resolved to offer to
certain director 12,000,000 shares under the 2015 Share
Award Scheme.

Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue at the date of the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme and the Plan is
264,784,079 shares and 20,127,386 shares respectively,
representing approximately 9.01% and 0.68% of the issued
share capital respectively.

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)

. Zhao Jiangwei

. Andrew Sherwood Harper

. Tian Hongtao

. Tao Tak Yin Dexter (Resigned with effect from May 31, 2016)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Xie Na

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun
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In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Mei Jianping and Mr. Tian
Hongtao shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

We have entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the Executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of Association at our general
meeting.

On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
each an Executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company and MIE Corporation respectively, which is
renewable yearly unless terminated (i) with 12 months’ notice by
either party, or (ii) by the Company or MIE Corporation (as
applicable) upon certain events such as the Director having
committed serious or persistent breaches of the service contract.
Should the Company or MIE Corporation (as applicable) terminate
the service contract, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei will
be entitled to receive severance payment equivalent to one year’s
basic pay under the service contract, save for circumstances
described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have entered into
a service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
terminable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group had the
following transactions with Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”) and
Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and their subsidiaries
(“Jilin Guotai”), which are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules:

(A) Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to the Company

(B) Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us
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Category | — Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholder’s Approval

(A)

Lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us

Mrs. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, and is
therefore a connected person of our Company. Since 2008,
Mrs. Zhang has been regularly leasing a substantial number
of vehicles to us.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into a renewed
framework vehicle rental agreement with Mrs. Zhang (the
“Vehicle Rental Agreement”), pursuant to which Mrs. Zhang
agreed to rent to us a number of vehicles for the purpose of
the day-to-day business operations of our Group, subject to
the entering into of individual contracts as agreed between
Mrs. Zhang and us pursuant to the Vehicle Rental
Agreement.

No individual vehicle rental contract has been entered into
with Mrs. Zhang under above Vehicle Rental Agreement
during FY2016.

Category Il — Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

(B)

Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the “Qilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to
provide to us various oilfield services including well
maintenance services, well logging services, oil tanker
transportation services, oilfield construction related works
and other oil operations related services, subject to the
entering into of individual contracts as agreed between Jilin
Guotai and us pursuant to the Oilfield Service Agreement.
The service fees will be based on normal commercial terms
and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties to our Group.
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On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three
years ending December 31, 2015.

On December 31, 2015, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three
years ending December 31, 2018. The proposed annual caps
for the transactions under the Renewed Oilfield Services
Agreement are RMB99.0 million, RMB96.0 million and
RMB82.0 million for the three years ending December 31,
2018, respectively.

As listed below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of
each continuing connected transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2016 has not exceeded the respective
proposed annual cap in the Renewed QOilfield Services
Agreement as set out in the announcement published by the
Company on December 31, 2015.
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Transaction amount
for the year ended

Connected Person Nature of transaction Proposed annual cap December 31, 2016
BIE—F—%
PR B\ R HE ey iy S ToA=Z—HRSHE
Mrs. Zhang Lease of vehicles by RMB5.1 million None
[ S IN Mrs. Zhang ANR¥510 &0 i3
to the Company
TRF N A 7] AR
Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield RMB99.0 million RMB70.0 million

B % services by Jilin Guotai to
the Company
PRI 2% [0 A8 A A4 3
i1 H RS

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors,
the above transactions were carried out in the Group’s
ordinary and usual course of business; on normal
commercial terms or better; and in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. Details of such
connected transactions are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The auditor has confirmed that for the year 2016 the
continuing connected transactions (i) have received approval
of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group, where applicable; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the respective cap
amounts set by the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported their
conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the relevant non-exempt
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the relevant
non-exempt continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to the auditor’'s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the relevant continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
as set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries to the Group.
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On December 23, 2016, the Board announced that the Company
issued the Commission Letter to Vault (Asia) Limited (“Vault
Asia”) which was agreed and countersigned by Vault Asia on the
same date. Pursuant to the Commission Letter, the Company shall
pay a commission of US$800,000 to Vault Asia in respect of the
consulting services that Vault Asia had provided to the Company
in relation to the execution and closing of the transaction. Vault
Asia is wholly-owned by a brother of Mr. Tao, who was an
executive Director of the Company in the past 12 months. Pursuant
to the Listing Rules, Vault Asia is an associate of Mr. Tao and
hence a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
Commission Letter and the transactions thereunder constitute a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and
are exempt from circular and independent shareholder’s approval.

During 2016, the Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards, details of which are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, as disclosed in
note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements: (i) the
transactions in connection with the purchase for oilfield services
fall under the definition of continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, and are subject to reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirements; (ii) the transactions in relation to purchase
of spare parts and rental of vehicles and office premises fall under
the definition of continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the connected transaction
requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the transactions in
relation to sales of vehicles and loans fall under the definition of
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are fully
exempt from the connected transaction requirements under the
Listing Rules.

During 2016, the Group did not carry out any transactions in
connection with lease of vehicles by Mrs. Zhang to us as
mentioned on page 56. of this annual report, which fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules and are exempt from independent shareholder’s approval.

The relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(as applicable) with respect to all the above connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions have been complied with.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions of the
Group constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 15 to
19.

As at December 31, 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:
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Number of ordinary Approximate
shares (including total percentage

Name of Capacity/ options to be of interest in the
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
ety 8 H 15 T B i FH)
HHEH iEEA Vg t1i3 (/B 45 T4 P ) WARE L
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
iR Bk G /N corporation (Note 2)
R WA (M aE2)
Interest of controlled 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
corporation (Note 3)
TEERIE R (7 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 7,987,000 (L) 0.27%
HaHa A (Hita)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
ML HIEE /N corporation (Note 2)
THERIE B (f7E2)
Interest of controlled 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
corporation (Note 3)
Y B R (i 3)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,187,000 (L) 0.34%

HabEf A (H7t4)
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Name of Director

Name of
Corporation

Capacity/
Nature of interest

HHA LA L2/ V4 t-1:3

Mr. Zhang Ruilin Far East Energy Interest of controlled

iR Bk G Limited (“FEEL") corporation (Note 2)
TR R AR (7 2)

Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled

RN e corporation (Note 2)
YR IR (i 2)

Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner

M AN - Eik ZUN

Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner

Jeffrey Willard Miller 554 ¥/ A A

Mr. Andrew Sherwood Harper Our Company Beneficial owner

Andrew Sherwood Harper &4 &4 ]

HaHA N

Mr. Tian Hongtao Our Company Beneficial owner
RS /N gk ZDN

Note:

(1) The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the

Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao”) as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act
in concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the
shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a
unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action in concert is
unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang’s
and Mr. Zhao's shares.
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,644,629,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 9,037,000 share
options and awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the call option which
FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call
option agreement, over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho
Chi Sing through Celestial, as further described in note (3) below, (v)
the100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself and (vi) 1,150,000 shares
owned by Mr. Zhao himself.

(3) The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317(1)(a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of
the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”. Mr. Zhang'’s interests includes the 100,000 shares held by himself
and Mr. Zhao's interests includes the 1,150,000 shares held by himself.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2016, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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So far as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2016, the
following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions two and three of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register referred to therein, were as follows:
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Name of interested Party Capacity/Nature of interest exercised) company
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Ms. Zhao Jiangbo Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)  1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
LiRAR/ &/ SEYET I MHE AR (H7E2) 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
FEEL Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)  1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
SEHET I MHE AR (H7E2) 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%

Mr. Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
SEHET I MHE AR (H7E3) 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%

Celestial Energy Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)  1,644,629,234 (L) 55.97%
(“Celestial”) SEHET I MHE AR (F7E3) 211,855,234 (S) 7.21%
Citigroup Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 168,334,690 (L) 5.73%
SEYET I MHEAL (H7E4) 24,381,793 (P) 0.83%

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of
the Company.

(1) FEIL AL RAS R i E - 78
[SfaHALN LAAL RIBAR FHRA -

2016 F iR



(3)

FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”), Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as
to 80%, 9.99% and 10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL
were issued to Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were
transferred from FEEL to Champion International Energy Limited
(“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient International Energy Limited (“Orient”), 475,000,000 shares in the
Company were transferred from FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited
(“New Sun”) and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion,
Orient, New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory
Holdings Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs.
Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert
Agreement under which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters
that require the decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-
in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that
require action in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed
to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,644,629,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,414,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 9,037,000 share
options and awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the call option which
FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have been granted, pursuant to a put and call
option agreement, over the 211,855,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho
Chi Sing through Celestial, as further described in note (3) below, (v) the
100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself, and (vi) the 1,150,000 shares
owned by Mr. Zhao himself.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of the
shares, pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their Shares, and
section 317 (1) (a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder
of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.
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(4) Among the 168,334,690 ordinary shares held by Citigroup Inc., 143,952,897
ordinary shares are directly held by Citigroup Global Markets Limited in the
capacity of investment manager, and 24,381,793 ordinary shares are directly
held by Citibank N.A. in the capacity of approved lending agent.

Citigroup Global Markets Limited is wholly-owned by Citigroup Global Markets
Europe Limited, which in turn is controlled by Citigroup Global Markets
(International) Finance AG, Citigroup Global Markets International LLC and
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. Both Citigroup Global Markets (International)
Finance AG and Citigroup Global Markets International LLC are also wholly-
owned by Citigroup Financial Products Inc. Citigroup Financial Products Inc. is
wholly-owned by Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc., which in turn is
wholly owned by Citigroup Inc. Citigroup Inc. is therefore deemed to be
interested in 143,952,897 ordinary shares. On the other hand, Citibank N.A. is
wholly-owned by Citicorp Holdings Inc., which is in turn wholly-owned by
Citigroup Inc. Citigroup Inc. is therefore deemed to be interested in 24,381,793
ordinary shares. Hence, Citigroup Inc. is deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 168,334,690 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

During the year, the Group purchased around 79.46% of its goods
and services from its 5 largest suppliers as well as 32.96% goods
and services from the largest supplier; and 97.25% and 97.9%
respectively of the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina, its
largest customer, and its 5 largest customers combined.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers and
customers.
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The employees, suppliers and customers of the Company play an
important role in the Company’s development and on which the
Company'’s success depends. The Company provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract and motivate the employees.
The Company maintains good relationship with customers,
suppliers and other business partners to achieve its long-term
goals. In 2016, there was no material and significant dispute
between our Group and its customers, suppliers and other
business partners.

During the process of hydrocarbon production, the Company
highly values the protection of natural and ecological environment
and its comprehensive environmental protection measures to
ensure that the Company complies with the applicable laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection. During the
process of construction and production of oilfields, we place
environment impact assessment, compliance with set standards
or targets on pollutant emissions, control on total discharge
amount and reduction on emissions as our priorities.

The Company views energy saving and reduction in emission as
an important aspect of our cost reduction and maintaining high
management standards. We also continue to strengthen efforts on
technical reformation during daily management, which is the key
to improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company has
constructed oilfields of green environmental protection in
accordance with regulatory requirements and there were no
matters arising from environmental-related regulatory non-
compliances.

As far as the Board and senior management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group. During the year ended December 31,
2016, there was no material breach of or noncompliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
period from January 1, 2016 to April 21, 2017 (being the latest
practicable date for ascertaining information prior to the issue of
this annual report).

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which
he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liabilities insurance coverage for Directors and officers of the
Company.

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the reporting
period.

None of the Directors of the Company had an interest in a
business which competes with the Company or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

On October 16, 2015, the Company issued 276,300,000 shares at
HK$0.90 per share by way of placing and subscription. The net
proceeds after deducting the relevant expenses were
approximately HK$245,000,000.

The use of proceeds was as follows:

o Approximately 43% was used for the repayment of bank
loan;

. Approximately 57% was used for the supplement of working
capital and the general corporate purposes.
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Proposed Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2016 (2015: Nil).

The emoluments policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Friday, June 30, 2017 (“AGM"”). For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, June 27,
2017 to Friday, June 30, 2017, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, June 26, 2017 (Hong Kong time), being the last
registration date.

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment as the Company’s auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 30, 2017
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(1

Employment

The Group implements the following employment
policies and regulations for recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, holidays,
diversification and other bonus and benefits:

1.  The remuneration of employees is in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the “MIE Holdings
Corporation’s Remuneration Management
System”. The Company provides employees with
a comprehensive and competitive package taking
into account market competition and equality
within the Group. The employees remuneration
package is based on an overall evaluation of work
performance, the employee’s relevant rank and
position and capability.

2. The recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees of the Group in China are governed by
the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China” , the “Policies Governing Employee
Relations of MIE Holdings Corporation”, other
national and regional laws and regulations, and
the Company’s administrative policies.
Recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees in Hong Kong are conducted in
accordance with the “Employment Ordinance”
and local laws and regulations of Hong Kong.
Recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees in Kazakhstan are performed in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
such as the “Labor Law”, the “ Trade Union Law”
and the “Civil Code” of the Republic of
Kazakhstan. Recruitment, promotion, and
termination of employees in the United States are
carried out in conformity with applicable U.S. and
regional laws and regulations.
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3.  The working hours for employees within China are
strictly in accordance with the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, namely 8
hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest days
include statutory holidays, Saturdays and
Sundays. The working hours for employees in
Kazakhstan are 8 hours per day, 40 hours per week
and rest days are in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the “Labor Law” of Kazakhstan.

4. The Group provides its employees in China with
paid holidays in strict accordance with the “Order
of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China (No.514) in relation to the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees”. For Hong
Kong employees, paid holidays are provided in
strict accordance with the provisions of the
“General Holidays Ordinance” and the
“Employment Ordinance”. Relevant benefits are
provided to employees in Kazakhstan based on
applicable provisions of the “Labor Law” of
Kazakhstan.

5. Based on the principle of equality and anti-
discrimination, the Group complies with the
“Administrative Policies for Employee Recruitment
of MIE Holdings Corporation” for recruitment
matters.

6. The Group has established a scientific and
reasonable performance appraisal system and an
effective incentive and restraint mechanism to
ensure the joint development of the Company and
its employees. In 2016, the Group continued to
optimize its KPI assessment system, improved the
quantification of its evaluation standards and
enhanced the feasibility of its evaluation
mechanism.

In 2016, the Group was not involved in any arbitration
and did not have any judgment against it on labor
disputes in China.

The Group had 1,387 employees, comprising 1,143
males (82.4%) and 244 females (17.6%) as of December
31, 2016. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
there are more male employees than female
employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Table 1: Staff Status by Work Category as of December

F1: BE2016F12A31 H iR

31,2016 fi (2 TR 20 A9 B T DL
Total
Total Core Support  Operation
Work Category Technical Production Support Management production services services Total
fa it R IR EAGH  ERARE S BRGH At
Total A3t 65 58 135 258 799 330 1,129 1,387

Table 2: Staff Status by Education Background as of
December 31, 2016

F2: ®E20164E12 31 H R #
ZREBRE BN E TN

Technical
Secondary Junior
Education Masters Junior School & High School
Category and above Bachelor College High School  and below Total
BERE LD B KREAR REHER  SH-wmd WPRUT At
Total A5t 24 172 238 531 422 1,387
Table 3: Staff Status by Age Group as of December 31, F3: #E£ 2016412 H 31 H R #%
2016 ARSI B T
55yrs
Age Group 20-24yrs 25-34yrs 35-44yrs 45-54yrs  and above Total
i 20%E245%  25%34%  3BEME 4554 55 Ll L Gris
Total A5 25 486 425 356 95 1,387

Table 4: Staff Status by Geographical Region as of
December 31, 2016

Geographical

F4: #HE20164E12 31 H R #
IS A B TS

Region Mandarin HK Kazakhstan us Total
b, H R A 3 HE AR G E s il F i
Total &k 1,364 7 11 5 1,387
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(2) Development and Training

Throughout the year, the Group organizes tailored
training programs based on Group’s development
strategy, employee job requirements and employees’
personal development needs to accelerate the growth
of employees’ working ability and professional quality.
Through the various tailored training programs, the
Group comprehensively develops the management
ability and skill levels of all employees across various
positions.

Aimed at improving the business standards, and
management ability and also overall ability among
management staff, the Group offers targeted
professional knowledge training to strengthen their
common general skills. With the purpose of improving
the professional and technical ability of technical
personnel, the Group emphasises on the cultivation of
their business knowledge and ability, including the
basic knowledge, application software tool learning,
new technology and cutting-edge knowledge learning.
As regards operational staff, the Group targets to
strengthen their operating skills, standardize the
operation process and improve operation ability.

Table 5: Staff Training Status by Gender as of December
31,2016

Gender Male

P

Percentage Hork 83%

Table 6: Staff Training Status by Gender and Hours as
of December 31, 2016
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LS
17%
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Gender Male Female
ezl % &

Average Training SRR
Hours 46 19

As there are more male employees in the Group, the
number of male employees who have received training
as compared to the female employees. Also due to the
business scope and working environment of the Group,
project staff who work outdoors receive more training
opportunities than the staff based in office. Given that
there are more male employees working on the
projects, the difference between the number of average
training hours which male and female appear marked.
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(3)

(1)

Labor Standards

The Group primarily implements the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China"” and the “Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China"” for the prevention of child
labor and forced labor.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations and strictly inspects the identity of
employees during recruitment and employment to
ensure that they are above 18 years old in an effort to
eliminate the employment of child labor or forced labor
in the Group. In the process of recruitment, we conclude
employment contract with employees by the principle
of equality and voluntary and follow the work
performance to avoid forced labor phenomena.

In 2016, the Group did not have any serious violations
of the relevant standards or rules.

Occupational Health and Safety

Since its establishment, the Group has placed great
emphasis on health, safety and environmental
protection management. It has adhered to the following
core management principles: scientific management,
health upmost, safety first, prioritize environmental
protection and sustainable development. The Group is
dedicated to the creation of a rigorous corporate safety
culture and the establishment of a sound management
system. Concurrently, the Group focuses on increasing
employees’ and contractors’ attention towards safety
and environmental protection during the production
process, raising awareness and skills of employees and
contractors on safety risks identification and awareness,
accelerating clean production management and
reducing the business’s environmental impact.

In 2016, the Group’s health, safety and environmental
management system was endorsed by the auditors of
the Beijing CNPC Certification Center, and passed the
renewal audit.
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The Group has consistently implemented the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”, “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases”, “ Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health
at Work Sites”, “Regulations Governing the Declaration
of Projects with Occupational Hazards”, “Regulations
Governing the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance of Employers”,
“Interim Regulations Governing the Supervision and
Administration of “Three Simultaneities” for
Construction Projects”, and national standards
including “Technical Specifications for Occupational
Health Surveillance”, " Regulations on Labor Protection
in Workplaces Where Toxic Substances Are Used”,
“Regulations on the Control over Safety of Dangerous
Chemicals” and other relevant laws, regulations, rules,
normative documents, national standards, industry
standards and technical specifications in its provision of
a safe working environment.

The Group strictly enforces the above laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, standards and technical
specifications, strives to provide a safe work
environment for all employees and also protects
employees against occupational hazards. In 2016, the
Group did not violate any relevant laws, regulations,
rules, normative documents, standards and technical
specifications. The work-related litigation with Condor
Energy Technology LLC filed in 2015 in the United
States is still in progress, and currently under
negotiation. In 2016, the Group did not have any work-
related injuries or deaths from work related matters.

Table 7: Safety Statistical Table of the Group

Total
workhours
(million  Recordable
Scope workhours) incidents
AR Lk
i (AEALR) EXlS
Company staff AAIET 1,140
External Contractors SN R AL 75
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The occupational health and safety measures, related
implementation and monitoring methods implemented
by the Group mainly include:

1. Establish an occupational health and safety
management administration team which is staffed
with full-time employees. The Group currently has
12 registered national safety engineers. Improve
the safety production responsibility system,
improve the occupational health management
archive and management system, strengthen the
basic management of occupational health and
safety measures, strictly implement management
policies, refine the management scope, and
effectively avoid health and safety risks. In 2016,
the Group organized multiple special inspections
to continuously track and rectify any discovered
problems.

2. Establish occupational health monitoring archives
for employees of the Group, implement the
occupational health notification system, regularly
arrange occupational health examinations for staff
and make corresponding work adjustments for
employees that do not suit their particular
position.

3. Provide employees with requisite occupational
hazards precaution facilities and labor protection
supplies based on the findings of occupational
health assessment reports. Authorize a third party
occupational disease prevention and control
institution to regularly monitor and assess
potential occupational health hazards of the
Group, and evaluate the Group’s occupational
hazards protection measures and the efficacy of
protection provided.

4. Provide work injury insurance, basic medical
insurance, serious illness insurance for employees
of the Group to fully protect their interests.
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5.  Since the Group is engaged in oil exploration and
oil has certain dangerous and hazardous
characteristics, such as combustion, explosion and
secondary environmental pollution. The Group
has paid special attention to emergency
management and engaged experts to assess the
sources of hazards and pollution of the Company;
it has also developed contingency plans for major
sources of hazards and key sources of pollution,
and also regularly conducts emergency drills.

In 2016, the Group organized a number of practice
emergency drills, to practice the implementation of
plans such as “Emergency Plan for Fire and Explosion
Accidents”, "Emergency Plan for Sudden
Environmental Incidents”, “Comprehensive Plan for
Flood and Drought Prevention”. Results of the practice
emergency drills were evaluated for feasibility and any
plans that were not applicable to the actual scenarios
were revised.
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(2) Emissions

The emissions discharged during the development and
production process of the Group’s projects mainly
include: Furnace heating exhaust gas and hazardous
wastes (oil sludge, oil residuals and drilling muds
generated during oil exploration). Such hazardous
wastes are disposed of by service providers certified by
environmental protection authorities.

Table 8: Waste Emission Data of Each Project of the
Group

Natural Gas Hazardous

Consuming Waste

(WM?)  Transferring (T)

HEBAAAR  GEERYE

(&H) ()

Daan K% 1,427 2,500
Moliging REY 332 350
EMIR EMIR 4,878 691
Total &t 6,637 3,541

Environmental protection measures and related
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by
the Group at present mainly include:

Underground environmental protection measures, cyclic
utilization of drilling muds and other measures can
reduce the amount of hazardous waste produced. Any
hazardous waste generated will be disposed of and
recycled by qualified units under the supervision of the
local government environmental protection department.

Production wastewater passes through the sewage
treatment plant for filtering and purification. Part of the
purified water will be heated and enters into the
pipeline for production while the rest will be injected
underground to supplement the formation pressure, so
as to achieve zero emission targets for wastewater.

The Company chooses energy efficient furnaces that
can use clean energy as the combustion material and
the fuel used is natural gas, which mainly releases
carbon dioxide and water vapor after combustion.

Consuming
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Water Power
Drilling Consuming

(W) Mud (M?) (WKW.h)
HkE AR HER
(#7) () (T ILRF)
137.50 800 7,914.83
19.22 0 1,439.63
0.40 5,530 1,367.00
156712 6,330 10,721.46
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The Group entrusts third party organizations to
regularly monitor the surface water, groundwater,
sewage, noise, soil within the operation boundary and
monitor the environmental changes brought about by
the production and development processes to the
surrounding area.

The total amount of hazardous wastes generated in
2016 was about 3,541 tons, approximately 200 tons less
than that in 2015. The drilling mud wastes produced in
2016 were about 6,330 cubic meters; the amount of
sewage efflux was zero; about 66.37 million cubic
meters of natural gas was used; and greenhouse gas
emissions were about 10,372 tons.

In terms of emissions, projects in China mainly adhere
to the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste"”, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Promotion of Cleaner Production”,
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment”, the “Catalog of
State Hazardous Wastes”, the “People’s Republic of
China’s Emergency Response Law”, the “Interim
Regulations Governing the Sudden Environmental
Emergency Contingencies”, “China’s Oil and Gas
Production Enterprises Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines (Trial)";
Kazakhstan Projects mainly implement the “State
Environmental Protection Law of Kazakhstan”, the “Law
of Kazakhstan on Industrial Safety of Oil Processing and
Handling of Dangerous Operations in Oil and Gas
Fields”, the “Law of Economic Evaluation of
Environmental Pollution Injury in Kazakhstan” and
other relevant laws, regulations, rules and regulatory
documents.

The Group strictly enforces the laws, regulations, rules
and regulatory documents of the above-mentioned
countries, intensifies recycling and reuse of wastes,
strives to reduce waste discharge, and actively
promotes clean production and use of clean energy. In
2016, the Group did not violate any laws, regulations,
rules and regulatory documents.
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(3) Use of resources

The Group has strictly adhered to the “Energy Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Electricity Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Law on Energy
Conservation of People’s Republic of China”; our
Kazakhstan project strictly implement “Provisions on
Calculation and Combustion of Associated Gas and
Natural Gas in Kazakh Qilfield Operations” and other
relevant laws and regulations for effective use of
resources (including energy, water, and other raw
materials).

Resource conservation is a fundamental requirement
for the Group to implement scientific management,
improve the economic efficiency of the Group and
enhance the Group’s core competitiveness. To this end,
the Group has done a lot of work in 2016 surrounding
business management, technological innovations and
energy saving goals and has achieved satisfying results.
Details are as follows:

In 2016, the Group’s annual water consumption was
about 0.7 million tons; power consumption was about
93.54 million kWh, 5.65 million kWh less than that of
2015.

The Group’s consumption of gasoline was 228 tons in
2016; the consumption of diesel was 165 tons, 54 tons
less than that of 2015.

Major measures and relevant implementation methods
adopted by the Group in the use of resources include:

1. Establish a three-tier energy management network
comprising a supervising manager, relevant
department heads and entry-level personnel,
formulate scientific and strict management of
quantitative energy consumption, and have a
good grasp on the basic assessment work.
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Achieve high efficiency using technology and
reduce energy consumption through technological
advances.

(1) Usage of automatic control frequency
systems, automatically analyze motor
operation parameters, real-time adjustment
of operation parameters, and achieve the aim
of energy saving.

(2) Strengthen equipment management, e.g.
adoption of high-performance motors;
elimination of high-energy transformers;
timely adjustment of balance rates and other
measures to reduce power consumption.

(3) As for production wells with poor liquid
supply capacity, optimize the production
parameters, carry out intermittent
production, suspend wells, shut down wells
and implement other measures to reduce
inefficient production rate.

Table 9: Energy Saving Statistics of Each Project
of the Group

Statistics on Energy Conserving Compared to
2015 Whole Year

Daan K%
Moliging EH
EMIR EMIR

The Group strictly observes relevant laws,
regulations, rules and regulatory documents of the
abovementioned countries and it did not and
violate any abovementioned laws, regulations,
rules regulatory documents in 2016.
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(4)

Environment and natural resources

The Group is enterprise engaged in the oil exploration
business which consumes occupies mineral resources,
land and other natural resources during the process of
oil production. The Group abides strictly by the
“Mineral Resources Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Land Administration Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Kazakh
National Environmental Protection Act”, the
“Kazakhstan Environmental Pollution Damage
Economic Evaluation Regulations” and other related
laws, regulations and requirements. The Group aims to
reduce its impact on the environment and natural
resources via the followings: making good use of
natural resources, improving comprehensive recycling
ability of natural resources, reducing the consumption
of natural resources and all kinds of waste emissions.

The Group aims to establish the concept of conserving
resources, reducing waste emissions, protecting the
ecological environment, increasing investment in new
technology, formulating policies on improving the level
of enterprise technology for comprehensive utilization
of resources, technology innovation, energy
conservation and emissions reduction, constantly
promoting enterprise to improve resource utilization
efficiency, environmental protection compliance in
accordance with the laws and regulations, contained
improving of the regional environment as well as
improving sustainable health development.
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(1)

Supply chain management

The Group continuously optimized its supply chain
management and established a comprehensive
management mechanism for supplier access, selection,
review and withdrawal. The Group has established
relationships with 441 suppliers comprising 195 Chinese
suppliers and 246 overseas suppliers (Kazakhstan and
other countries). The Group adopts a prudent attitude
and strict standards on supplier selection. Not only do
we value product quality, service level, business ethics,
corporate reputation, but we also place importance on
their social responsibility performance. At present, the
Group’s supply chain management is carried out in
accordance with the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Laws and Regulations for
Kazakhstan Underground Resources Users to Purchase
Goods, Engineering and Services” and other laws of
the countries where resources are located. The Group
has updated and improved its “Policies Governing
Tenders”, the “Policies Governing Contracts”, the
“Policies Governing the Procurement of Goods”, the
“Policies Governing the Management of Materials” and
the “Policies Governing the Early Implementation of
Service Projects without Signing Contracts under
Special Circumstances”, together which provide a
unified basis and procedures for the selection and
management of suppliers and contractors. The Group
has developed four supply chain management modules
centered on tender management, contract
management, material management and supplier
management. During the process, suppliers and
contractors are provided with an opportunity for
participation based on openness, fairness and
transparency. The Group puts forward the requirements
of honesty, trustworthiness, legal operation, due
attention to health, safety and environmental protection
for our suppliers and contractors during
prequalification, bidding, provision of products and
services, and performance evaluation. At the same
time, the Group also includes anti-bribery and anti-
corruption clauses into contract terms, creating a clean
environment for supply chain management.
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(2)

The Group implements a unified order system and
makes purchases in accordance with the “Purchase
Plan Order” issued by the material services department.
The relevant order would cover the budget amount,
material model, service contents and specific time
requirements, which subsequently makes the
completion of remaining steps in the supply chain more
smooth and efficient.

The Group selects vendors through tendering or price
negotiations. During the procurement process, priority
will be given to those suppliers that offer a more
favorable price for a product of the same quality and
also regular suppliers that have passed the Group’s
yearly examination.

Input from multiple departments is tapped during the
acceptance inspection and quality control process to
more effectively control the quality of goods and
services. To confirm the quality of purchased goods,
joint acceptance inspection is conducted by the
procurement department and also the relevant
department that will use the goods. This is
supplemented by quality feedbacks during use. For
service projects, the safety, environmental protection,
production, supervision and other relevant departments
will submit their feedback onsite. A timely feedback
system is implemented to receive information feedback
during the process. Feedback and processing results
are filed for review and integrated into yearly business
evaluations.

To guarantee the overall quality of suppliers, the Group
organizes an annual assessment of suppliers, based on
their performance of contracts, standards and quality
system certification, health, safety, environmental
protection and other qualifications. The Group will issue
warnings to or remove suppliers who have failed the
assessment. The Group implements a dynamic
management system of registered suppliers and any
supplier who demonstrates serious non-compliance
during the business collaboration or fails the
assessment will be dismissed.

Product responsibility

No information is disclosed as the indicators are not
applicable to the industry to which the Group belongs.
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(3) Anti-corruption

The Group has formulated and implemented policies
such as the “Internal Audit System of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, the “Audit System for Management
Departures of MIE Holdings Corporation”, and " Special
Audit (Interim) Policies of MIE Holdings Corporation”
and distributed them to employees in 2015 in order to
standardize the operation and management of the
Group, strengthen internal control and audit
supervision, ensure the safety and integrity of the
Group’s property and materials, and ensure the smooth
achievement of the Group’s objectives, provide
reasonable guarantees for use of objective, truthful and
effective management information by all levels of
management, ensure that the business activities of
various departments and units are carried out in
accordance with the operating principles and policies of
the Group and reduce operational risks and improve
performance.

Whistleblowing, as one of the sources of information in
the audit plan, is set out as part of the “Internal Audit
System of MIE Holdings Corporation”. Whistleblowing
methods includes correspondences, visits, telephone
calls and internet submissions and the above-
mentioned policy specifies the reporting hotline and
email, and is distributed as a management policy
among all employees for study and comprehension.

In 2016, the Group did not receive any reports of crimes
such as duty-related crimes, bribery, extortion,
blackmail, fraud and money laundering. According to
the audit plan, the business operation department
conducted a management investigation of
correspondences and records, the expense
management audit of Gobi Energy Company and other
audits. It was found in the audit that the archive
deadline, archive directory, archive person in charge
and relevant ledgers needed to be improved upon, and
the control exercised over expenses incurred or
approved by the general manager of the project was
insufficient. Relevant responsible persons and
departments have been organized in line with the
internal audit process for rectifications.

The Group takes an interest in the spiritual and cultural life of
its employees and has organized a series of cultural and
recreational activities including hiking, badminton, autumn
outings and sports games which have been well received by
employees. The Chinese New Year condolence activities
were implemented and efforts were made to improve the
working environment for staff, staff dorms, a canteen, and an
activity room was provided and tea parties were held
together with local villagers in villages where the Group has
operations.
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Overview

2016 marked a volatile year in the oil markets with oil prices hitting
multi-year lows in February before rising and stabilizing above
US$50/bbl as OPEC stepped in towards the end of the year with a
commitment to cut production. The dramatic swings in crude oil
prices reverberated around the world, prompting changes in both
government spending and private sector investment.

Despite the challenging environment, we are pleased with the
achievements made in managing and lowering our costs and the
adaptability exhibited in executing our FY2016 work program. In
particular, lifting costs in our China oilfields dropped 12.4% to
US$8.31/bbl and the production was also stabilized at a better than
expected declined rate, while those of Emir Qil project in
Kazakhstan decreased 38.5% to US$2.25/bbl. The Group drilled
total of 2 new wells in FY2016, in line with our original guidance,
while work on Emir-Oil’s Central Processing Facility(“CPF")
completion was been deferred based on mutual agreement made
between the shareholders. As of December 31, 2016, the Group
operated a total of 2,610 wells, of which, 2,605 are located in China
and 5 in the USA. In terms of overall overhead, the total headcount
of the Group was reduced from approximately 1,700 as of year-
end 2015 to 1,387 as of year-end 2016.

During 2016, the Group divested its stake in Asia Gas & Energy Ltd
and a 60% stake in Palaeontol B.V. while acquiring a 37.4% stake
in Journey Energy Inc. a Canada listed company and a 34% stake
in PetroBroad Copower Limited (“PetroBroad”), a contractor with
China National Offshore Oil Company (“CNOOC") who operates a
production sharing contract in the South China Sea . Following the
acquisition and divestment exercises of the Group, based on the
year-end 2016 oil and gas reserves and resources estimates
prepared by independent consultants, the Group's
Proved+Probable (“2P”) oil and gas reserves were 75.1 million
BOE, representing a 45% decrease from year-end 2015. The
decrease in the Group’s 2P oil and gas reserves is largely
attributable to the Group’s asset sales.
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The following table provides a recap of the Group’s key DI F 244 B =& — /N 4E 2 4F 1Y B 8 2 8
operational metrics and product prices for the FY2016: 1

FY2016 FY2015 % Change 2016 Guidance
20164 20154 v (4741 2016 451

Average Daily Gross Production H Y S s e =

(barrels of oil equivalent/day) (& &, K) 18,359 20,430 (10.1)% -
Average Daily Net Production H X3 S e

(barrels of oil equivalent/day) (% &, K) 10,184 11,153 (8.7)% -
Average Daily Net Oil Production H ) J5 i &

(barrels/day) (#h,/K) 9,241 10,153 (9.0)% 9,240-10,540
Average Daily Net Gas Production H ) R IR AT =

(Mcf/day) (FFHERK) 5,663 6,002 (5.6)% 6,100-7,100
Total Wells Drilled RS () 2 3 (33.3)% 2
Notes: A -

(1) For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent is calculated using the (1) BLJEARE & 57 6 T 14 37 J5 96 RO IR =14l S ik

conversion factor of 6 Mscf of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel of oil ROHRSE LU DEATRH A 2 R W
(2) Gross Production means total production from all assets of the Group (2) MER=FEMESEAHNAEER
(3)  Net Production means entitled production from all assets of the Group (3) TRAEE=ALEALESTEH PRl A

(4) Only consider first 11 months of FY2016 for Emir-Qil since 60% of equity has (4) 20164711 H %9 > K Emir-Oil J8 H 60% ik 3 &
been sold during November 2016. R F-ANE—HES

The following table is the summary of the expenditures incurred DA FRARSEE —F—NEEEA MWL - B
in our exploration, development and production activities for &4 3¢ Y FE A8 B -
FY2016:

Production/

Exploration Development operating
(millions of RMB) expenditures  expenditures  expenditures
(NR¥HET) LS & P S i A A
China Onshore Projects (Daan, Moliging) hFEIEE (k% > EHE) - 14 102
Kazakhstan (Emir-Oil)™" WA T Tt 3H 77 3 30
USA (Condor) B (Condor) - - 4
Total At 77 17 136

Note: W

(1) Only consider first 11 months of FY2016 for Emir-Qil since 60% of equity has (1) 2016 4E i 11 H ¥ d% > K Emir-Oil T8 H 60% Ik 13 £
been sold during November 2016. RoF—RNET—HE -
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China Operations
Oil Projects (Jilin Province: Daan, Moliqing)

During FY2016, total gross operated production for our two
China oil projects, Daan and Moliqing, decreased 12.0% to
14,031 BOPD, as compared to FY2015. Total net production
allocated to the Group decreased by 12.2% to 5,872 BOPD,
which is within the 2016 annual guidance range of 5,600-
6,300 BOPD. In line with the decline in global crude oil prices,
the average realized Daqing oil price averaged approximately
US$36.73/bbl for FY2016, representing a decrease of 21.3%
year-on-year, compared to US$46.65 for FY2015.

Based on the Group’s strategic scale back of capital
expenditures (“Capex”), no new wells were drilled for the
China oil projects in FY2016. Total net Capex relating to
sidetrack horizontal wells, converting development wells to
injection wells and other surface engineering incurred was
US$4 million.

Direct lifting costs for Daan and Moliging decreased US$1.18/
barrel, or 12.4%, from US$9.49/barrel for FY2015 to US$8.31/
barrel for FY2016 as a result of lower transportation and staff
costs costs, as well as enhanced operational efficiency and
maintenance scheduling adjustments.

EBITDA per barrel for our Northeast China projects decreased
by US$9.21/barrel, or 29.1%, from US$31.66/barrel for FY2015
to US$22.45/barrel for FY2016. The decline in EBITDA per
barrel was primarily due to the drop in average realized oil
price, which was partially offset by the decrease in direct
lifting cost.

Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Oil)

During the 11 months of 2016, gross oil production for Emir-
Qil decreased to 3,328 BOPD, 2.5% lower as compared to
FY2015, and below the 2016 annual guidance range of 3,600-
4,200 BOPD. Gross gas production decreased 5.0% to 5,598
MSCF/day during the first 11 months of 2016, which is also
below the 2016 annual guidance of 6,000-7,000 MSCF/day.
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For the first 11 months of 2016, the average realized oil price
for Emir-Oil was US$34.85/barrel (FY2015: US$43.95/barrel),
with export sales comprising 86% of total sales volume
(FY2015: 88%). The average realized export price was
US$38.39/barrel (FY2015: US$48.41/barrel) while the average
realized domestic price was US$13.25/barrel (FY2015:
US$12.02/barrel). Average realized gas price was US$0.78/
MSCF (FY2015: US$0.95/MSCF).

The direct lifting cost for Emir-Qil decreased by US$1.41/
barrel, or 38.5%, from US$3.66/barrel for FY2015 to US$2.25/
barrel for the first 11 months of 2016. The decrease in lifting
cost was primarily due to the operation of higher efficiency
wells, reduction in administrative expenses, depreciation of
Tenge and higher operational efficiencies.

EBITDA per barrel for the export sales oil of Emir-Oil
increased by US$8.74/barrel, or 437%, from US$2.00/barrel
for FY2015 to US$10.74/barrel for the first 11 months of 2016.
The EBITDA per barrel for the domestic sales oil of Emir-Oil
increased by US$9.70/barrel, or 184%, from US$(5.29)/barrel
for FY2015 to US$4.42/barrel for the first 11 months of 2016.
Weighted average EBITDA per barrel for Emir-Oil increased
by US$9.08/barrel, or 1681%, from US$0.54/barrel for FY2015
to US$9.62/barrel for the first 11 months of 2016. The
increase in EBITDA per barrel was primarily due to the
decrease in taxes, distribution and administrative expense
and employee compensation costs, as well as lower lifting
costs.

In FY2016, Emir-Oil completed 2 exploration wells,
Dolinnoe-8 and Yessen-3, as per the requirements under its
exploration license. Logs of both wells indicate oil and gas
shows, and plans are for these wells to be tested in 2017.
Total Capex for Emir-Qil incurred in FY2016 amounted to
about US$12 million, which was mainly related to the drilling
of the two wells. As agreed between both shareholders, work
on Emir-QOil’s CPF construction has been deferred.

In January 2017, Emir-Oil and the Kazakhstan Ministry of
Energy executed an agreement extending the expiration date
of the Aksaz-Dolinnoe-Emir-Kariman (“ADEK"”) Exploration
Contract by three years to January 9, 2020. Under the terms
of the contract extension, Emir-Qil will have to drill 6
exploration wells. Based on incremental reserves and
resources attributable to prior exploration work within the
ADEK area, the Group is excited about the upside potential
provided by this exploration contract extension.
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USA Operations (Condor) and Others

There were no drilling activities during FY2016 in our US
business. The Group’s subsidiary, Condor Energy
Technology LLC (“Condor”), operates 5 horizontal wells in
the Niobrara project. For FY2016, the average daily operated
oil and gas production was 563BOPD and 81 MSCF/day, net oil
and gas production was 41 BOPD and 65 MSCF/day,
respectively. Average realized oil and gas price was
US$37.77/barrel and US$2.30/MSCF, respectively.

Below are the highlights of the oil and gas reserves and resources
review results for the Group at year-end 2016, as conducted by
independent consultants:

1.

Comparing with year-end 2015, the Group total net Proved
(“1P") oil and gas reserves as of year-end 2016 decreased by
28% to 37.0 million barrels of oil equivalents (“BOE"), while
total net Proved + Probable (“2P") oil and gas reserves
decreased 45% to 75.1 million BOE, and total net Proved +
Probable + Possible (“3P"”) oil and gas reserves decreased
48% to 93.5 million BOE.

The Group’s net 1P oil reserves for 2016 decreased 35% to
29.1 million barrels, while 2P net oil reserves decreased 49%
to 62.1 million barrels and 3P net oil reserves decreased 51%
to 78.9 million barrels respectively. The decrease in 1P net oil
reserves, which is 16.02 million barrels, reflects the combined
impact of the Group’s 2016 total net oil production of 3.27
million barrels, plus the divestment of 60% interest in Emir-
Qil, and the Group’s greatly reduced drilling program in 2016
for the China oilfields and Emir-Oil.

Decreases in reserves are partially offset by the Group’s
acquisition during 2016 of a 37.4% stake in Journey Energy
Inc. (“Journey”), a Canadian exploration and production
company. Journey has gross 1P oil and gas reserves as of
year-end 2016 of 30.1 million BOE, and gross 2P oil and gas
reserves of 47.8 million BOE. On this basis, the Group’s net
share of reserves in Journey is 11.3 million BOE for 1P oil
and gas reserves and 17.9 million BOE for 2P oil and gas
reserves respectively.
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4. Based on the year-end 2016 reserves estimates reviewed by 4.  fR4EE v BI04 R > ZHB10%

the independent consultants, the net present value, before
tax and discounted at 10% (“NPV10”), of the Group Net 2P
oil and gas reserves is approximately US$881 million, which
represents a 46% decrease from the NPV10 of US$1.64 billion
reported at year-end 2015. This decrease is in line with the
continued low oil price environment and strategic asset sales

completed by the Group.

The following were the prices used to determine the reserves and
resources at the year-end of FY2015 and FY2016:

Segment

I 35

China — Gobi Energy/Riyadh
Energy

U — e IR

BiATAE BLRHEAT RIS - AREER 2016 4F
7K 2P I SR B OB AT BLE (NPV10) 29
5 8.811%3%E 7T » i 20154E K1Y 16.4 1%
EICW A T 46% o a M D B R
) 70 R A B [ R 1 R B A R B
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IR RMEE & — AR K F - NERRE

BB IR =T I EAE

Basin FY2015 FY2016

&t 20154 )& 2016 4k

Songliao/Jiayi Escalated price profile based on Escalated price profile based on
average price projections price projections published by
published by Sproule and Moody’s Analytics for WTI Crude.
McDaniel and Associates An average differential for 2016
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for between WTI Cushing Spot and
WTI Crude (US$45/bbl for FY2016 Daging of -$5.94 was used. The
and escalating thereafter). A differential is assumed to remain
US$2.55/bbl differential between  constant in the future. Gas price
Daqing and WTI was applied to for Moliging is set by CNPC and is
this average price projection. assumed to not be escalated.

/R e AMFENAA Sproule & H BRABH AT HT A0 A 1) W5 it 8 6 781

McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd 2016 4% 1 H A% f
WITH 5 iy e (B A% 00 9 - 24 {5
(20164118 /453 00 /Ml » 2 455
B ETR) o IS S TE R R B
WTI it 2 [# 2,55 % ot/ M fE 2
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Segment

I 5K

Kazakhstan — Emir-Qil

W % S TH — Emir-Oil

US-Condor

¥ — Condor

Basin

i)

Mangistau

Mangistau

Niobrara

Niobrara

FY2015
20154 K

Export oil at escalated price profile
based on average price projections
published by Sproule and
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for
Brent Crude (US$46.25/bbl for
FY2016 and escalating thereafter).
Domestic oil price forecast based
on actual domestic sales price per
relationship with Brent and trend
related year 2014 and 2015.
Domestic gas price based on
actual sales prices net of VAT in
2015 (US$0.85/MSCF).

A TR B A 4 I 2 K A b A
Sproule & McDaniel and
Associates Consultants Ltd 2016 4F
17 A A7 R T R AE R T
¥ -2 fE i (2016 47T 18 £ 46.25 3%
JC/ W Z AR LR) o RS R
fE K% 4 2014 71 2015 4F (49 85 J5 0l il 17
R I A9 (B AR BAMR B3 o g
1B ¥ 2015 4 5 BR 81 5 (A T BR 34 (B
Bi(0.85%7c,/ TLHER)

Escalated price profile based on
average price projections
published by Sproule and
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd (January 2016) for
WTI (US$45/bbl for FY2016 and
escalating thereafter). Appropriate
oil and gas price offsets were
determined by examining
Condor’s current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has
actually received.
& KA MRS 7 Sproule &
McDaniel and Associates
Consultants Ltd 201641 H A 1
T L 5% 0B 4% 300 ) P 24 i A
(2016 4Fil 18 /3 45 3800/ H » 2 5%
 1HR) o @A Condor H i JRIH
TR RS 5 ok » o7 PR SR 1
PABAS - e T8 1 TR A KSR B
R

FY2016
2016 4 )i

Export oil at escalated price profile
based on price projections
published by Moody’s Analytics
for Brent Crude which has been
estimated to be $58.00/Stock Tank
Barrel in 2017. Domestic oil price
reduced by VAT 12% resulting in
$17.98/Stock Tank Barrel in 2017.
The price is forecast to gradually
increase related to Brent price.
Domestic gas price $0.77/MSCF
has been utilized for solution gas
sales and assumed to be constant
throughout the report.
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Escalated price profile based on
price projections published by
Moody’s Analytics. Appropriate oil
and gas price offsets were
determined by examining
Condor’s current oil and gas sales
contracts and comparing them to
historical prices Condor has
actually received. The realized
price is estimated to be $48.46/
Stock Tank Barrel in 2017.
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Segment Basin FY2015 FY2016

1384 fi 2015 4F ik 2016 4%
Canada — Journey Western Canadian - Forecast pricing used is the

average of the published price
forecasts for GLJ Petroleum
Consultants Ltd., Sproule
Associates Ltd. and McDaniel &
Associates Consultants Ltd. as at
December 31, 2016. It is estimated
to be $55.00/Stock Tank Barrel WTI
Cushing Oklahoma in 2017.

&k — Journey TNERPGER - TE HME A R RS GLI A B A PR A
7l > Sproule fl McDaniel = Z##12A
H# 2016412 A 31 H AT K EHE TH
BT T-3(H - 2017 4 WTI IR B 5i 1
o7 55 JEUIH B /£ 55.00,/ 4

The following is our preliminary guidance for FY2017. The Group Ml FEAEMN ~F—LFEEMLNIES] > &M
will closely monitor the situation and we may revise our work & 78 F 1 AR 5 B 5% 1 15 0 54 b 9 3 R AP A9 T4
program as warranted in a timely fashion, based on changes in oil  #F#1 o TS A58 BEAY 15 B IR A
prices. We believe it is very important to maintain a high degree of  #H{ %2 FIBE S KB A I IEFEE -
flexibility in order to ensure the stability and profitability of our

business in this current volatile oil price environment.

Group Net
Capex
Numbers of Investment
Interest (%) Wells (Gross) (millions of US$)  Net Production Comments
EHEAR
W R
HE# (%) BB (4) (A¥#K) JER iR
China Onshore Projects 90% 17 $17  5,500-6,000 BOPD . 15 wells in Daan
(Daan, Moliging) o 2 wells in Moliging
o e 9 90% 17 $17  5,500-6,000%% /K o REI503
(K%~ ZHF) . HEF20H
China Offshore Project 34% - - -
(28/03 Block)
TR LI H (28/03 i) 34% - - -
Canada 33.6% 14 - 3,394-3,528 BOED
(Journey Energy) (49% liquids)
&K (Journey Energy) 33.6% 14 - 3,394-3528f % & /K (49%i%)
USA (Condor) 100% - - 30 BOPD 50 MCFD
3 (Condor) 100% - - 308/ KB0 T HHR /K
Group Total 31 $17  8,932-9,566 BOED
o [ 4l 31 $17  8,932-9,566 i # & K
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The Group’s management and shareholders approved the disposal
of 60% equity interest in PBV on June 20, 2016. Emir-Qil, which is
located in Kazakhstan, is the 100% wholly-owned subsidiary of
PBV (collectively, the “PBV Group”). The Kazakhstan operation is
recognized as a disposal group and discontinued operation as at
December 31, 2016, as Emir-Qil represents the business in
Kazakhstan segment, which is a major line of business of the
Group. Emir-Oil’s operating results from the Kazakhstan operation
were recorded as a loss for the period from discontinued
operations, and were not included in the results of continuing
operations.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is generated from sales of oil and gas
products and rendering of technical services.

The Group’s revenue from sales of oil and gas decreased by
RMB189.2 million, or 26.5%, from RMB713.5 million for 2015 to
RMB524.3 million for 2016.

This decrease was mainly due to the significant drop in crude oil
prices over 2016 as well as the decrease of the Group’s overall
sales volumes. Average realized oil price was US$36.74 per barrel
for 2016, compared to US$46.6 per barrel for 2015. The Group's
total crude oil sales volume was 2.14 million barrels for 2016,
compared to 2.46 million barrels for 2015.

The Group’s revenue from rendering of technical services is
RMB10.6 million for 2016.

o China

Revenue from our China oil fields decreased from RMB707.1
for 2015 to RMB 519.6 million for 2016. The average realized
oil price was US$36.73 per barrel for 2016, compared to
US$46.65 per barrel for 2015. Our sales volume was 2.12
million barrels for 2016, compared to 2.44 million barrels for
2015.

] North America

In 2016, our North America oil fields realized revenue from
crude oil sales of RMB3.9 million. The average realized oil
price was US$37.77 per barrel, with sales volume of 15,328
barrels. In 2015, our North America oil fields realized revenue
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from crude oil sales of RMB5.1 million. For 2015, the average
realized oil price was US$40.68 per barrel, with sales volume
of 20,085 barrels.

Our North America operations realized revenue from gas
sales of RMBO0.2 million, with a realized gas price of US$2.30
per MSCF and total gas sales volume of 13,981 MSCF for
2016. In 2015, revenue from gas sales of RMB0.3 million was
recorded from realized gas price of US$2.61 per MSCF and
total gas sales volume of 20,124 MSCF.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

The Group’s depreciation, depletion and amortization decreased
by RMB156.3 million, or 30.0%, from RMB520.2 million for 2015 to
RMB363.9 million for 2016. The decrease in depreciation, depletion
and amortization was mainly due to: (i) the decrease in sales and
production volumes in 2016; (ii) RMB763.8 million and RMB153.3
million impairment provision for the oil and gas properties made
in 2015 and in 2016 decreased the net book value and depreciable
amount of the company’s property, plant and equipment.

Taxes other than income taxes

The Group's taxes other than income taxes decreased by RMB9.9
million, or 42.5%, from RMB23.3 million for 2015 to RMB13.4
million for 2016. The following table summarizes taxes other than
income taxes for 2016 and 2015:
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China

The Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (“MOF")
announced that the threshold of the special oil income levy was
revised from US$55 to US$65 per barrel, effective from January 1,
2015. As no sales were realized at or above US$65 per barrel
during 2016, no special oil levy was incurred for our China
oilfields.

Corporate
Withholding Tax

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on interest
charged on intercompany loans.

Employee compensation costs

The Group’s employee compensation costs decreased RMB10.5
million, or 7.3%, from RMB143.8 million for 2015 to RMB133.3
million for 2016. The decrease in employee compensation costs
was primarily due to (i) a reduction of headcount during 2016
which caused wages, salaries and allowances to decrease by
RMB4.5 million; and (ii) a decrease in stock appreciation right
liabilities of RMB11.2 million as a result of lower share price at the
year-end.

Purchases, services and other expenses

Our purchases, services and other expenses decreased RMB15.4
million, or 12.7%, from RMB121.0 million for 2015 to RMB105.6
million for 2016. The decrease in purchase, services and other
expenses was primarily due to the decrease in production and
sales during 2016.

Distribution expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses decreased RMB2.3 million, or
11.2%, from RMB20.5 million in 2015 to RMB18.2 million in 2016.
The decrease in distribution expenses was primarily due to the
decrease in sales during 2016.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses decreased
RMB31.5 million, or 31.8%, from RMB99.2 million for 2015 to
RMBG67.7 million for 2016. The decrease in administrative expenses
was primarily due to consulting fee of RMB9.9 million, technical
services fee of RMB7.6 million and legal fee of RMB4.5 million for
potential project acquisition in 2015.
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Impairment charges

Due to significant lower global oil prices in 2016, the Group
recognized: (i) impairment charge amounting to RMB150.3 million
and RMB3.0 million on the long-live assets (including mineral
extractions rights) relating to assets in the PRC and North America
respectively, to reflect their carrying value to the respective
estimated recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use;
and (ii) an impairment charge amounting to RMB81.3 million on
the investment in PetroBroad.

Other (losses)/income

The Group incurred other income of RMB297.8 million for 2016,
compared to other loss of RMB47.9 million for 2015. Other income
for 2016 arose primarily from: (i) gain on disposal of AGE of
RMB526.1 million in July 2016; (ii) gains arising from acquisition
of Journey of RMB29.8 million; (iii) provision for bad debts of
RMB252.8 million due to long aging receivables and less
collectibility; and (iv) losses on derivative financial instruments of
RMB19.6 million. Other loss for 2015 includes mainly: (i) provision
for bad debts of RMB84.4 million; (ii) gain on acquisition of Condor
20% equity interest and debt restructure between Condor ,
PEDEVCO Corp. and MIE Jurassic Energy Corporation of RMB29.4
million.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group’s finance income decreased by RMB2.1 million, or
10.7%, from RMB19.6 million for 2015 to RMB17.5 million for 2016.

Finance cost decreased by RMB37.4 million, or 8.5%, from
RMB441.4 million for 2015 to RMB404.0 million for 2016.

Share of profit of associate

The Group holds a 34.0% interest in PetroBroad which was
purchased in May 2016, 37.4% interest in Journey which was
purchased in September 2016, and 40.0% in PBV (60.0% of which
was sold in November 2016). These investments are accounted for
as associates by the Group and our share of profit of amounted to
RMB35.7 million in 2016.
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Share of loss of joint ventures

The Group held a 51% interest in SGE before July 2016. This
investment was accounted for as a joint venture by the Group and
our share of loss of SGE decreased for the period from RMB26.6
million in 2015 to RMB3.4 million for January to July 2016. This is
mainly due to lower losses incurred by SGE as SGE realized pilot
gas sales in 2016.

Loss before income tax

The Group’s loss before income tax was RMB458.0 million for
2016, compared to the loss before income tax of RMB1,467.3
million for 2015. This was primarily due to the cumulative effects
of the above factors.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of RMB147.2 million
for 2016, compared to an income tax credit of RMB121.1 million
for 2015. This change was primarily due to (i) the tax from the gain
on disposal of Pan-China Resources Ltd. in 2014 and AGE in 2016
of RMB63.8 million and RMB54.1 million respectively; and (ii) the
increase in loss before income tax in 2016. The effective tax rate
for 2016 is -32% compared to an effective tax rate for 2015 of 8%.

Loss for the year from continuing operations

As a result of the foregoing, our net loss for 2016 was RMB605.1
million, compared to a net loss of RMB1,346.1 million for 2015.

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

The Group’s net loss for 2016 from discontinued operations was
RMB717.1 million, representing the net loss from our Kazakhstan
operations, which is recognized as a disposal group and
discontinued operation, compared to the net loss of RMB179.1
million for 2015. This change was primarily due to: (i) loss from
disposal of 60% equity interest in PBV of RMB358.7 million; (ii)
impairment of oil & gas property and intangible assets of
RMB335.6 million for 2016, compared to the RMB233.9 million for
2015; and (iii) a foreign exchange gain of RMB85 million recorded
in 2015 as net result of the devaluation of the Tenge.

Loss for the year

The Group's net loss for 2016 was RMB1,322.2 million, compared
to the net loss of RMB1,525.3 million for 2015.
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We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to
profit for 2016, our most directly comparable financial
performance calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS.
EBITDA refers to earnings before finance income, finance costs,
income tax and depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted
EBITDA refers to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash and non-
recurring items such as share-based compensation expense,
assets impairment loss, losses from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instrument, bad debt provision, geological and
geophysical expense, withholding tax arising from intercompany
loan, gains from investment in available for sale financial assets,
gains on write-off payables, gains arising from acquisition of an
associate and any other non-cash or non-recurring income/
expenses.

The Group's adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group's recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cash flow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted
EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or construed as
alternatives to profit from operations or any other measure of
performance or as an indicator of our operating performance or
profitability. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for
corporate tax, finance income, finance costs and other non-
operating cash expenses. EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not
consider any functional or legal requirements of the business that
may require us to conserve and allocate funds for any purposes.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations to loss before income
tax from continuing operations for the years ended December 31,

2016 and December 31, 2015:

Loss before income tax from
continuing operations
Finance income
Finance costs
Depreciation, depletion and amortization

EBITDA from continuing operations

Value of employee services under stock
options schemes

Assets impairment loss

Losses from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Bad debt provision of receivables,
advances, PPE

Geological and geophysical expense
— Share of SGE

Withholding tax

Gains from investment in available for sale
financial assets

Gains on write-off payables

Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Gains arising from acquisition of
an associate

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing
operations

The Group generated EBITDA of RMB292.3 million for 2016,
compared to the RMB(525.2) million EBITDA for 2015. The increase
in EBITDA in 2016 was primarily due to: (i) gain on disposal of
AGE of RMB526.1 million in 2016; (ii) gains arising from
acquisition of an associate of RMB29.8 million; which was offset
by: (i) decrease in impairment loss for our oil & gas properties and
intangible assets from RMB763.8 million for 2015 to RMB153.3
million for 2016; and (ii) decrease in share of loss of investment
accounted for using the equity method from RMB26.6 million for

2015 to RMB3.4 million for 2016.

TR E I B B A4S EBITDA B 48 i 48 A 46
HEBITDAREE —FE—RF+_H=+—H
K= F—HE+-H=Z+—HILFEEZFHHZE
ERUAF R R A B R o

Year Ended December 31,
gE+_HA=1+—HIL4EE

2016 2015
“E N CE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANR¥T 0
FRE R E BT 1R
(457,981) (1,467,259)
BB WA (17,490) (19,610)
%52 403,951 441,384
Yrgs > Prre ke 363,860 520,239
Frf 8 4% EBITDA 292,340 (525,246)
JBE A3 T 4 B S
27,990 22,098
B R (E TR R 234,667 765,014
LA SEER R BB A CE B
SREEBK 19,595 -
JRE AL > At M ik % [ o e R
PN 252,756 84,447
B BRI BA S — A PR
A58 53 1,227 15,934
RIDAEEL 10,647 18,781
At A 4 R 7 BT Y i 2R
= (1,363)
B I AT AR K Ul 25 = (29,387)
BB A AN R (526,132) -
W B W 7 A W) AR
(29,798) -
KPR 4% EBITDA
283,292 350,278

AME [ F— S BB A FE B EBITDA #) N R
2923t ML - - MBEFEENHAR
¥ (5.252) T o —E— N BB 4E Y EBITDA
AR TS B AR ¢ (i) 2016 4F BRI R AR S0
IR EW LA NRNEB.2611 5 (i) W& A
FIAE N R 2,980 T 5 I H K () R E
B I I P AR K 2015 4E A K 7,638 i
T A N 1.633 48T 5 (i) MRS A AT
BEIR LA EEH 2015 AR % 2,660 # T %2
2016 AR %340 BT -

2016 F iR



The Group’s adjusted EBITDA decreased by approximately
RMB67.0 million, or 19.1%, from approximately RMB350.3 million
for 2015 to approximately RMB283.3 million for 2016. The
decrease in adjusted EBITDA was also primarily due to the
decrease in realized oil price and sales volume.

The Group’s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing
operations by operating segment are set out below:
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Loss before income tax from
continuing operations

Finance income

Finance costs

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

EBITDA from continuing
operations

Value of employee services
under stock options schemes

Assets impairment loss

Bad debt provision of
receivables, advances

Geological and geophysical
expense — Share of SGE

Withholding tax

Income from bond investment

Gains on write-off payables

Adjusted EBITDA from
continuing operations

Overview

The Group’s primary sources of cash during 2016 were cash
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generated from investing activities.

In 2016, we had net cash used in operating activities of RMB370.9 -
million, net cash generated from investing activities of RMB1,790.7
million, net cash used in financing activities of RMB750.3 million,
an exchange gain on cash and cash equivalent of RMB32.4 million,
and a net increase in cash and cash equivalent of RMB669.6

million.
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Cash used in/generated from operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities was RMB370.9 million in the
year ended December 31, 2016. In the year ended December 31,
2016, our net cash used in operating activities included loss before
income tax of RMB458.0 million adjusted for, depreciation,
depletion and amortization of RMB363.9 million, net interest
expenses of RMB362.6 million, provision for bad debt of RMB252.8
million, gains arising from acquisition of Journey of RMB29.8,
employee share option of RMB28.0 million, share of loss from
investments in associates of RMB35.7 million, exchange loss of
RMB23.9 million, impairment charge of RMB234.7 million, loss on
oil hedge options of RMB19.6 million, which was offset by gains
on disposal of AGE of RMB526.1 million. The cash movements
from changes in working capital which included increase in trade
and other payables of RMB65.5 million, an increase in trade and
other receivables of RMB123.0 million and an increase in
inventories of RMB4.6 million, and interest paid of RMB383.0
million and income tax paid of RMB69.6 million, and net cash used
in discontinued operations of RMB81.1 million.

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB326.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2015. In the year ended
December 31, 2015, our net cash generated in operating activities
included loss before income tax of RMB1,467.3 million adjusted
for, depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB520.2 million,
net interest expenses of RMB387.7 million, provision for bad debt
of RMB84.4 million, employee share option of RMB22.1 million,
share of loss from investments in joint ventures of RMB26.6
million, exchange loss of RMB34.0 million, impairment charge of
RMB765.0 million, offset by gains on write-off payables of
RMB29.4 million. The cash movements from changes in working
capital which included decrease in trade and other payables of
RMB161.4 million, a decrease in trade and other receivables of
RMB298.6 million and a decrease in inventories of RMBO0.1 million,
and interest paid of RMB337.9 million and income tax paid of
RMB9.1 million, and net cash generated from discontinued
operations of RMB192.2 million.

Cash generated from/used in investing activities

Net cash generated from investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2016 amounted to RMB1,790.7 million, as a result of
receipts of proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries of RMB2,283.7
million, decrease in restricted cash of RMB462.6 million, and
interest received of RMB20.2 million, which was offset by
purchases of property, plant and equipment of RMB21.6 million,
increase in financial assets of RMB96.4 million, loan and deposit
to third parties of RMB375.0 million, contribution and loans to/
acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method of
RMB277.0 million, and net cash used in discontinued operations
of RMB205.7 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2015 amounted to RMB1,124.4 million, as a result of purchases
of property, plant and equipment of RMB249.6 million, deposit
paid to third parties of RMB48.5 million, contribution and loans to/
acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method of
RMB186.1 million, increase in restricted cash of RMB324.1 million,
net cash outflow from discontinued operations of RMB390.1
million, offset by proceeds from disposal of RMB45.2 million,
decrease in financial assets of RMB28.3 million, and interest
received of RMBO0.065 million.

Cash used in/generated from financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities in the year ended December
31, 2016 amounted to RMB750.3 million primarily due to: (i)
repayments of borrowings of RMB930.2 million, (ii) payments
relating to share-based compensation of RMB63.7 million, (iii)
payment for repurchase and cancellation of 2019 Notes RMB110.7
million, (iv) cash paid to non-controlling interest for additional
interest in subsidiary of RMB103.9 million, (v) financing expenses
and others of RMB33.2 million, offset by proceeds from
borrowings of RMB491.5 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2015 amounted to RMB298.0 million primarily due
to: (i) proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares of RMB200.0
million, (ii) proceeds from borrowings of RMB512.8 million; and
offset by:(i) payments relating to share-based compensation
RMB28.7 million, (ii) repayments of borrowings of RMB360.1
million, (iii) financing expenses and others of RMB25.9 million.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings and Senior
Notes amounted to approximately RMB4,690.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB263.5 million as
compared to December 31, 2015. Among which, borrowings
repayable within one year amounted to approximately RMB104.0
million, representing a decrease of RMB425.9 million as compared
to December 31, 2015. All of the Group’s bank borrowings and
Senior Notes are denominated in RMB and United States Dollars.
The Group’s bank borrowings and Senior Notes are all at fixed
interest rates. No hedging instruments are used for bank
borrowings and Senior Notes.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased from 68.2% as at
December 31, 2015 to 85.5% as at December 31, 2016, principally
due to a decrease in equity.

Our total borrowings to Adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined
as total borrowings divided by Adjusted EBITDA increased from
14.14 as at December 31, 2015 to 16.56 as at December 31, 2016.
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Market Risks

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
prices and exchange rates.

Oil price risk

Our realized oil prices are determined by reference to oil prices in
the international market, changes in international oil prices will
have a significant impact on us. Unstable and highly volatile
international oil prices may have a significant impact on our
revenue and profit. During 2016, the Group entered into oil hedge
options contracts to manage its price risk.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US
dollars, while production and other expenses in China are incurred
in RMB. The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is
regulated by the PRC government. Limitations on foreign
exchange transactions imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or
historical exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Kazakhstan subsidiary is in US
dollars and all export sales are in US dollars. The transactions of
the Kazakhstan subsidiary which are denominated in the
Kazakhstan Tenge are exposed to fluctuations in the US dollars
and Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rate. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations or the fluctuations between the US dollar and
Kazakhstan Tenge exchange rates, and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the Group’s results of
operations or financial position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

The Group currently does not engage in hedging activities
designed or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The
Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best
preserve the Group’s cash value.

As at December 31, 2016, a bank loan in the sum of RMB104.0
million was secured by the Group’s trade receivable of RMB84.7
million. On March 24, 2017, the Group repaid the loan in full.
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On December 16, 2016, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with Boston-Power, Inc., (the “Borrower”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to grant a loan of US$30 million to the
Borrower for a term of six months at an interest rate of 9% per
annum. Subsequent to December 31, 2016 and up to the date of
this announcement, US$30 million was drawn by the Borrower.
The loan is secured by a pledge over 50% of the shareholding of
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Borrower.

Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated December 19, 2016.

As at December 31, 2016, the Company had 1,387 employees, with
1,371 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong), 11 based in
Kazakhstan and five based in USA. There have been no material
changes to the information disclosed in the Annual Report 2015 in
respect of the remuneration of employees, remuneration policies
and staff development.

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with Sinopec for
exploration and development of the Shengli oilfield in Shandong
Province. In 2000, MIE began the trial-development phase of its
operations at the Shengli oilfield and drilled a dry hole. The project
has been suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE
requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the project at the
Shengli oilfield. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter from
Sinopec denying the request to restart the project and seeking to
terminate the PSC on the grounds that the extension period of the
trial-development phase had expired and MIE had not met its
investment commitment of at least USD2 million under the PSC.
MIE believes its investment in the project at Shengli oilfield had
met the required commitment amount under the PSC. The PSC
with Sinopec has not been formally terminated and the dispute
has not entered any judicial proceedings.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended December 31, 2016 (2015: NIL).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEETWR D (&)

AUDIT COMMITTEE wHREEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Group’'s AN GFHFEZE SO HEAEREE _F—N
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 4+ H =+—HEEN S A5G HE (LI
2016 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and A HFr B AU 5B » Wil AL F KR
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters 3% il & B H 8 25 =5 BT 4T 5035 o

of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of MIE Holdings Corporation
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 116 to 272, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016;

U the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

U the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Recoverability of the carrying amounts of oil and gas
properties

o Disposal of 60% equity interest of Palaeontol B.V.

Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter
[ g o A

Recoverability of the carrying amounts of oil and gas
properties

o 55 T £ T o D]

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

a2 B A B IR R I R 6

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of oil
and gas properties of the Group amounted to
RMB2,358.5 million.

WoFE—ANFETZA=Z+—H > BEBEMAEERETEE
BRI AR 2,358.5H T ©

Lower global crude oil prices gave rise to indication
that the carrying amounts of oil and gas properties of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 might not be
recoverable. Management therefore assessed the
recoverable amounts of oil and gas properties based
on value in use amounts estimated using discounted
cash flow models. In performing such assessment, key
assumptions and input data adopted by the
management include:

B REEVES SR IR E €SB L1/ SN Sy gy S|
= — H R FE Y R T (R T AR I I A R A T RE B
Koo R > B BRI PR ) L 47 BB 4 TR AL G AR 0
TS 1A e YA (1< 1 2y R R ot S0 7 T g ol B A T A o
TEE % ARG R - B LR T AT B BR  2

—  Forecast crude oil prices;

T MRS

—  Forecast production volumes;

TEPE R

™
p
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>
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FeAM o 2 5T o i AL R B i R OH

In addressing this matter, we had performed
following procedures:

FABAT T T I RHRE DA B o B o w0

o Understood the key processes and controls
relating to the identification of impairment
indicator and the assessment of the recoverable
amounts.

A R R VS TE R AL R R R A T A 1] < AR B
) T S 30 R R A R4 il o

o Compared the forecast crude oil prices used in
the determination of the recoverable amounts of
respective oil and gas properties against a range
of crude oil price forecasts published by various
reputable banks and industry organisations.

I A T T A il SR T A e < R R P Y
it ok 5 A B % K R 44 SRAT AT S A4 A 1) T 0 i
TR B AR L -

o Assessed the forecast production volumes by

comparing against (i) production plan as
approved by the board of directors; (ii) forecast
production volume for the remaining concession
periods prepared by management and as set out
in the reserve report; and (iii) historical actual
production volume. We also performed
procedures to evaluate the competence,
capability and objectivity of external experts
engaged in preparing the reserve report.
TE Ak T 0 I R 0 R B A o R ()
ARG MR AR A B (i) B B A I 5 R A R
A5 o A 7E T R G (R J0 B O TR A o R (i) SRR SR
HBERE R - WA RMBEREGFLT > B2
BiL A R (ot RS B AN PRE K B RL - AR ) SR B
HEATREA o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter
[ o o A

—  Forecast operating costs and capital expenditures;
and

FR A B AEE S 5 &

— Discount rates.

EELES

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts of
oil and gas properties as at 31 December 2016,
together with the use of judgements and various
assumptions in estimating the recoverability of such
carrying amounts, we had identified this matter as a
key audit matter.

BRNMAREER _FE—ANFT A= — HWREEAED
B > DA 3% AR T (A R e e AT A R
T 04 0 B 2% TR > FRAM 7 A = T i ) 2y PR S e S I o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FeAM i 2 5T o o i AL D B A RO

. Assessed the forecast operating costs against (i)
budget as approved by the board of directors;
and (ii) historical actual costs. Assessed the
forecast capital expenditures against budget as
approved by the board of directors.

TE FAk T U A IR > 19 T30 4540 28 ) BT 20 A o L
B2 (i) 2 T A Y TSRS (i) JRE S R A o i
% S s B e L ) PSR AR AT LU o

o Assessed the underlying assumptions adopted
in the determination of the discount rate against
external market data and published information
of comparable companies.

A T B A IR T R MR e B A i 0 R % vl
PO FME B AT T LU ERAY -

. Assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology adopted in, and tested
mathematical accuracy of, the discounted cash
flow projections.

397 35 3R 4 U TEL I o BT R A Ok B AT T
FEAL o BRI R MEREME AT T RIS -

Based on our work, we found the key assumptions
and input data adopted were supported by the audit
evidence we gathered.

SR FAM A TAE - FAM 5 B PR A B SR s B BT A T )
LA AT LA FAM i i £ 3] 1) g R RE A e AR B Sk o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter
[ o o A

Disposal of 60% equity interest of Palaeontol B.V.
Ji ¥ Palaeontol B.V. 60% # t

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

a2 B B AR RE 17 -

On 25 November 2016, the Group completed the
disposal of 60% equity interest of its wholly owned
subsidiary, Palaeontol B.V. The divestment resulted in
a loss on disposal of RMB358.7 million and the result
from discontinued operations up to the date of
completion of RMB358.4 million were recorded by the
Group as loss for the year from discontinued
operations. The comparative information were also re-
presented on a consistent basis.
BoZE-ANFEF AT HE > BEETERBEEEETA
] Palaeontol B.V. 60% HE % Y i & > Palaeontol B.V. fIJ#
A Emir-Oil, LLP 9 100% HE fi o A< YU B BT 28 A= 1Y g B 48
KR NRM358.7 1 & T o A BIAAE B 2 %R B 58
H TR A 4 - g mi g R ik i AR 358.4 H & ot » if
i35 2 A AR A 1L AR T AR e 4E T RERT o EURRM S R
— B AETTE B 25 o

Due to the significance of the transaction and its
related presentation and disclosure in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements, we had identified

this matter as a key audit matter.

B8 A % 22 T W B DA R 85 A T O0F B R R Y i R
G B TR > FRAM T T O B S e T S o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FeAM i 2 5T o o i AL D B A RO

In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

FABAT 71 BT R T LABE B B o A w20

o Obtained and reviewed the sale and purchase
agreement to understand the details of the
transactions, including considerations,
conditions of completion, rights and obligations
of the Group upon the completion.

ElﬁjtéﬁiT'%jE ﬁ&ﬂx%%mUTﬁﬁiiﬁzﬁﬂi
O - EAE B - SZEIRAE DL R S R4 AR Y

Tﬁ*'l TFHs

U Obtained and reviewed the new shareholders’
agreement between the Group and 60% equity
interest holder to assess the Group’s ability to
exercise significant influence over Palaeontol
B.V. through its remaining 40% equity interest
and hence classification as an associate.

A5 3lf7 3] 5 4 T B 60% HE 4 15 38 FT 25 5T I 3T K
Eﬁ’rﬁ;’mﬁ » WA AR T O BT 4R Y R R 40% HE AR A

fie 71 %t Palaeontol B.V. B jifi E K5 2 > 3 A0 i L
iJﬁ}ﬁ'ﬁHﬁ% ¥ -

. Tested the mathematical accuracy of and agreed
the amounts used in deriving the accounting
entries and disclosure to relevant agreements
and accounting records.

AR BB w43 R IRF BT R SR 1 48 B DA K B R A S BRLAH
Bl i e S & RGBT I > BT R AY R

U Evaluated the presentation and disclosures
relating to the disposal.

T A B A ] 1) 971 D B o

Based on our work, no significant exceptions have
been found.

R T TAE > RATRFERERRF -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’'s
financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ift ok 18

38 S A Y B e
B RE TR 152 JBe A PR 2 W) e oK ()

(B 2 7 5 o Wk 57 79 A R 23 7 )

WA B > A O MBS AT
A PP YT B ek T S8 ) T A G R R B A
A BLORAE o Ol A AT R G A% O
oo WAMMER BT (FARED) i > Rtz s
AR AR H B o BN B A B A
AT AL LB BURPEE M EAE - G2
PR8I o K HE B DR S EUAS BE O ¥ 4 BRI B
et HERIDAEAT RO A At 78— H R S R B
FrAERF RERE SR BT o S Bt vl DL oy JUCHTR B ik
IR > R BT A B AR A T
B D B R T O & O B R R T
PRI REIR DL TE - FIA Bl B0 8 ok Bt v s AR
HK o

FEAR AR P e I DAEAT TR R i AR b - 3
T T - RS T H R -

P -

o AN AT A A SR B R T R B
S5 0 3 A7 A TR ik R Y SR > %
FE R AT A TR R DA 3 7a S Rl By o D
o HTE AN A IR R MR SR
M7 R LB oy 7 KRR AT RE W K R
M R BRI R R %
BRI RES 2 b o R IR AR 5% B K
o AT B A L A S R ) Ja gt s I A
AE 8 B0 DR S ok T 45 S T R S e A )
JE B

o TR B EHAN B A9 R AR DL SEHE

CLEE R AR ENE RNl o p S
AR A R R A

o FHEEF TR G RIEOR A E A AR
HH B Al AR R 1 A B

2016 F iR



=
pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LEONG Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017

(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese
version of this independent auditor’s report, the English version
shall prevail.)
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Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Investments in joint ventures

Deferred income tax assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Restricted cash

Current assets

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Trade receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Other reserves

(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

293
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Note
Mt

16

14
15
13
18
19

20
22

As at December 31,

wt+-H=+—H
2016 2015
ZEROAE F LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFE  AR¥TT
Re-presented
HiT 25
Note 2.1.1
BEEE2.1.1
2,407,958 5,633,676
8,849 359,595
246,667 -
- 505,994
40,590 23,795
63,330 27,105
820,224 497,878
- 8,495
3,587,618 7,056,438
30,155 53,356
1,131,001 223,719
103,568 90,956
90,325 -
- 462,669
904,961 202,967
2,260,010 1,033,667
5,847,628 8,090,105
1,068,796 1,068,796
(143,963) 65,457

(285,019) 1,037,434

639,814 2,171,687
(27) 39,309

639,787 2,210,996



As at December 31,

Bt+=H=+—H
2016 2015
ZEROANE F LA
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Re-presented

25
Note 2.1.1
BtaE2.1.1
Liabilities f1E
Non-current liabilities B B
Borrowings &K 26 4,586,555 4,424,247
Deferred income tax liabilities IR B BT 1B A 23 66,401 137,882
Trade and notes payable JREASH R K M JREASH 22 24 14,161 37,329
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities #E{f - FE4E & HAth & & 25 60,809 87,897
4,727,926 4,687,355
Current liabilities b0 E=E
Trade and notes payable JREAST R B A SR 24 74,199 372,615
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities ¥4 ~ JE4E K& HAth & & 25 226,999 284,855
Current income tax liabilities BT A 54,141 4,412
Derivative financial instruments fitemTE 13 20,576 -
Borrowings R 26 104,000 529,872
479,915 1,191,754
Total liabilities =Rigik] 5,207,841 5,879,109
Total equity and liabilities B % B A 1R A 5,847,628 8,090,105

The accompanying notes on pages 126 to 272 are an integral part 1% 45 126 B £ 45 272 B 2 W 5% & A< 4 0 B4 B5
of these consolidated financial statements. RN -

The consolidate financial statements on pages 116 to 272 were 116 HE L2712 HZ S MBEHREC R -Z

approved by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2017 and were  —-L4E=H =+ A EHE e T8 - WILE
signed on its behalf. HHGHEE
Zhang Ruilin Tian Hongtao
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Director Director
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Continuing operations

Revenue

Depreciation, depletion and

amortization

Taxes other than income taxes
Employee benefit expense
Purchases, services and other direct

costs
Distribution expense

General and administrative expense

Impairment charges
Other gains/(losses), net

Finance income
Finance costs

Share of profits of investments in

associates

Share of losses of investments in joint

ventures

Loss before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing

operations

Discontinued operations

Loss for the year from discontinued

operations

Loss for the year
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Note
Mt

28
31

6,78
27

29
29

32

17(a)

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2016

e
RMB’000
AR

534,974

(363,860)
(13,414)
(133,291)
(105,573)
(18,172)
(67,666)
(234,667)
297,849

17,490
(403,951)

35,682

(3,382)

(457,981)

(147,166)

(605,147)

(717,086)

(1,322,233)

2015
S
RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT
Re-presented
HiT 25
Note 2.1.1
BEEE2.1.1

722,185

(520,239)
(23,331)
(143,844)
(120,966)
(20,516)
(99,231)
(765,014)
(47,902)

19,610
(441,384)

(26,627)

(1,467,259)

121,118

(1,346,141)

(179,147)

(1,525,288)



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BtEERaR (&

Year ended December 31,

BET-A=ZT—HILEE

2016 2015
TR ANE S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e ANR¥ET o AR¥F 0
Re-presented
HAT RS
Note 2.1.1
MEEE2.1.1
Other comprehensive loss HibsA % «
Items that may be reclassified to HEngEgESHEHEEN
profit or loss HH
Change in value of available-for-sale 1 it Hi 8 4 il ¢ 25 A9 18 (H 4% 8
financial assets 18,405 (24,762)
Share of other comprehensive income S E& M4 (R ERHRER
of investments in associates HoAth &5 A Wi s B9 47 38 2,799 -
Currency translation differences SN 2R (129,976) (29,937)
Other comprehensive loss for the Bt AAE oAb 5% &
year, net of tax s S (108,772) (54,699)
Total comprehensive loss for the year Z4E 4% 6 5 1 444 (1,431,005) (1,679,987)

2016 54 » MIBERIZRERAE 119



Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company arising
from:

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

Total comprehensive loss for the
year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to owners of the
Company arising from:

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

R4 s 45 B R R
Ao E A
42 1l 2

RN AN WA A
AR AR
AR

— R

— IR

ACAR 5 A s 1R AR
B B
BN
i 1 A

i P AR 2 W B A
A 55 1R LR
AR

— AR

— Kb
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Note
Mt

Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2016
TR NG
RMB’000
NER¥TF e

(1,322,453)
220

(1,322,233)

(605,367)
(717,086)

(1,322,453)

(1,431,225)
220

(1,431,005)

(714,139)
(717,086)

(1,431,225)

2015

ZE A
RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT
Re-presented
HiT 25
Note 2.1.1
BEEE2.1.1

(1,523,203)

(2,085)

(1,525,288)

(1,344,056)
(179,147)

(1,523,203)

(1,577,902)
(2,085)

(1,579,987)

(1,429,628)
(148,274)

(1,577,902)



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
Bt lkaER (E)

Year ended December 31,

BET-A=ZT—HILEE

2016 2015
e e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Mzt ANR¥ET o AR¥ET 0
Re-presented

HAT RS
Note 2.1.1
MEEE2.1.1
Loss per share for loss attributable AAEAR 5 B B A EAG B 18
to owners of the Company for the W 45 I s 1
year (expressed in RMB per share) (B N )
Basic loss per share B 5 % s 4B 34
— Continuing operations — R (0.21) (0.52)
— Discontinued operations — KRR (0.25) (0.07)
(0.46) (0.59)
Diluted loss per share Fi B9 B 4R 34
— Continuing operations — R (0.21) (0.52)
— Discontinued operations — IR (0.25) (0.07)
(0.46) (0.59)

The accompanying notes on pages 126 to 272 are an integral part £ 45 126 5 245 272 H 2 ik B A A §F BF %5
of these consolidated financial statements. E eI 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B REEZER

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Equity
SERALTTEE AR RS
Ordinary Share Other Retained
shares  premium reserves earnings Total
Tak  RAmf  bRE EfRE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTL ARETL ARWTL ARWTL ARNTL ARNTE

As at January 1, 2015 R_F-HE—~HA—H 17,533 824,987 153,864 2,560,637 3,557,021 7490 3,564,511
Comprehensive income KGR

for the year
Loss for the year AEER - - - (1,523,203) (1,523,203 (2,085) (1,625,288)
Available-for-sale financial ik ESRER

assets (Note 22) (Wit 22) - - (24,762) - (24,762) - (24,762)
Currency translation differences JMEHTE %4 - - (29,937) - (29,937) - (29,937

17,533 824,987 99,165 1,037,434 1,979,119 5405 1,984,524

Transactions with owners BEHHDEEER
in their capacity as owners SRR
Employees stock option schemes [ £ ik 15131

— value of employee services  — {E B IRAE(H - - 22,515 - 22,515 - 22,515
Settlement of options granted 48 & FA M

for interest in subsidiaries MR 1 B A

(Note 20) (Mt 20) 359 43,599 - - 43,958 - 43,958
Issuance of new ordinary shares [t il

(Note20) (Wit 20) 1,754 198,209 - - 199,963 - 199,963
Share purchased under T R A

Share Award Scheme (Mt 22(a))

(Note 22(a)) - - (11,063) - (11,063) - (11,063)
Share repurchased and ey 0 B B s 88 (M2 20)

cancellation (Note 20) (157) (17,488) - - (17,645) - (17,645)
Acquisition of additional HONRE T A AR

interest in a subsidiary - - (45,160) - (45,160) 33,904 (11,256)

1,956 224,320 (33,708)

192,568 33,904 226,472

As at December 31, 2015 RoB-hA
+ZA=+—H 19,489 1,049,307 65,457 1,037,434 2,171,687 39,309 2,210,996
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Non-

controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Equity
SRR A B A % FERMEES  EEAR
Ordinary Share Other  Retained
shares  premium reserves earnings Total

T RARG  URRE BN it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARKT ARWTE  ARWTE ARWTx AR¥Tx ARETT ARWTF

As at January 1, 2016 REZZ—AE—A—H 19,489 1,049,307 65,457 1,037,434 2,171,687 39,309 2,210,996
Comprehensive income RS

for the year
Loss for the year KRR - = - (1,322,453) (1,322,453) 220 (1,322,233)
Available-for-sale financial ik ESRERE

assets (Note 22) (it 22) - - 18,405 = 18,405 = 18,405
Share of other comprehensive A4l AR B G

income of investments () FLqth 55 Al i

accounted for using the i

equity method - - 2,799 - 2,799 - 2,799
Currency translation differences M7 2.5 5 - - (129,976) - (129,976) - (129,976)

19,489 1,049,307 (43,315)  (285,019) 740,462 39,529 779,991

Transactions with owners WA DLHH %
in their capacity as owners MERERTNRS
Employees stock option schemes (i £ BB #3141

— value of employee services  — {E EIRE B
(Note 31) (ff331) - - 27,990 - 27,990 - 27,990
— shares to settle SARs under ~ — & i (s (i 4
the plan EE N - - 599 = 599 - 599
Share purchased under e d R
Share Award Scheme (Wf7#22(a))
(Note 22(2)) - - (63,706) - (63708) - (63,708)
Acquisition of additional BN ARG
interest in a subsidiary (W##22)
(Note 22) - - (65,531) - (65,531) (39,556) (105,087)
- - (100,648) - (100,648) (39,556) (140,204)
As at December 31, 2016 RZZ—A
+ZA=+—H 19,489 1,049,307 (143,963) (285,019) 639,814 (27) 639,787

The accompanying notes on pages 126 to 272 are an integral part £l %8 126 B £ %6 272 B 2 M5 B A& OF 55
of these consolidated financial statements. RN -
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Cash flows from operating activities
Continuing operations

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Income tax paid

Discontinued operations

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Continuing operations

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash

(Increase)/decrease in financial assets

Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries

Loans and deposits to third parties

Contribution and loans to/acquisition
of investments accounted for
using equity method

Interest received

Others

Discontinued operations

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities
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Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HILEE

2016

e

Note RMB’000
i AREFG

162,742
(382,997)

(69,567)

(81,057)

35 (370,879)

(21,621)
462,646
(96,422)
2,283,724
(375,045)

(277,007)
20,171

(205,736)

1,790,710

2015

ZE A
RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT
Re-presented
HiT 25
Note 2.1.1
BEEE2.1.1

480,807
(337,903)
(9,055)

192,223

326,072

(249,591)
(324,052)
28,324
45,152
(48,482)

(186,111)
645

(235)

(390,094)

(1,124,444)



Year ended December 31,

BET A=+ —HIL4EE

2016 2015
ZEOANE F LA
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Re-presented

HF RS
Note 2.1.1
BEEE2.1.1

Cash flows from financing activities Tl i B P B 4 U R
Continuing operations RHERE
Repayments of borrowings iR R (930,224) (360,095)
Proceeds from borrowings ER IR 491,534 512,759
Payment for repurchase and ] B3I 51 6 2019

cancellation of 2019 Notes B (110,739) -
Cash paid to non-controlling interest FEANIUT T 7 IR R

for additional interest in subsidiary RE 25 B S AT ER I (103,919) -
Payments relating to share-based L AR - AR

compensation SATRYERIE 22 (63,706) (28,708)
Proceeds from issuance of BEAT B A i3 Y

ordinary shares A - 199,963
Others HAth (33,206) (25,917)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RSB (R, A

financing activities H&eFH (750,260) 298,002
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&ERBREFEDN

cash equivalents ¥, (WA ) 5 669,571 (500,370)
Cash and cash equivalents at EYH & R 4%

beginning of the year B 202,967 689,208
Exchange gains on cash and cash Ba kB ESEYN

equivalents REE 58,104 4 32,423 14,129
Cash and cash equivalents at end ERBRERBE%

of the year k7] 904,961 202,967

The accompanying notes on pages 126 to 272 are an integral part 1% {45 126 B £ 45 272 H 2 W 5% & A< & 0 B4 85
of these consolidated financial statements. RISy
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MIE Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil
and other petroleum products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"”) under production sharing contracts
(“PSC”) and other similar arrangements. The Group currently
has two producing oil PSCs in the PRC, an exploration
contract and a working interest in the Niobrara shale oil and
gas assets in the United States of America (the “USA”"). The
Group also participates as associates in the exploration,
development and production of petroleum assets located in
the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Kazakhstan”), western
Canada and the northern part of the South China Sea in the
PRC, as further explained below.

Further details of the Group’s associates and joint operations
under PSCs and similar arrangements, are set out in Note 8
and Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"”) on December 14, 2010.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB"”) unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board of Directors”) on March 30, 2017.

Annual Report 2016
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The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

A B  BF B R PR T Y B
AR T3 o R A B > HFBUR
T JIT 5\ ) FT A 46 8 oA EARE T

2.1 R

B IR B 2 AR AR P A Y
W i v U 2 R S A S o R A
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JRE S0 R A o S T 3t e
il 7 DALY S (E R R H LS Bt
A\ HH A 1Y 4l N <l R A (R
FEATAE T H) B AR HAERT -

A BAE - R 1 B o R ) B B
PR B s B S g AT -
eI B LR A AR
A ERAR R AT R BT - 9 K
JE A i 6 T AR Y G o R
B3 OF P B 4R A Hh E R AR A
flRHA HEM > FERR 3E 4 B3R
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Re-presentation of comparative figures

In preparing the Company’s Consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2016,
the directors of the Company have identified the
following matters requiring re-presentation of
comparative figures. As a result of the impact on
comparatives as disclosed in Note 40, prior year
financial statements had to be re-presented.

(a)

Discontinued operation

On March 5, 2016, the Company, Palaeontol
Cooperatief U.A., an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Seller”) and
Reach Energy Berhad (the “Purchaser” or
“REB"”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the disposals of the
shares in 60% equity interest in Palaeontol
B.V., which holds 100% interest in Emir-Oil,
LLP (“Emir-Qil”), by the Seller to the
Purchaser and the assignment and transfer
of the shareholder loans in proportion to the
relevant percentage by the Company to the
Purchaser. The completion took place on
November 25, 2016. The transaction
consideration after adjustment at completion
was US$175.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,211.0 million). Further
details were disclosed in Note 17.

Annual Report 2016
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Re-presentation of comparative figures
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Discontinued operation (Continued)

As Emir-Qil represents the Kazakhstan
operation of the Group, the Directors regard
the Kazakhstan segment as discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” (“IFRS 5”). As
required under IFRS 5, the comparative
figures related to the discontinued operation
have been re-presented on a consistent basis
accordingly.

Cessation of continuing classifying a
subsidiary as disposal group held for sale

On December 31, 2016, the Directors of the
Company resolved not to proceed its active
program to sell Riyadh Energy Limited
(“Riyadh”), which were initially classified as
held for sale on June 30, 2015. The Directors
reached the resolution by re-adjusting its
strategy regarding assets portfolio. As result
of the change in management’s intention and
strategy, the assets and liabilities related to
Riyadh ceased to qualify for the classification
as held for sale on December 31, 2016. Under
IFRS 5, the assets and liabilities related to
Riyadh are required to be re-presented into
individual financial statement line items and
re-measured as if Riyadh had not been
classified as held for sale.

2.1 R (A)

2.1.1 WBBF R B 2 5 (4])

2016 F iR
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2.1 R (A])

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Re-presentation of comparative figures
(Continued)

2.1.1 WBBF R 2 5 (4])

(b) Cessation of continuing classifying a (b) ARILAF 12w A A 5

subsidiary as disposal group held for sale
(Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the
re-measurement would result increases in

BIFH1FEA (A)

#wE_F-HET A
=t —HAEEE - B

depreciation, depletion and amortisation by 8 E S-S 3]
RMB53.7 million and impairment loss by U AE H8 J 40 Al 3 A
RMB274.8 million, and a decrease in other R¥E3.7HE TMAR
losses by RMB328.5 million. Retained ¥274.88 ¥ T > [F I
earnings of the Group as of December 31, HAbE R D> T AR

2015 was unchanged due to the re-
presentation and re-measurement.

The following standards have been adopted
by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after January
1, 2016:

328.5H & JC - £ H #&
IE=F—T4E+ A
=+—H KRS B
S o IR Ay B 5pr 2 51 i B
SR T AR A o

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 €5 BCR bk 2% i s B
(a) New and amended standards adopted by (a) AL B 4R 4 109 H7 5T
the Group CIES g/

AEE A TN
H— H 82 4% BA b 19 S
A T 1 UCHR Ak ) S
HIR 2 AERT /9 % Q1 51 7R
W

. Accounting for acquisitions of interests . W B L R 5 v fE
in joint operations — Amendments to i AR — B
IFRS 11 JF 5 i it o R 5

11 BRI B

. Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation —
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

. Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 —
2014 cycle, and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to
IAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not
have any impact on the current period or any
prior period and is not likely to affect future
periods.

A number of new standards and
amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2016 and
have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of
these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of
the group, except the following set out
below:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’,

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.
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SRR (48)
2.1.2 & BORAK 85 4 52 B ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

25 JE B 3 0 A 3 0 1 15

(b) A number of new standards and amendments (b)

to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

While the Group has yet to undertake a
detailed assessment of the classification and
measurement of financial assets, debt
instruments currently classified as available-
for-sale (AFS) financial assets would appear
to satisfy the conditions for classification as
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and hence there will be no
change to the accounting for these assets.

The other financial assets held by the Group
include:

. equity instruments currently classified
as AFS for which a FVOCI election is
available

. equity investments currently measured
at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) which would likely continue to
be measured on the same basis under
IFRS 9

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to have a significant impact on
the classification and measurement of its
financial assets.
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2.1 R (A)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 €5 BOR b 82 0 55 B ()
(Continued)
25 JEL 7 3 B A 2 B 1 15

(b) A number of new standards and amendments (b)

to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group
does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred
from IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not
been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align
the accounting for hedging instruments more
closely with the Group’s risk management
practices. As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for hedge
accounting, as the standard introduces a
more principles-based approach. While the
Group is yet to undertake a detailed
assessment, it would appear that the Group's
current hedge relationships would qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption of IFRS
9. Accordingly, the Group does not expect a
significant impact on the accounting for its
hedging relationships.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case
under IAS 39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. While the Group has not yet
undertaken a detailed assessment of how its
impairment provisions would be affected by
the new model, it may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses.
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2.1 R (A)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 €5 BOR b 82 0 55 B ()
(Continued)
25 JEL 7 3 B A 2 B 1 15

(b) A number of new standards and amendments (b)

to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’(Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change
the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

IFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018.
Based on the transitional provisions in the
completed IFRS 9, early adoption in phases
was only permitted for annual reporting
periods beginning before 1 February 2015.
After that date, the new rules must be
adopted in their entirety. The Group does not
intend to adopt IFRS 9 before its mandatory
date.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

o IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The new standard for the recognition of
revenue will replace |IAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services
and IAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based
on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer. The
standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the
adoption.

Management is currently assessing the
effects of applying the new standard on
the Group’s financial statements and
has identified the following areas that
are likely to be affected:
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(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(b) A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

o IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

revenue from service — the
application of IFRS 15 may result
in the identification of separate
performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the
recognition of revenue.

accounting for certain costs
incurred in fulfilling a contract —
certain costs which are currently
expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under IFRS
15, and

2.1 HREEEE (4H)

2.1.2 7t BRI 85 04 52 B (%)
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

o IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

. rights of return IFRS 15 requires
separate presentation on the
balance sheet of the right to
recover the goods from the
customer and the refund
obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to
estimate the impact of the new rules on
the Group’s financial statements. The
Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the
next twelve months.

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2018. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 SRR ()
2.1.2 gt BUOR ik 88 w2 8) ()

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) A number of new standards and amendments

(b) 2 JE T ¥ QI i 3 B 14 15

to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January
2016 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the group, except the following set out
below: (Continued)

. IFRS 16, ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after
1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2016 F iR

A R fRRBEAE —F — N
—H — H & b5 194 1%
A3 - (HAR A AR
o OF S 3 # 76 v HE A -
HE LY - 5 2 FE
R A 7 B AR B &
OF B 55 1 2 385 1l X
B YT AWRE B
4b : (#)

. B [ B s iR HE
A 16 9% [FlE |

B [% B 5 e s
Al 1695 [THE |
MR =R LT
FHEFEEREA
BRAER &K
2 T B B E A
B # e g
B o AR 48 5% o e
A > B (ZHE
BEZN A RE) B
FENRi A A
BB D o ME
— B 4h 3 5
FEEFEAE -

R 1 3
o AR AT
K5 -

W 97 8 U 05 7 A
U]
— B o % B 0
[ Bt B4R JE 3R
o BT AR
Rt 7 2R
0 F 0 4R 9
HE -

BEAN - A HAl R
R IR o 5 o Y
B ] 5 B 5 o M R 2R
B — RN EHY

TE AL A ERY
2



2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRS.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognized in accordance with
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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2.2 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognized in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

Annual Report 2016

2.3 BaAH

T 4 T AT 7 4 T B A O
J T SR I RE R TS R
20% — 50% 5% ZEHEM R o Tk %
B R IEANR - RIEMRL > &
R 4 DAL THERR > T I T (L 39
Jnekik b LRI E R A AR
H AR B IR BB AR AR o A4
9 B ) B (L 3 I R L R
A FREEBEESCENRE
IRF > i B R AS B 42 9 AT ) I
BOENHREEMABNA RE
(EIFRER 2R R o

Qg A HE S AR AT B ) 9 AELATS £
HRGET » R 2 fifE
LAt fe 5 A i e R Y SRR R )
MR () o

7 S 9 A e M A 4
TR 2 R e R - T R A B R AR
114 FLAt 27 i i 528 B8 U A HLAtL
W i AR RS, > SO RE R 50 MR T
{6 o W= 42 R AG — X ) e 1R
S B A AR Rz W O g o B
75T o7 L A IS 7 B i > AR
RGP EE > BRIEALE
e O AR A U B e
AR AR A K



2.3

24

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the group and its
associate are recognized in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Company has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures and joint operations.
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2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

2.4.1 Joint ventures

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group’s investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

2.4.2 Joint operations

The Group’s development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries, jointly with others through PSCs.
These PSCs establish joint control over the
development and production activities. The assets
are not owned by a separate legal entity but are
controlled by individual participants in the PSCs.
Each participant is entitled to a predetermined
share of the related output and bears an agreed
share of the costs.

The consolidated financial statements reflect:

. the Group’s share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

U any liabilities that the Group incurred;

. the Group’s share of any liabilities incurred
jointly with the other PSC partners in relation
to the joint production;

o any income from the sale or use of the
Group’s share of the output of the
production, together with its share of any
expenses incurred in the production; and

U any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$”). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income’ or
‘finance costs’.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analyzed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposals of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposals of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposals of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposals involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposals involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposals involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposals that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognized in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in
associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

25 AT (4)

(d)

2016 F iR

BEHh £85I B A0 4y g B

R BN Y (B R B
A 4R A B8 A K8 i A T
fEfE > BUH R B W MR H
A AR T A F £
iR > B M e Ok R A
BB B 8 A SR L[] 4
iR > B M Ok A
ARG B W A SE O HLR R
B o ez EACE Rt Ek A
it 1 i J I A 2 W BT A Y
Fir 4 M 5 22 B o U AR
ﬁ[\L o

S Sl A A 4 [ i Ok
A LA EEE I T A F R
il HE B ) B AR A
FAT B 56, 22 P A9 LU ] 4 A
W B A S 42 ) A i I
HATEH 2 P A g o R B
A7 HAER 73 i B (R AR 42 B 1
W S s B PR B
A7 RERE 25 1) BBl D 300 A B EOA
A P i O TR S B A [ 4%
HiIHE) > SR I AE Bt HE 5 2%
B LB E SRR
ﬁﬁ_o



2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortized at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group's reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years

Office equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles and production 10 years
equipment

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within ‘Other gains, net’ in profit or loss.
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2.7 Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests
in oil and gas properties are capitalized. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs of
exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalized as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas which geological and engineering data
demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions, i.e.,
prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made.
Prices include consideration of changes in existing
prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well
costs are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that
such economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the
related well costs are reclassified to oil and gas
properties and subject to impairment review. For
exploratory wells that are found to have economically
viable reserves in areas where major capital
expenditure will be required before production can
commence, the related well costs remain capitalized
only if additional drilling is under way or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as dry
holes. The Group does not have any costs of unproved
properties capitalized in oil and gas properties.

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognized
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration
and evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.
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2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mineral
extraction rights, mining rights and goodwill.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortized over their estimated
useful lives of three years.

Mineral extraction and mining rights

Mineral extraction rights and mining rights are
amortized based on the unit of production
method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.
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2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(¢) Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each
reporting date.

2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and

discontinued operation

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The disposal group, are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note
2.
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2.10 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and

discontinued operation (Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operations
and the post-tax gain or loss recognized on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposals of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operations.

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorized as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.
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2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

(c)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
excepted to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the statement of
financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2016

2.11 &R & (4)

2.11.1 4338 (%)

(b)

(c)

Bt B IR 5k

B W B A T
s B A e A AR EL I
A AE I B T R Y
AT e REE - IS
JHH @ E AR & E
A > (ELTE ST A i o 10
AR FH 1208 H &
SRBCE > BB JF
MEVEE - ALK E
AR MR R e B IR
DLR [ B WS AR 3K e Ho At
JRE WSk ) BT B 4 % B
SEEY | AR -

A f Hy 6 <3 i 5

] e O
F6 7€ R BRS040 7>
JH T A AT AR 91 9 JF
RIAETH - BRIFBE S
W HELRE A AR R
MARE 1218 H R E &
ZBE - HHILEEE
SULE IR B A



2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognized at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivable are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or
loss within ‘Other gains, net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains, net’ when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognized in equity are included in
profit or loss as ‘Other gains, net’.
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2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized
in profit or loss as part of ‘Other gains/(losses),
net’. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognized in profit or loss as part
of ‘Other gains/(losses), net’” when the Group'’s
right to receive payments is established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held- to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognized in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognized immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
gains/(losses), net'.
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2.15 Inventories

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.

2.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
oil and gas and other petroleum products sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.18 Share capital (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.
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2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortized cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.22 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.
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2.23 Provisions (Continued)

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognized as provisions and
the amount recognized is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest expenses
from the assets retirement obligations for each period
are recognized with the effective interest method during
the useful life of the related oil and gas properties.

2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution plans
for state pensions, housing fund and other social
obligations in accordance with the local conditions
in the PRC and practices in the municipalities and
province in which they operate. A defined
contribution plan is a pension and/or other social
benefits plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and
will have no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits
relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The contributions are recognized as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional
on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

2.25 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognized as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

J including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specific period of time).
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2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognizing the expense
during the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

Cash-settled share-based compensation

Compensation under the stock appreciation rights
is measured based on the fair value of the liability
incurred and is expensed over the vesting period.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting
period to its fair value until settlement with all the
changes in liability related to the vested portion
recorded as employee benefit expense in profit or
loss, the related liability is included in the salaries
and welfare payable.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(d) Social security contributions on share options
gains

The social security contributions payable in
connection with the grant of the share options is
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and
the charge will be treated as a cash-settled
transaction.

2.26 Revenue recoghnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the
Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods, and retains
neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective
control over the goods sold, and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group and related revenue and cost can be
measured reliably.

With respect to the Group’s operation under PSC,
revenues are recognized upon delivery of crude oil that
are allocated to the Group under the relevant PSCs
(Note 9) and other conditions discussed above are met.
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2.27 Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognized using the original effective
interest rate.

2.28 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.29 Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognized as expenses in
the year in which they are incurred.

2.30 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.
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2.30 Leases (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.31 Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

2.32 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors
of the Company (Note 5).
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures, but hedge accounting had not been applied.

Risk management is carried out by the Company
headquarter financial department (“Group Finance
Team”) on a regular basis under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Finance Team identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

The majority of the Group’s sales in the PRC
are transacted in US$, while production and
other expense are mainly denominated in
RMB.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
is regulated by the PRC government.
Limitation in foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause
future exchange rates to vary significantly
from current or historical exchange rates.
Management is not in a position to anticipate
changes in the PRC foreign exchange
regulations and as such is unable to
reasonably anticipate the impacts on the
Group’s results of operations or financial
position arising from future changes in
exchange rates.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated
in the relevant foreign currencies.

At December 31, 2016, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1% (2015: 1%) against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended
December 31, 2016 would have been
RMB26.2 million (2015: RMB44.0 million)
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of US$-denominated trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and
borrowings.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the years presented.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings, including bank loans and senior
notes payable. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During 2016, all the borrowings
were at fixed rate, denominated in US$ and
RMB.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure
on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are
simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions,
alternative financing and hedging. Based on
these scenarios, the Group calculates the
impact on profit and loss of a defined interest
rate shift. For each simulation, the same
interest rate shift is used for all currencies.
The scenarios are run only for liabilities that
represent the major interest-bearing
positions.

The Group has no material interest bearing
cash assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market rates.
The Group’s interest rates risk arises from
borrowings. A detailed analysis of the
Group’s borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 26.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Oil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil
development, production and selling
activities. Prices of crude oil are affected by
both domestic and global factors which are
beyond the control of the Group. The
fluctuations in such prices may have
favourable or unfavourable impacts to the
Group. Therefore the Group was exposed to
general price fluctuations of crude oil.

Credit risk

As the majority of the cash at bank balance is
placed with PRC state-owned banks and major
financial institutions, the directors of the Company
are of their opinion that the corresponding credit
risk is relatively low. Therefore, credit risk arises
primarily from trade and other receivables. The
Group has controls in place to assess the credit
quality of its customers. The carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
amounts due from related parties and trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk for its cash
and cash equivalents.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Group has one customer in China which in
aggregate accounts for 97.3% (2015: 98.0%) of the
Group’s revenue and as such, has concentration
of credit risk for its trade and other receivables.
However, the Group regards it as low risk as the
customer in China is PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”) , a PRC state-owned enterprise
with high credit rating in China.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit
facilities.

Group Finance Team monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs through:
(i) maintaining flexibility by placing reliance
primarily on external borrowings; (ii) periodically
evaluating banking facilities position and
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities; (iii) compliance
with borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities — for example: fixed charge
coverage ratio, limitation on restricted payments,
limitation on liens and asset sales, etc. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s
debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets.

The table below analyzes the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting
period to their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of principal amount and
interests.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Less than
1year
B4
RMB’'000
AR#T
At December 31,2016 R _F— N4
+ZA=Z+—H
Borrowings i 104,000
Interest payables on il
borrowings 344,349
Trade and notes payable AT BEF K HEf 2245 74,196
Provisions, accruals and 4 ~ FE 2 K& HAh & &
other liabilities 202,640
At December 31, 2015 RB—H4E
(Re-presented) +=-H=+—H
(EH271)
Borrowings R 529,872
Interest payables on RS,
borrowings 341,598
Trade and notes payable JEAT R & FEAT 2245 372,615
Provisions, accruals and  YEff ~ F 48 Bt £ £
other liabilities 251,299

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as continuing operation loss before finance
income, finance cost, income tax and depreciation,
depletion and amortization.

3.1 EEbE IR (4])

(c) B kR BE (&)

Between Between
1and 2 2and 5 Over
years years 5 years
— B4 ZELE LA L

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMETE  ARWTIE  ARWT

1,387,400 3,302,012 -

257,320 78,875 -
14,161 - -
- - 15,757
- 4,545,520 -
332,797 330,117 -
37,329 - -
4,436 3,518 46,716
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3.2

3.3

Capital management (Continued)

The Debt over EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2016 and
2015 were as follows:

3.2 BEAEM(4)

W oE—NFERE—HFE+T A
=+ — H A B 4% FLEBITDA K

ELAR BN -
2016 2015
ZFAE F L
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRE  ARWTT

Re-presented

HHE
Note 2.1.1
MtaE2.1.1
Total borrowings (Note 26) AR (K7 26) 4,690,555 4,954,119
Loss before income tax from TR FRAE 488 ) B I A5 Bl Tl 18
continuing operation (457,981) (1,467,259)
Finance income BB (17,490) (19,610)
Finance cost B2 A 403,951 441,384
Depreciation, depletion and Preg - Prke R ey
amortization 363,860 520,239
EBITDA EBITDA 292,340 (525,246)
Debt over EBITDA ratio & A AHELEBITDA Y L3R 16.0 (9.4)

The Debt over EBITDA increased as at December 31,
2016 compared to the prior year mainly due to the
decrease of the losses incurred by the Group for the
year then ended.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at December 31,
2016 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at December 31,

A 755 I B A 2L ()
3.3 A A ()
o VR AR I
B PERYHMR A (B AT
HA) (5 =J8)

TREIIAREE G TN
H=+—H A R EEF S

2016. B o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B—E g BB Hst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®Tx AR®TE AR¥TE
Assets HE
As at December 31, 2016 R TN
+=-HA=+—H
Available-for-sale AL O A R
financial assets:
— Equity investments — A 15,685 - 42,246 57,931
— Debt investments — EERE - - 5,399 5,399
Derivative financial iAsmTA
instruments
— MAST index Linked — B MR BB
investment E a2y - 90,325 - 90,325
15,685 90,325 47,645 153,655
Liabilities =L
As at December 31, 2016 W F—NAE
+=-HA=+—H
Derivative financial MiEEmTH
instruments
— Oil options — JRih R - 20,576 - 20,576
- 20,576 — 20,576
Assets HE
As at December 31, 2015 T —HAR
+ZHA=+—H
Available-for-sale Ak A R E
financial assets:
— Equity investments — HRE 2,511 - 22,487 24,998
— Debt investments — EHRE - - 2,107 2,107
2,511 - 24,594 27,105
There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and AAEREIRE — B4 > B BRI RE =

level 3 during the year.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the
closing price as at December 31, 2016. These
instruments are included in level 1, and represent
equity investments listed on NYSE, which are
classified as available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Financial instruments in level 3

With respect to the level 3 fair value measurement
for the Group’s financial assets at fair value that
are unlisted equity investments and debt
investments with no active market exists, the
Group’s finance department benchmark to the
market price of certain comparable listed
companies within the same or similar operation/
industry and apply certain adjustments/discount
for non-marketability. At December 31, 2016, the
directors of the Company are of their opinion that
there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best
estimate of fair value within that range.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum
that by analysis of geoscience and engineering
data can be estimated with reasonable certainty to
be commercially recoverable, from a given date
forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulations. Economic conditions
include consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but
not on escalations based upon future conditions.
Proved developed producing reserves are
expected to be recovered from completion
intervals that are open and producing at the time
of the estimate. Proved undeveloped reserves are
quantities expected to be recovered through future
investments: from new wells on undrilled acreage
in known accumulations, from extending existing
wells to a different (but known) reservoir, or from
infill wells that will increase recovery. Probable
reserves are additional reserves that are less
certain to be recovered than proved reserves but
which, together with proved reserves, are as likely
to be recovered.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

The Group’s reserve estimates were prepared for
each oilfield and include only reserves that the
Group believes can be reasonably produced within
current economic and operating conditions.

Proved and probable reserves cannot be
measured exactly. Reserve estimates are based on
many factors related to reservoir performance that
require evaluation by the engineers interpreting
the available data, as well as price and other
economic factors. The reliability of these estimates
at any point in time depends on both the quality
and quantity of the technical and economic data,
and the production performance of the reservoirs
as well as engineering judgement. Consequently,
reserve estimates are subject to revision as
additional data become available during the
producing life of a reservoir. When a commercial
reservoir is discovered, proved reserves are
initially determined based on limited data from the
first well or wells. Subsequent data may better
define the extent of the reservoir and additional
production performance. Well tests and
engineering studies will likely improve the
reliability of the reserve estimate. The evolution of
technology may also result in the application of
improved recovery techniques such as
supplemental or enhanced recovery projects, or
both, which have the potential to increase reserves
beyond those envisioned during the early years of
a reservoir’s producing life.

In general, changes in the technical maturity of
reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and
production activities and change in oil and gas
price have tended to be the most significant cause
of annual revisions.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Depletion, depreciation and amortization of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

In addition to the depletion, depreciation and
amortization of oil and gas properties, mining
extraction and mining rights using the unit of
production method (Notes 2.6 and 2.7) based on
the estimated reserves as disclosed in Note 4.1(i),
management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
and amortization charges for other property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions, or
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations according to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of intangible assets.

Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next
financial year that are different from assumptions
could require material adjustments to the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.
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(ii)

2016 F iR

A B g~ TR Bk i DA % JE
TR AR - PR K 8

B 7 T SR R M
BB R B E Bk (2.6
H12.7) A% B0 15 7 B SR HE K
PRWEARE 0 97 85 - FE4R Sk
EL7E R 4.1() B 58 o BRI
ZhHh s REEE MG ETY
FoAb AR B TRk B 3R A A
SETY G R I TE ST AR PR X
AF R T8 D 4 B AT A T o
AP A A A 004 R A
THEEM N B2 ~ Tk e skl
[ B B AR RR 1Y JE SR A
B TR B A B (B R B
A% 42 B TE TR % Y
T R A 1 [ A 48 97 1 (L 10
TG EEE -

T 0 PR Al R
A RS H R AT 4R BRSO
B - TR S A Y
FE TH wh AT AR BRGE AT 3R
B oo BL B BUA N UL IR
fifg - AT LA B EE S A H)
FE TR B B A Y
F19 SR T 7 A A8 SO IR 4
Hh AN [a] B AR R AR AR 1 T RE
BERHE -



4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and
gas properties, and intangible assets are reviewed
for possible impairments when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involve management estimates and judgements
such as forecast crude oil prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and
capital expenditures and discount rates. However,
the impairment reviews and calculations are based
on assumptions that are consistent with the
Group’s business plans. Favourable changes to
some assumptions may allow the Group to avoid
the need to impair any assets in these years,
whereas unfavourable changes may cause the
assets to become impaired.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

Provision for remediation and restoration

Provision for remediation and restoration included
environmental remediation costs, assets
retirements obligation and similar obligation in
relation to the Group’s operations. Provision is
made when the related environmental disturbance
and present obligations occur, based on the net
present value of estimated future costs. The
ultimate cost of environmental disturbances, asset
retirement and similar obligation are uncertain
and management uses its judgment and
experience to provide for these costs over the life
of operations. Cost estimates can vary in response
to many factors including changes to the relevant
legal requirements, the Group’s related policies,
the emergence of new restoration techniques and
the effects of inflation. Cost estimates are updated
throughout the life of the operation. The expected
timing of expenditure included in cost estimates
can also change, for example in response to
changes in reserves, or production volumes or
economic conditions. Expenditure may occur
before and after closure and can continue for an
extended period of time depending on the specific
site requirements. Cash flows must be discounted
if this has a material effect. The selection of
appropriate sources on which to base calculation
of the risk free discount rate used for this purpose
also requires judgment. As a result of all of the
above factors there could be significant
adjustments to the provision for close down,
restoration and clean-up costs which would affect
future financial results.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Provision for remediation and restoration
(Continued)

The Group currently operates mainly in PRC. The
outcome of environmental and other similar
obligations under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be
estimated at present, and could be material. Under
existing legislation, however, the directors of the
Company are in their opinion that there are no
probable liabilities that are in addition to amounts
which have already been reflected in the financial
statements that will have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is still
subject to finalisation. The Group recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the
Company that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being the PRC,
Kazakhstan and North America. The PRC segment derives its
revenue substantially from the sale of oil. Revenue is realized
from the sale of the Group’s share of crude oil to PetroChina
pursuant to respective PSCs (Note 9). Before the disposal of
60% equity interest in Palaeontol B.V. as disclosed in Note 17
(a), the Kazakhstan segment derives its revenue from the sale
of oil and gas through the operation of an oil and gas
exploration and four production contracts in Kazakhstan.
After the disposal, the Kazakhstan segment derives its share
of profit from the remaining 40% equity investment in the
Palaeontol B.V.. The North America segment derives its
revenue from the sale of shale oil and gas through working
interest in the Niobrara asset in the USA and its share of
profit from the investment in associate in Canada.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s operating
result.
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors BE - F—-NE+H=+—HILEE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31, ) 2 S RS A EE RN ¢
2016 is as follows:

North  Corporate

PRC Kazakhstan America and others Total
W REERE E AEREA At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARMTFE  ARBFT ARKTFE ARWFT ARWTI

From continuing operations i #E K%

Segment revenue g e 530,908 - 4,066 - 534,974
Depreciation, depletion and 7% ~ e F 8 8

amortization (360,141) - (3,258 (461)  (363,860)
Taxes other than income taxes BiJE (FFEBL& 4

(Note 28) (W5 28) (2,935) - - (10,479) (13.414)
Employee benefit expense B T3 A A (65,683) - (2,019) (65,589)  (133,291)
Purchases, services and other  Ff i ~ M85 B oAt

direct costs (102,017) - (3,556) - (105,573)
Distribution expense B M (18,172) - - - (18,172)
General and administrative HHE R

expense (20,495) - (2,687) (44,484) (67,666)
Impairment charges B BEEK (150,245) - (3,083) (81,339)  (234,667)
Other (losses)/gains , net HAh (%) /g

FE (133,952) - (6,188) 437,989 297,849

Finance income g TN 700 — 3,277 13,613 17,490
Finance costs MM (24,724) - (43) (379,184) (403,951)
Share of profits of investments 524 B {45 &1

in associates A 8 = = 35,682 - 35,682
Share of losses of investments =4 &4 ¥ HEH

in joint venture R = = = (3,382) (3,382)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K Fif58iaT (&)~

Wz (346,756) - 22,191 (133,416) (457,981)

Income tax expense Pifa B # R (29,503) - (52)  (117,611)  (147,166)
(Loss)/profit for the year from A48 % T 15

continuing operations (K5t8) /i gs (376,259) - 22,139 (251,027) (605,147)
From discontinued operations ¥4 I &%
Loss for the year from ARAFH || 5 i 1

discontinued operations fei8 - (717,086) - = (717,086)
(Loss)/profit for the year A (BIR),/FH (376,259)  (717,086) 22,139 (251,027) (1,322,233)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

5.

Segment information (Continued) 5. 4r#bfE B ()
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors BE-ZFZ—ANF+_HA=1+—HLFE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31, A e AL RSN ERE BT ()
2016 is as follows (Continued):
North Corporate
PRC America and others Total
rp AL AR T A Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANR¥T 5 ANR¥T 5T ANR¥T T ANR¥T T
Total assets & R 2,998,635 9,750 2,839,243 5,847,628
Total assets includes: B MRS
Property, plant and equipment @) - Tk M 52 2,400,696 6,053 1,209 2,407,958
Intangible assets M & 8,849 - - 8,849
Investments in associates W A e E = 246,667 = 246,667
Additions to non-current assets I yi B & & B 581 1,393 14 1,988
Total liabilities =Lk 303,611 3,972 4,900,258 5,207,841
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The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31,

2015 is as follows:

From continuing operations

Segment revenue

Depreciation, depletion and
amortization

Taxes other than income taxes
(Note 28)

Employee benefit expense

Purchases, services and other
direct costs

Distribution expense

General and administrative
expense

Impairment charges

Other (losses)/gains , net

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of losses of investments in

joint venture

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax credit/(expense)
(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

From discontinued operations
Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

igidié
e - IrFE B o

BUE (B BLERSH
(Wit 28)

B TR M A

BRI - M B AL
HERA

S
HIEH

B W ER%
Holtb (#8%) /s > W

g/ TVON
i E 0

FHARBLRREN
Tt 18

Ke BT A3 BE T (B48) /A1
Bk, (&)
AR BE TG

(F5t) / Wedi

PR A I
AR R T 1]

A4 (B#H) /I

PRC
g

BE_ZF-—HFET_A=Z+—HILFE

REDIELT

I 3 2 g fR A

Kazakhstan

e B S

Re-presented Re-presented

EH 25
RMB’000
ANRWET T

716,758
(514,655)

(4,334)
(71,672)

(115,687)
(20,516)
(27,304)

(748,309)
(15,532)

670

(85,950)

(886,531)
121,262

(765,269)

(765,269)
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B 251
RMB'000
ARHETFI

(179,147)

(179,147)

North
America

1%

RMB’'000
ARHET T

5,427
(5,127)

(217)

(5,279)

(3,798)
(16,705)
30,733

3,073

(3,414)

4,693

4,693

4,693

Corporate
and others

A B At

RMB'000
UNL S

(457)

(18,780)
(72,172)

(68,129)
(63,1 0;)
15,867
(352,020)

(26,627)

(585,421)
(144)

(585,565)

(585,565)

Total
it

RMB'000
ARHET

722,185
(520,239)

(23,331)
(143,844)

(120,966)
(20,516)
(99,231)

(765,014)
(47,902)

19,610

(441,384)

(26,627)

(1,467,259)
121,118

(1,346,141)

(179,147)

(1,525,288)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

5.

Segment information (Continued) 5. aabfs e (4)
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors BE - F—-HAE+ _H=+—HILEE
for the reportable segments for the year ended December 31, ) g PR AL 408 s B (48D ¢
2015 is as follows (Continued):
North Corporate
PRC Kazakhstan America and others Total
e W T Fi 1% A R 5t
Re-presented  Re-presented
EiETEY]] R RSl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHF T N S N ST ARHF T N S
Total assets B 3,942,814 3,036,764 47177 1,063,350 8,090,105
Total assets includes: B M
Property, plant and equipment A - TH Rk f 3,038,383 2,551,430 9,728 34,035 5,633,576
Intangible assets BVEE 15,089 343,738 768 - 359,595
Investments in joint venture AEGENEE - - - 505,994 505,994
Additions to non-current assets  JE i A 10,306 349,407 4,31 12 364,096
Total liabilities AERH 744,088 531,269 4,519 4,599,233 5,879,109

All segment information above re-presented segment results
after elimination of inter-segment transactions, which
primarily include interest income or expense from intra-
group accounts and loans.

The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is measured
consistently with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The amounts provided to the Board
of Directors with respect to total assets and total liabilities
are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the asset.

Sy R AR A A A TR TR 2 B Ik
2 RIEATIIR M2 M 5 £ A
115 45 T A0 2 W) BR T A A R AR 9 )
SUWASH -

1) 2 2B i IO AR O R O IA B O
el RNFRITE B mERY
RO B A S B AR R ik B
BB R RN F RIS WEE
JE N B AR 2 T ) A6 A O ) B
(A= TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

5.

196

Segment information (Continued) 5.

Entity-wide information

Analysis of revenue by category

g ik AE B (4f)

A 578 J i i
WA SR 53 A
2016 2015
S —E—RAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARHET T

Re-presented

25

Sales of oil and gas B R J KRS 524,331 713,480
Provision of services PR UL AR 10,643 8,705
534,974 722,185

For the year ended December 31, 2016, total revenue from
crude oil sales in the PRC amounting to RMB519.6 million
(2015: RMB707.1 million) are derived solely from PetroChina.
Crude oil sales revenues from PetroChina accounted for
97.1% (2015: 97.9%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2016.
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BE - F—NET+-H=1+—HIHF
JE > AR I AE B SR 8 S A AR
HARMWBI19.6HE G (ZF—HF: A
R#707.1 8 &0) » WA ES A
WAEBMIKA - BE_F—ANFE+_H
= H LA R A B Y TR
AEAEH B AH97.1% (—F—H
4 97.9%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

6. Property, plant and equipment 6. ABIE - LRk
Exploration Vehicles, office
and Buildings and other
evaluation Ol and gas and production Construction
assets properties improvements equipment in progress Total
HH BA% ‘
HERAERE hEEE BEMERE  RlREER i3 AR it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARHFTE ARBF T AREFT AREFTE ARHFTE ARHF T
At January 1, 2015 R-ZF-1%—A—H
Cost wE 154594 11,148,585 19,870 116,624 509,69 11,848,469
Accumulated depreciation and Rt E R
impairment (12,036) (5,243,034) (5,085) (59,641) - (5,319,796
Net hook amount IR 142,558 5,905,551 14,885 56,983 509,696 6,629,673
Year ended December 31, 2015 Ei:?:ﬂﬂi
FZRAEH—HLEE
Opening net book amount AR 142,558 5,905,551 14,885 56,983 509,696 6,629,673
Exchange differences EAER 6,359 112517 802 1,061 26,744 147,483
Additions B 40,106 30,146 1,071 7] 269,971 352,235
Disposals RE - - (976) [3,088) - (4,064)
Transfers L (98,465 169,474 - #3) (70,966) -
Depreciation charge %R - (636,851) (3.209) 11,193) - (651,253)
Impairment charge W E% .
— Continued operations (Note(d) ~ — FHEAE (it (o)) - (746,781) - - (17,011) (763,792)
— Discontinued operations = RIFEE (W 1702)

(Note 17(a)) - (53,022) - - (23,684) (76,706)
Closing net book amount FAE A 90,558 4,781,034 2573 44,661 694,750 5,633,576
At December 31, 2015 R-Z -1k

(Re-presented) TZAZ R (ER25)
Cost e 103,329 11,663,182 31,255 104,731 736,407 12,638,904
Accumulated depreciation and 2Rt R

impairment (121m) (6,862,148) (8,682) (60,070) (41,657) (7,005,328)
Net hook amount IR 90,558 4,781,034 2513 44,661 694,750 5,633,576
Year ended December 31, 2016 ﬁi;?:f{ﬂ?

FZRAEt -

Opening net book amount AR 90,558 4,781,034 2513 44,661 694,750 5,633,576
Exchange differences EsEH 9,993 102433 702 838 33,625 147591
Additions B 1527 6,698 159 187 60,616 80,237
Disposals RE - - - (344) - (344)
Reclassification N - - - - (134,030) (134,030)
Disposals of subsidiaries REFAT (215,833) (1,652,241) (11,568) (12,337) (601,029) (2,493,008)
Transfers i 103,755 (72,400) - = (31,355) =
Depreciation charge i = 492,251) 3,307) (9,265 = (504,823)
Impairment charge ‘fﬁﬂﬁ@% .
— Continued operations (Noteld)) = H A4 (M3 (a) = (153,288) = = = (153,288)
— Discontinued operations = R (W 1702)

(Note 17(a)) = 161510) = - (6,443) (167,953)
Closing net book amount FAIE A = 2,358,475 8559 24,790 16,134 2,407,958
At December 31, 2016 )

+ZRA=-H
Cost e - 8,819,467 10,375 74,582 33,146 8937570
Accumulated depreciation and ZRtTE L
impairment = (6,460,992) 1,816) (49,792) (17,012) (6,529,612)
Net book amount WA = 2,358,475 8,559 24,190 16,134 2,407,958
2016 F 3R » MIBERIZERAMR AR 197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SO Wk M E (8

6. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a)

6. AByE - TR st ()

(b)

(c)

(a)
2016 2015
ZE N ZE—HAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥ET 6
Re-presented
A2
Depreciation charge is IS AR
recognized as:
Charged to loss for the year FEAEE R 487,866 628,204
Capitalized into oil in tank BAL A AN 16,957 23,049
504,823 651,253
(b)
2016 2015
ZE AN ZE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANRH#T T
Re-presented
E Y]
Recognition of charges relating to AR MR & E HERR T
asset retirement obligations in BEFEBERG (Kt 25)
the additions of oil and
gas properties (Note 25) 1,354 6,076
(c)
2016 2015
BN TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANRH#ET 0
Re-presented
E Y
Assets directly used in and A [ B T RT SL R 7
operated under the S WA TR BT LA R B
Group's PSCs with PR A
PetroChina in the PRC
— Cost — WA 8,694,370 8,827,785
— Accumulated depreciation — B R
and impairment (6,302,272) (5,799,335)
2,392,098 3,028,450
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(d)

Impairment assessment — Continuing
operations

As set out in Note 2.9, management has identified
indicator of impairment on non-current assets exist in
three cash generating units (“CGUs"”) as at year end
date, namely two individual blocks under the PSCs in
the PRC and a working interest in the USA.

The carrying value of the CGUs is compared against
respective recoverable amount, which is estimated
based on value-in-use. Value-in-use is calculated based
on pre-tax cash flow projections which is consistent
with the financial budgets as approved by the Board of
Directors.

In performing the impairment assessment, key
assumptions and input data adopted by the
management include forecast crude oil prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and
capital expenditures and discount rates. Management
determined the forecast crude oil prices based on the
approved financial budgets and also bench-marked
against a range of price forecasts published by various
reputable banks and industry organisations. The
forecast production volumes were based on
management’s production plan and forecast production
volume for the remaining concession periods as set out
in the reserve reports. Management determined the
forecast operating costs and capital expenditures based
on its financial budget and business plan. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant business.

(d) WALRENG — FFAAEE

WM EE2.9 B R > 4 PR 7E 4F K ik
A=W S E S Eoh RN
EEFEBAENTS - RS2
=W A B A IR S A
TEEE dh A0 A ] 2 7 A AR [ 3 A
AV 2 180 O A A S i 1 [ B

1 B <8 E B Y R T (i B ][]
W B BEAT L > AT Rl R AR
BB AT 5T - R EER
AR 5 B R i v ) B 5 TG —
BBl AT B & i B T AR o

FEHEAT I (B REAG IRE - 75 37 i 47 1
F1 3] S A S0 SRR 4 D 4% 7
B> FEBE R SR A
B VAR BL A o Horp s AT
SRR AL P P 5 5 A T 0 i
A% > S BR 25 FER 44 B SR AT AN AT
S AEL il 5 i % L T e £ A 4 2 o
1127 o TivE 3 2R R G E IR
b B B R A TR 3T A B
T S AP AT T o A R
i AR AR L b 5 LB R S B ol
T TRAE 2 I FOBCE S o Pl
9 S 2R R S BRI R B A > 3l HLBL A
SIS 258 3 T S e BELATT AR B 9 4 A T

B e
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(d)

Impairment assessment — Continuing
operations (Continued)

Lower global crude oil prices gave rise to indication that
the carrying amounts of oil and gas properties of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 might not be
recoverable. During the year ended December 31, 2016,
the Group recognized an impairment charge on
property, plant and equipment of RMB153.3 million
(2015: RMB763.8 million). For the year ended December
31, 2016, impairment charge of RMB150.3 million and
RMB3.0 million are related to one block in the PRC and
the working interest in the USA, respectively, to reduce
their carrying value to the respective estimated
recoverable amounts calculated based on value-in-use.
The pre-tax discount rates used in the calculations of
recoverable amount for the two blocks in the PRC are
12.4% and 13.6% and for the working interest in the
USA is 12.5%.
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(d) BRAERFAG — FRAEACE (M)

] 2 Bk ST AR A R A (R B A 4R
B # 2 2016412 A 31 H MR E
JEE % T 16 {1 B PR (B T O 22 o
Kb A 1k £ 2016412 A31H > 4
BRERR TR E B R
WAL A NR¥163.3H &0
(20154F : NR¥763.8H #0) -
HHr150.3 & & e I (E 1 A 2 I
R L T A — (R BE BRI > R Y
3.0 7 o0 B S 3 48 [ AE S5 I
T B BRI 353 4T A Dol (B HE A o
Tol (B VEE A 11 4 B 45 e LR 1 (L
DA K] [E] i & AR A 22 48 > Horprm (e
Wi 4 8 B 3 A P A (DM AT I 5
BB AR - ES ] SR
TSR A > BF e B AR R
) B AT R BOR A £512.4% A
13.6% > % 3% B [ L BH £R 1) 35 BT 4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

7. Intangible assets 7. EBE&E
Mineral
extraction Mining
Software rights rights Total
#ft TR 4R 1 IRiE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARHTT ARHET T ARBET T ARHT T

At January 1, 2015 REZF—HFE—~A—H
Cost WA 24,304 18,132 555,874 598,310
Accumulated amortization ST R

and impairment (16,586) (15,358) (71,814) (103,758)
Net book amount W R 7,718 2,774 484,060 494,552
Year ended December 31, 2015 BRE-Z-LE+-H=1—H

JIR: 305

Opening net book amount AT FHE 7,118 2,774 484,060 494,552
Exchange differences M A% 29 84 22,963 23,076
Additions by | 11,870 - - 11,870
Amortization charge BEEm (3,609) (869) (7,021) (11,499)
Impairment charge AEREER
— Continuing operations - BEng - (1,222) - (1,222)
— Discontinued operations — L - - (157,182) (157,182)
Closing net book amount AR A 16,008 767 342,820 359,595
At December 31,2015 R_F—-H%E+-A=+—H

(Re-presented) (EHZ5)
Cost [N 36,251 19,241 589,905 645,397
Accumulated amortization and Bt

impairment (20,243) (18,474) (247,085) (285,802)
Net book amount ST 16,008 767 342,820 359,595
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

7.

202

Intangible assets (Continued) 7. EEEE(H)
Mineral
extraction Mining
Software rights rights Total
i TG ) SR b it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARMF 7 ARWF 7 ARWF 7
Year ended December 31, 2016 BE-FZ—-AE+-H=1—H
I
Opening net book amount A IR T I 16,008 767 342,820 359,595
Exchange differences T 55 61 20 14,015 14,096
Additions bl 251 - - 251
Disposals of subsidiaries EEFAH (1,107) - (185,037) (186,144)
Amortization charge - if el (6,364) (747) (4,137) (11,248)
Impairment charge BERR
— Continuing operations - EgE - (40) - (40)
— Discontinued operations (Note 17(a))  — & 1L (Wt 17(a) - - (167,661) (167,661)
Closing net book amount AR IR 8,849 - - 8,849
At December 31, 2016 RZZF-~HEFZAZ4—R
Cost A 34,459 20,555 - 55,014
Accumulated amortization and b6e e
impairment (25,610) (20,555) - (46,165)
Net book amount e 8,849 - - 8,849
Investments in associates 8. Faf¥itE
2016
ZER A
RMB’000
ANR¥TF75
At January 1, w—H—H =
Additions Em 283,677
Share of profits for the year RN A B A 36,115
Impairment (Note (a)(iii)) WA (BT (a)(iii)) (81,339)
Exchange differences i 50, 75 %K 8,647
Others HoAth (433)
At December 31, »+—_H=+—H 246,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

8. Investments in associates (Continued)

(a) Details of investments in associates

8. WiEfAERE (M)
(a) WBREE B VAT

Place of business/ % of
country of interest held Measurement
Name of entity incorporation Principal activities indirectly method
BELY/ ik 2e ]
A ) 41 A FEEM FEEE) Wl BE %
Palaeontol B.V. (“PBV") Netherlands Exploration and production 40.0%  Equity
(Note(i)) i B of oil in Kazakhstan ik
through associate
HREE 3 AL 18 e
EE R EA
Journey Energy Inc. Canada Exploration and production 37.4%  Equity
(“Journey”) (Note(ii)) mER of conventional, oil- Mgk
weighted assets in
western Canada
TEIER P RRAERT LA A T A0
R R R DR B g
PetroBroad Copower PRC/Hong Kong Exploration of petroleum 34.0% Equity
Limited (“PetroBroad”) s products in the northern part T4k

(Note(iii))

of the South China Sea
pursuant to the PSC
with CNOOC

BT A4 A B e Y L
Bt E A B TR -
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(a) Details of investments in associates (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

PBV

As disclosed in Note 17 (a), upon completion of
the disposal in November 2016, the Group
retained the remaining 40.0% equity interest in
PBV and it became an associate to the Group.
According to the fair value calculation based on
the consideration, the initial cost of the investment
in PBV is nil.

Journey

On September 15, 2016, the Group entered into a
share purchase agreement to subscribe for 37.5%
interest in Journey, a company listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange, at a consideration of
CAD 33.8 million (equivalent to RMB171.7 million).
As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s equity
interest in Journey reduced from 37.5% to 37.4%
due to issuance of new shares in Journey.

With the assistance of external professional
experts, management performed the fair value
assessment for allocation of the purchase price in
respect of the investment in Journey at the
acquisition date. Based on the assessment, a gain
of RMB29.8 million arising from the acquisition
(Note 27) mainly due to the under valued share
price of Journey resulted by the current low
commodity prices environment.
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(a) MR EaE i - ()

(i)

(ii)

PBV

W 5E 17(a) BT 4 88 - fE5 0
B A By 58 AR AR 4R B AT 4
£ I PBV 40.0% B fifi 22 %,
BAEEB S AT - LI
S E B ERE RN A R E
{5~ 3B PBV (1 4] 4F % & ¥

Journey

SE-ANFRATHEH S A
LEFEETHEEZMEH
% & 5 B b B Journey
37.5% & 1 1 1h k> 38 5
& £ Nk 33.8 B S T (S5 A
R¥171.78 & c) o B R
Journey #ATHi Ik > A &
—NE+_A=+—H M
R EAIT Y EERFA
Journey % ¥ H137.5% i# 2>
£ 37.4% °

AN ER W WBI Y > EH
& ¥ E H Y [Journey ] £
EHETT T B B S A
oA B FE Al o AR BB R% TH T
> W EAM KRR A AR
Wr29.8'H # ) (ME27) -
JE B E A A K P
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(a)

Details of investments in associates
(Continued):

(iii)

PetroBroad

In May 2016, the Company entered into an
investment cooperation agreement to subscribe
for 34.0% interest in PetroBroad for a
consideration comprising cash of HK$3,400; and a
shareholder’s loan of RMB84.8 million. The
shareholder’s loan is equity in nature and is
recognised as investment in PetroBroad.

As indicated by the accumulated loss incurred in
PetroBroad and the current result from its
exploration activities, the Company has provided
a full impairment provision on the investment in
PetroBroad of RMB81.3 million.

(b) Fair value

PBV and PetroBroad are private companies and there
are no quoted market price available for its shares.

As at December 31, 2016, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in Journey was CAD45.8 million (equivalent to
RMB235.4 million).

(a) We R 8E aE A (M) -

(i)

HE R

AT —NAETRH > AN EIE
EREAEHREREER
A A RS A E R
F1 1) 34.0% & HE I 358 05 HE
ZE{E A 3,400 5 TCAY A R4
R REFH S AR 848
HE I o #% A R R R S
fat R 2 3 3 = AN Y 4%
go

MR 138 = A 19 B 5B 2 K
HOH F IR B A T
HHEMARKS1.3EETH
B 2RI -

(b) 2 SfHAE

PBV } PetroBroad 2 3 L i /A #] >
IR e L B3R A R R T S AR A -

AN E—NETFA=Z+T—H K
SE B 54 70 Journey A3 O A A8
AN 458 H &t (r & AR
#2354 H L) -
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(c)

(d)

Accounting policies

Major differences in accounting policies between the
Group and Journey are listed as below:

. Journey adopts full cost method for its gas
exploration and production activities. Under this
method, all costs incurred in exploring for,
acquiring and developing oil and gas reserves are
capitalized, regardless of whether the results of
specific costs are successful, as exploration and
evaluation assets and will be transferred to oil &
gas properties, and ultimately being depreciated
on the unit-of-production basis upon production
phase of the project in future.

. The Group adopts successful efforts method, and
certain expenditures incurred and capitalized by
Journey would not be qualified for capitalization
under successful efforts method; therefore, such
expenditures were expensed off to ensure
consistency with the Group’s policies.

Contingent liabilities
As December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no contingent

liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in its
associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

8. Investments in associates (Continued) 8. BEAEHRE(H)
(e) Summarized financial information: (e) MEMBERIWMT :
Summarized statement of comprehensive income WELZABAR

Period starting from recognition date

H WIS E B B 46 0 R
Palaeontol B.V. Others Total
PBV HoAtb Mgt
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTE ARWTT  AR®TT

Revenue A 23,313 117,319 140,632
Depreciation and Prgs K&

amortisation expense (6,970) (38,334) (45,304)
General and administration EHE

expenses (7,164) (13,223) (20,387)
Taxes other than income taxes [ 1581 /M HiAth B 2 (7,374) - (7,374)
Others HoAh 42,204 149,123 191,327
Profit before income tax 3 it 45 58 i W 4 44,009 214,885 258,894
Income tax expense Frfs Bl E H (14,853) (119,175) (134,028)
Profit for the year P N = 29,156 95,710 124,866
Total comprehensive income A 4E 43 & W 25 444

for the year 29,156 95,710 124,866
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(e) Summarized financial information: (Continued)

(e) WEMBERWT : (4)
TZ B DL %

Summarized statement of financial position

As at December 31, 2016
REF—AEFA =N

Palaeontol B.V. Others Total
PBV Al At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF 70 ARBTF 7T ARW¥TF T
Current bk

Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBA%EY 97,659 12,093 109,752
Other current assets HARE G = 79,437 80,686 160,123
Total current assets B A 177,096 92,779 269,875
Trade payables JEAT ISR 72,222 115,245 187,467
Other current liabilities HAb i #h 421,022 490,873 911,895
Total current liabilities WEAEAE 493,244 606,118 1,099,362

Non-current FRH
Property, plant and equipment  REIE - T MM 2,167,554 1,846,618 4,014,172
Other non-current assets HibFmEEE 161,921 214,826 376,747
Total non-current assets JEW B A 2,329,475 2,061,444 4,390,919
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEAR 1,983,214 892,326 2,875,540
Net assets FEE 30,113 655,779 685,892

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associates adjusted
for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the associates (if any), and not the Group's
share of those amounts.

DA _E B S e A B i S Y B B
RN BB AR A
U AE SR O ) o 3l AE AR 4R )
SHLISH 8 A3 2 TR R BOR Y 22 BLAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

8. Investments in associates (Continued)

8. WhEikity (4)

(f) Reconciliation of summarized financial (F) 9082204 5 B iy o B
information
2016
ZEBAE
Total
Mt
RMB’000
ARHET I
Initial recognition of net assets U6 TR P 1 534,952
Profit for the year AAF W A 124,866
Currency translation differences AN 22 R 26,074
Closing net assets ERFE E 685,892
Interest in associates s eSS 246,667
Carrying value TR =Qi: N 246,667
9. Joint arrangements 9. HERH
(a) Investments in joint ventures (a) HEMERE
2016 2015
—EZE N —F L&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET 0 ANR¥FI0
At January 1, w—H—H 505,994 499,284
Additions En 1,765 29,874
Share of losses for the year FERNEH W EGIREE (3,382) (26,627)
Adjustment for unrealized gains NE A8 55 7 A Y
resulting from downstream KE B G
transactions (16,538) (26,447)
Disposals(Note 17(b)) BE (M7 17(b)) (448,163) -
Exchange differences [fE 58, 25 % (39,676) 29,910
At December 31, nw+—_H=+—H - 505,994
2016 F 3R » MIBERIZERAMR AR 209




(b) Joint operations

During the year ended December 31, 2016, through its
subsidiaries, the Group has the following joint
arrangements which are accounted for as joint
operation in accordance with IFRS 11 “Joint
arrangements”.

Daan and Moliqing PSCs

The Group and Global Qil Corporation (“GOC”), a
limited liability company incorporated in Bahamas,
(collectively the “Foreign Contractors”), respectively
hold a 90% interest and a 10% interest in the foreign
participating interest in each of Daan and Moliging
blocks within the Daan and Moliging oilfields located in
Northeast region in the PRC. These oilfields had been in
the commercial production phase since 2005 and 2008,
respectively, the Daan PSC would expire after about 8
years in 2024, whereas the Moliging PSC would expire
after about 12 years in 2028.

Pursuant to the respective PSCs with PetroChina the
annual gross production of the crude oil shall, after
payment for value added tax and royalty, be firstly
deemed as the cost recovery oil and shall be used for
cost recovery in the following sequence:

(i) Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by Foreign Contractors and PetroChina.

(ii) The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment recovery
oil shall be used for the simultaneous recovery of
the pilot test costs and the development costs
incurred by Foreign Contractors and
predevelopment costs spent by PetroChina in
proportion of 20% by PetroChina and 80% by
Foreign Contractors. The unrecovered costs of the
parties shall be carried forward to and recovered
from the investment recovery oil in succeeding
calendar years until being fully recovered.
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(b)

eI 588

HWE_HFAFT A=t —HIE
R BT AR AREREA
DA 3 (7] #5885 S s MR I 19 5 i
ARSI BB L] BE S
SR AL o

KR ANZEHL T B Jr R [

A 42 (8] B R K A BE B8R 3R A T A 7
(DAt [3Rekah]) » — &KL
REEERAT > (5 47 &
1) AR % T 5 B T A [ R
43 A TR 9 A1 B 2 BELRE 5 1 40 T
H90% J% 10% H9 HE £5 o K% K 5
B I AR B R A o F Ak
AR A Bl — B R RAEM %
T AEEAPTEAEEY o RKEER
A TR 2 U ER ] s &
W) R A R R 40 B\ AF B
FE i 4 LA TR =& AR F)
B ARFGAERRRL S+
45'50

R B e ik A9 R B A B
(] o D 9 4F B2 AR A SO
Pt I R 6 o FH) 2245 > i B SR 2
2 [0t > S0 0T A BR T R
2 T

(i) AT & R b i
FEE I RAE A AR -

(1) 2 1) 5l A R 5358 43 7E 32
TR % > S E LA
[l Uiz I o 3% A% () i T o
FR R 42 o T A4 20% K4
75 & [\ & 1k 80% 1 L 4 >
] 5 |1 Wi A1 D7 45 [ & 2 A
B S0 el B I R A - BH AR
FA B AR A i T S A 9 RT3 B
B R o 51T R B R K
A J) ol 5 B BB B B AE Y
& B b o 3 H oA
o HERBE WA IE -



(b) Joint operations (Continued) (b) JEF&KE (4)

Daan and Moliging PSCs (Continued) KZ B E A (4])

(iii) After all pilot test costs and development costs (i) PAEAT A B4R > 758
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the i B ) AR K B EE 2R [
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for 1% > %0 R AR E = 0 R
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be R T 43 1% 1 25 I 3 B Sif
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 52% and B 4% o o 46 52% B sk Iy
Foreign Contractors 48%. A IRl & 431k 48% 1 L il 3 47

o

(iv) The operating costs so incurred after the date of (iv) BA4G T B4 e 1R BT B A 0
commencement of commercial production shall VE 2 W4y B i Ao o B A5
be paid respectively by PetroChina and Foreign & [F) 3 ¥ 0 4 BE R BB T
Contractors in accordance with the proportion of DA AT o

oil allocated to each party.

GOC is entitled to a 10% share of the Foreign WA MA RGN T G R EAH)
Contractors’ interest in property, plant and equipment, e~ LR s~ U A N S %
income and expenses. The Group received income and 9 10% o A S B AR R IR ER A ik
paid expenses on behalf of GOC, which has been BOBA > WS A3 WS RIE D
recorded in the relevant accounts with GOC (Note 37). FOBR N ERER A A B AR B A (B E
37) °
Details of principal subsidiaries FEF A AN
Country of  Kind of Principal activities and  Particulars of Proportion (%) of ordinary
Name incorporation legal entity Place of operation issued share shares held by
b4 AL RRERER FEEHREBNE AR 2 EEAEA Firks 3 R L 4 (%)
Non-
The The controlling

Company Group interests

B M vk bl g

Gobi Energy Limited ~ Cayman Limited liability Production and sale 100 ordinary shares of
(“Gobi”) EEFS company of il in the PRC 1US$ each 100% 100% -
AREEAT EREEEREERE 1005 8K BR—F1

Riyadh Energy Limited  Cayman Limited liability Production and sale 100 ordinary shares of
(“Riyadh”) HEHE company of oil in the PRC 1US$ each 100% 100% -
ARFAE A EPREER LGRS 100%EN - BR—Fx

Camel Qil and Gas PRC Limited liability Research and technical  Registered capital of
Technical Service I company development US$2 million
(Tianjin) Limited ARFEEAH in the PRC HMER2EE LT 100% 100% -
I THER T
fufli b5
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December 31, 2016

Assets as per statement of
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities as per statement of
financial position

Borrowings

Trade and other payables
excluding non-financial
liabilities

Loans and Available-
receivables for-sale
Bk B i B

JE W3k SREE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFE  ARWTR

SF R AS TN

Derivative
financial
instruments
fiik
SBTH
RMB’000
AR

90,325

90,325

Derivative
financial

cost instruments

B RA ik TR

RRIR A B IR DL Y B
&SR E - 63,330
FREMSCRR 2 B E AR 2k
NEFEFR 2,046,989 =
MEEmMITH - -
Ba R EFEY 904,961 =
2,951,950 63,330
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
H
S AE
RMB’000
AR® Tt
HRUR I 5K UL e iy £ 1
X 4,690,555
JRE AT R 3 B L At M A5 3K
TEFE &R AR
306,757
Derivative financial instruments  fiiAE 4/ T H -
4,997,312
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RMB’000
ARW Tt

20,576

20,576

Total

oS
RMB'000
AREF 70

63,330

2,046,989
90,325
904,961

3,105,605

Total

At
RMB’000
ARW T

4,690,555

306,757
20,576

5,017,888



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

11. Financial instruments by category 1. &k T H (F58050) (48)
(Continued)
Loans and Available-
receivables for-sale Total
BRI CIE ==
JREWSEER LA HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT  AR¥T AR¥TT
At December 31, 2015 R_-F—HE+"H
(Re-presented) (EH25)
Assets as per statement of TR U IR 0 3% i
financial position
Available-for-sale financial assets 7] i {8 4 il & - 27,105 27,105
Trade and other receivables JRRE A R B L Al B i K
excluding prepayments ANELFEFAT K 737,955 - 737,955
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBEA&EEY 202,967 - 202,967
Restricted cash BRI B 4 471,164 - 471,164
1,412,086 27,105 1,439,191
Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
oAt 4 B 1K
TR A Hast
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F0 ANRH#ET T
Liabilities as per statement of FR38 A 5 51K 0 3 ) £ £
financial position
Borrowings &K 4,954,119 4,954,119
Trade and other payables excluding AT B 3k e HoA A 3K >
non-financial liabilities AL JF 4 R 715,913 715,913
5,670,032 5,670,032

2016 54 » MIBERIZRERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

12. Available-for-sale financial assets

12. ] fit B

2016 2015
ZZE—A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥TI0
At January 1, w—H—H 27,105 75,541
Exchange differences REE 54, 25 %6 4,845 3,096
Addition i 39,044 7,156
Net gain/(loss) transfer to equity Tt (s 18 ) EE A 5
(Note 22) (MtiE22) 18,405 (24,762)
Disposal B (26,069) (33,926)
At December 31, wh+_H=+—H 63,330 27,105
Represent: 35
Listed securities: iR
— Ordinary shares — HE A
— USA — £ 1,039 2,511
— Hong Kong — i 14,646 -
Unlisted securities: I LT
— Equity interest - R E 42,246 22,487
— Corporate debenture - AFEME 5,399 2,107
63,330 27,105
Market value of listed securities i EE A 15,685 2,511
(a) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (a) BRWAFELLTHI WA A
currencies:
2016 2015
ZE N ZE AR
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TI0 AR¥F0
Uss BV 43,285 24,998
HKD e 20,045 2,107
63,330 27,105
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(b)

(c)

The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cash
flows discounted using a rate based on the market
interest rate and risk premium specific to the unlisted
securities. The fair value are within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the debt investments
classified as available-for-sale.

(d) None of these financial assets is either past due or
impaired.

Assets i

Current B 4

MAST Index Linked Investment B 6 MR FE B B %
(Note(a)) (Ktit (a)

Liabilities =L

Current B

Oil options (Note(b)) A (B A (b))

(a)

MAST Index Linked Investment

On December 29, 2016, the Group entered into an
investment agreement with Hammer Capital Group
Limited (“HCG"”), pursuant to which the Group
purchased an investment that pays a coupon linked to
the 4% volatility target performance of Merrill Lynch
Multi Asset Strategy Index (the “MAST Index”) at an
consideration of US$13.0 million (equivalent to
RMB90.3 million) (the “MAST Index Linked
Investment”). The maturity date of the investment is
March 29, 2017. As at December 31, 2016, the fair value
of the MAST Index Linked Investment does not change
and no gains/losses was recognised due to the changes
in fair value.

(b)

(c)

(a)

I LTTRHEN A A EERRER S
e R AT SR LK IE TR
A R E R E AR - A A E
HTE 2> Fo A8 (8 8 47 10 55 = @ 1A (Fff
#£3.3) o

TEHR T H YT > 15 g A e e L i
FRAE I AT A3k A B 50 B MR T
{H -

<l AR S U BRI

2016 2015
—F A —R—hAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT 5T ARHETIE
90,325 -
20,576 -

SR SRObR 5 WOHT B 1%

ZER-ARNFTAZAILE  ARE
B E R AR RAE (TRE
A ]) BET A Wk > PRIk > A%
AR E > ZARE B A%
F R L 0B RIS TS RO B H A
ReBhE (T EMIER)) » BB FET
13.0 8 &t (&5 ANR¥0.3HE
JC) (FEMRTE B BB ) o B
B -%F—tE=H-+NH - &
CE-RNETHA=TH ) EM
8 ORI B 43 1 oA (Sl
b > AEEdRA AREESLEER
i 25 SRR AR DEERR o

2016 F iR



(b) Oil option

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group
entered the following oil options contracts with
Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch (“Citibank”):

(b) )it ith HI HE

AR F A A=
AP JE ST 3 BRUTE IR AT

WM AT (TAEREERAT 1) AR (9 J5 i 10

fEaR -

Contracts Trade Date Termination Date

& IF 25 H# giLHM

Trade 1 27 April, 2016 31 December, 2016
Trade 2 29 April, 2016 31 December, 2016
Trade 3 11 May, 2016 31 December, 2016
Trade 4* 30 November, 2016 30 September, 2017
Trade 5* 01 December, 2016 30 September, 2017
Trade 6* 05 December, 2016 30 September, 2017
Trade 7 29 December, 2016 30 June, 2017
Trade 8 29 December, 2016 30 June, 2017
Trade 9 29 December, 2016 30 June, 2017

* According to the oil options contracts, Citibank has the right but *

not obligation to extend transactions into December 31, 2017 at

pre-agreed strikes and monthly volumes as above. If Citibank
chooses not to exercise the option of extension, these oil option
contracts will expire on September 30, 2017.

The change in fair value of oil option, which are not designated
as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes, are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 27).
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Monthly
Notional
Quantity
(barrels)

A filist & ()
50,000
50,000
50,000
30,000
30,000
20,000
50,000
50,000

50,000

MR = F RN E RS R > fE
TRESRAT 72 40 L 5 S 45 B I HERLAT 1
A B RIEILT - A REFIE R
B S M E —F —LFE+
H=4—H « GURIEHRAT BIFRAT
o7 S BT F) 8R4 o T B 5 A S
F—LEAA=TRE -

AR 45 E 5 I DAL A 0 A EH i R
RN R HEEES) - GRS
Wi 25 R HERR B IR (MFRE27) »



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

14. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 14. T} 7K JE - {5 4 S H it i W
X
2016 2015
ZZEF—A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF o0 AR¥ET 6
Re-presented
HFES
Amounts due from related parties IR WAL BT Wy IR
— Palaeontol B.V. (Note (d)) — Palaeontol B.V. ({7 (d)) 935,998 -
— Others — HAth 223,530 490,970
Loans granted to third parties B8 =R (M it (e)

(Note (e)) 293,224 -
Other receivables Al B Wi T 227,252 108,077
Consideration receivables from JRE A B BT ) PR AT K

disposals of subsidiaries (Ktat 17(a))

(Note 17(a)) 320,675 41,307
Deposits PrE 4 128,335 55,196
Interest receivable JRE e A1) IS, 10,267 16,867
Advances to employees BT#HMH4% 1,736 2,765

2,141,017 715,182
Less: impairment provision (Note (b)) I8 : SEREMEAS (M7 (b)) (197,596) (68,183)
1,943,421 646,999
Value-added-tax recoverable s (E A - 36,454
Prepaid expenses 2 6,568 13,153
Advances to suppliers TAfTHR X 153,107 41,409
Current income tax prepayment TESHE W TSR - 4,825
Less: impairment provision (Note (b)) I8 : SEHRMEMR (/32 (b)) (151,871) (21,243)
1,951,225 721,597
Current W) 1,131,001 223,719
Non-current FE i 820,224 497,878
1,951,225 721,597

(a) The fair value of loans and receivables approximates to

their carrying amounts.

(a)  EHCH MR 2 ol (B AR
T B BT
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(b)

(c)

Movements on impairment provision

At January 1, W—H—H-
Unused amounts reversed o 4 A (]
Impairment provision R I8 e
Disposals of subsidiaries WA
Exchange differences b 5, 2% 58

At December 31, w+HA=+—H>

Provision and reversal of impairment provision have
been included in ‘other gains/losses, net’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The other classes within prepayments and other
receivables do not contain assets made impairment
provisions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
prepayments and other receivables mentioned above.

Aging analysis of impaired receivable balance:

Within 1 year 14ERLA
Between 1 and 2 years 1-24F
Between 2 and 3 years 2-34F
Above 3 years 34U B

The carrying amounts are denominated in the following
currencies:

Us$ ESy
RMB PN
KZT 2357
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(b)

(c)

SO 52 3)
2016 2015
e R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWET I8 NRBETIT

89,426 1,090
- (1,157)
252,756 86,673
(2,364) -
9,649 2,820
349,467 89,426

SRVEMS A FHR M E N O AR TE S
1if &5 3 Wi a3 0 T bl 4 4R
Ko THEIA -

T B At W b B HA S A
B ERHE SRR A o il
H o R B B i 1 7 DA b 2
%?g%#ﬁiﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬂ%u&%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ

Ot fE R G E R IR T

2016 2015
ZE N S KGR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHT 58 NRET T

22,717 -
56,293 15,303
13,874 -
256,583 74,123
349,467 89,426

N e DA 81 B AL

2016 2015
A B
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T I8 ANRBETIT

Re-presented

EvEY]

2,042,825 533,458
98,192 167,881

- 13,843
2,141,017 715,182



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot B R M EE (|

14. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 14.

(Continued)

(d) The amounts due from Palaeontol B.V. consists of
shareholder loans and other receviables. The
shareholder loans are unsecured, bear interest ranging
from 4.9% to 11.9% per annum (Note 37(b)) and
maturing in 2019 and 2036 respectively.

(e) Loans granted to third parties bear interests ranging
from 9.0% to 13.5% per annum and repayable within
one year. Included in the balance was an amount of
RMB208 million, which is secured against 50%
shareholding of an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the borrower. The remaining balances are unsecured.

T SRIE ~ D w42 2 Bt HE WL

(d) & Wz Palaeontol B.V.HY 3k JH 1, &
J SR RN LA E U R A R 4 o
RS MR > FRRE
4.9% ¥ 11.9% (Kt 52 37(b)) > 43 Kl
2019 4FF1 2036 4F 5| 1 -

(e) WMTHE=ZFHERFEMRELOI%
£13.5% > HE—FNER - HF
4 %A 55 208 H H T 1) B EOE IR A5 3K
NP2 2 17 7] 50% B B RERT
LR o FIERIY B R YR -

15. Trade receivables 15. JREWIR
2016 2015
ZZE—A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARt AR¥TI0
Re-presented
25
Trade receivables from: RENLE ) 3K

— PetroChina, billed (Note 37(b)) — FHM > BEEEERD
(Kt7£37(b)) 43,460 56,360

— PetroChina, unbilled (Note 37(b)) — FHM > REEFEEBD
(Kt7£37(b)) 51,191 20,566
— Others — HAth 8,917 14,030
103,568 90,956
Less: impairment provision W B A - -
103,568 90,956

(a) The fair value of trade receivables approximates their

carrying amount.

(@)  HEASRAR A 2 Ao (B BRI 17 < 8
HRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

15. Trade receivables (Continued) 15. FEWCRE K (48)
(b) Aging analysis (b) HREE WY
2016 2015
ZEB A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARHET T

Re-presented

A2

Up to 30 days KiEM30 H 101,771 82,010

31-180 days 312180 H 644 7,004

Over 180 days 180 H 1,153 1,942

103,568 90,956

Past due but not impaired L 46 A 1T e el AE 1,153 1,942
(¢) Asof 31 December 2016, trade receivables of RMB1.2 (c) Ro_F—NE+_A=+—H @&
million (2015: RMB1.9 million) were past due but not A AP (E Y B AR & 3 A A
impaired. These relate to a customer for whom there is R¥1.2F % 02015 : AR¥1.9
no significant financial difficulty and based on past T & 0) o B ER 4 HE R B B
experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered. 1) 75 5 NI 4 B K BA S TR 8 - AR LA
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as RSB > A ] LA IR o i

follows: A3 RN SK A MR ES A ATt

2016 2015

“E A TR —HAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR¥TT

Re-presented

HH 25

Pass due up to 180 days AR H 180 H 568 232
Pass due over 180 days e 180 H 585 1,710

1,153 1,942
The Group grants credit terms of between 30 days to AAEEBERIERNERBRAE=TE
180 days. —H/NTH o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting AR H > B R BE R O A
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables. -5 R AT B S P S T B (L o
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AN AR BN R A AT AT I (R AR B 4

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B OF B 5 R R Y 5 (AR)

15. Trade receivables (Continued)

(d) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following

15. FEWCRE K (%)
(d) 40T 51 &8 B B A

currencies:
2016 2015
ZZEF—A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥ET 6
Re-presented
HFES
uss$ ESSH 487 5,046
RMB ANRH#E 103,081 84,363
KZT 257 - 1,547
103,568 90,956
16. Inventories 16. i+ &
2016 2015
ZER N S RS
RMB’000 RMB’'000
YNGR ST ANRH#T T
Re-presented
HH 2
QOil in tank JEAETH 9,666 26,899
Materials and supplies YR AL R 20,489 26,457
30,155 53,356
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(a) Discontinued operation — Disposal of 60% (a)
equity interest in Palaeontol B.V.

Revenue WA

Expenses #

— Impairment provision — WE
— Property, plant and equipment — REE - LR
— Intangible assets — LG E

— Others — HAth

Loss before tax from ok JIT 5 50 A A% 1 4 T 75 1R
discontinued operations

Income tax credit A A A

Loss after tax from JIi 15 B 1% 2% 1k 488 7 19 s 16

discontinued operations

Net loss on disposals FACREEIEES

Loss from discontinued operations [ & ¥ A 2 6l i 5 & By # 1k
attributable to the owners of 2 B s 4R
the Company

On March 5, 2016, the Company and REB entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal
of 60% equity interest in Palaeontol B.V. and
assignment of 60% of the shareholder loans due to the
Group at the adjusted consideration of USD175.9
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,211.0
million).
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#ILK 2 — JE B Palaeontol
B.V. 60% &% 1%

Period ended Year ended
disposal date December 31,
B,E

®gILE +—HA=+—H

JEE H 14 B
2016 2015

TR N TE A
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

AR TE ARWT T

262,796 310,549
(167,953) (76,706)
(167,661) (157,182)
(349,517) (313,923)
(685,131) (547,811)
(422,335) (237,262)

63,920 58,115
(358,415) (179,147)
(358,671) -
(717,086) (179,147)

WoE—NEZHHH > RN A
REBEEHE AT » B M H 7t
£ Palaeontol B.V. 60% A9 i% 1/ LA
o) By AR S FAH B E A e
BRI > 35 AR T AL 5
R ET1759 8 Bt (Fréd A
R#1,211.0 G &T) -



(a)

Discontinued operation — Disposal of 60%
equity interest in Palaeontol B.V. (Continued)

The transaction was completed on November 25, 2016,
resulting in a loss on disposal of RMB358.7 million.
Upon completion, Palaeontol B.V. becomes an associate
of the Group.

The adjusted transaction consideration at completion
was US$175.9 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,211.0 million). The Group received an initial
payment of the proceeds amounting to US$131.8
million (equivalent to approximately RMB907.4 million)
at the completion and the remaining consideration
US$44.1 million (equivalent to approximately RMB305.5
million) is expected to be received by the Group within
one year.

As Emir-Qil represents substantially the Kazakhstan
operations of the Group, the Directors regard the
Kazakhstan segment as discontinued operations as
required under IFRS 5. The comparative figures have
been re-presented on a consistent basis.

Summarised financial information

Cumulative gains recognized in HoAth & A Wit P RERR A B
b g AR B R BT ik g

other comprehensive income
relating to discontinued
operations

Currency translation differences

ST AR
Cash flows BEwE
Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows

A7 T Y A A B < U
BCE B i A B e

# 1L &% — JE ® Palaeontol
B.V. 60% %y (#%)

ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁézmeﬁn H 25 H5¢

BRI ANRW3I587THE
o J& H 5¢ B 4 > Palaeontol
V. A AL E B AT -

‘I‘Fhﬁ‘é'ri\wf

AZTEN B 3R AR 138 5 BHE 5 2
JG175.98 &t (Fré ARH1,211.0
HE L) o 3L EI 58 AR AL i E
B ENAEIT131.8H &L
AA%%%EJ\E%%ME%

> PR IEA41 T EET (IS
Aﬁfﬁgsos.sﬁ*&a‘ﬁ: RS —
AR -

F A Emir-Oil fQ 5 B 7 17 B e
SELDEVEC:S (I E 35131

BRI S [Fra 2P ERNEE
(TIFRS 51) » A< £E B3 = 1 1 50
WA 5 ARAE By 4 1 SR B R o Lh
Her o AR —BUE R AETT = 2
1] o
WE G S
Period ended Year ended
disposal date December 31,
BE
#®iLE +—-H=1+—H
B E H B 1R
2016 2015
—E A e T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥F0
21,340 30,873
(81,057) 192,223
(205,736) (390,094)
(286,793) (197,871)

2016 F iR



(b) Continuing operations — Disposal of 100%

equity interest in Asia Gas

On April 1, 2016, the Company acquired all the 7.82%
non-controlling interests in Asia Gas & Energy Ltd.
(“Asia Gas"”) for a consideration of RMB105.1 million.
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
Asia Gas on the date of acquisition was RMB39.6
million. The Group recognised an decrease in non-
controlling interests of RMB39.6 million and a decrease
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB65.5 million.

On April 26, 2016, the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent third party purchaser
pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Asia Gas and the shareholder’s loan. As at the
date of the purchase and sale agreement, Asia Gas is a
100% wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
principal business activity of Asia Gas is, through its
joint venture Sino Gas & Energy Limited (“SGE"”), the
exploration and development of unconventional gas
assets located on the eastern flank of the Ordos Basin in
the PRC pursuant to two separate PSCs (Note 9). The
disposal has been completed on July 20, 2016.

The adjusted purchase price at completion is US$208.2
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,380.4
million). Asia Gas ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group upon completion and it did not constitute a
discontinued operation. A gain arising on the disposal
of RMB526.1 million was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 27).
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(b)

FrE K E — JE B Asia Gas
100% H# 23

TENEMNA—H - AAE LA
R¥1051 A& LR T 55 KA
SORE TR A BR A A (R KRR
7.82% Wy FE I MERESS - FEIEE H
Fr A 0 I R SR SR R0 FE 428 i PR 25 R
1A (A 45 39.6 & & T - 42 BRIk
PERIVERE RS 37D 39.6 T M T [ SR B
AN FTE EHE R 65.5 A 5
T o

ZE—NEMNAZAH > AN
B SR TR EE A
[l > AL A A & 8 B E R E L
O R AR R AT B AT A DL )
IR - REEARETH > A&
2\ AT B 0 R SR S8100% A9 HE
o BRI R AR AA EE LB TEE) 2
T A A 2 P R SR BR A
(FFE2S ) 78 5 B SR 22 M 2 b R
A8 > Ak BT 073 2 b 40 BB TR e 2 M
%~ BB IR WK RAE E (B
9) o IKEED N _F—XRFLH
—“FHSEM -

22 ) IR 48 AR e 8 1 i B A
BB FEI0208.2H Bt (K AR
1,380.4 H #0) - X HIM% > B K
RAAFRANTNTAT > R
ERHE A L SR o AR R B BT
A B U FR ) A BN R B26.1 H
I B TE A D 5 A Wi i 3= 3w (B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B O B 35 ARk Y & (4

18. Restricted cash

18. ZFR B 4

2016 2015
ZE N e S T
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ST UNEL T
Current ) - 462,669
Non-current FERE - 8,495
- 471,164
19. Cash and cash equivalents 19. BlE&ERBEEHED

2016 2015
SR N TE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ARHET T
Re-presented
EHET]
Cash on hand W4 38 153
Cash at bank AT 904,923 202,814
904,961 202,967

(a) Carrying amounts are denominated in the following (a) BRMEIEFALL T IG5

currencies:
2016 2015
ZE A e Sl G
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR ARM¥TI0
Re-presented
25
RMB NG 176,093 26,306
uss$ ESH 698,691 149,201
KZT 25 - 293
HKD i 28,712 27,148
Other currencies HoAth & ¢ 1,465 19
904,961 202,967
2016 3R » MIBERIZERAR AT 225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
O KRR M (])

20.

226

Share capital 20. JixA
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: AT B A A
Share
Number of shares  Ordinary shares premium Total
T & A A i 1 gt
(Thousand) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARBT ARETR N T
At January 1, 2015 RoF—nFE—H—H 2,632,157 17,5633 824,987 842,520
Shares placing AR 276,300 1,754 198,209 199,963
Allotment and issue of settlement SRR R SRR 4
shares to ACAP Limited ACAP Limited 55,718 359 43,599 43,958
Shares repurchase and cancellation et 0 Bk (25,578) (157) (17,488) (17,645)
At December 31, 2015 RoE—fFE+-H=1—H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
At January 1, 2016 and REF-RE-H-HR
December 31, 2016 +ZH=+—H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
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Details of the equity-settled share option schemes, share
award scheme and cash-settled stock appreciation rights
plan adopted by the Company are as follows:

The share options, stock appreciation rights and share
awards granted generally vest over a two or three-year
period following a specified vesting commencement date.
Typically, the share options, stock appreciation rights and
share awards granted vest at each anniversary of the grant
date within the vesting period, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date. The
terms of share options, stock appreciation rights and share
awards granted will not exceed ten years from the grant
date.

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009 with the
purpose of providing additional incentive to employees,
directors and consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under the Plan.

A A B A DA S R A5 A Y B AU ARE - 8
AR IS 443 RV ERL 4 5 B P T 44 b A )
TEHFNaF

152 B SBORE ~ B 6 (R A0 A% Y B 0
— PR 16 E i B8 B 4n I A0 BB AR 1Y T 4F 5
ARSI A B o — B > TR Y
J B HEE A i B 300 T Y 432 11 945 4 T
i > M2 B JRU 45 57 8 AT
PR B o B A0 M RORE - I O 1 (A AN
B By B W BR A 132 H R A
A4 o

(a) B0 5% i B < 5t 380 (DA T A
[&t#]1)

AARERGR _FFIFE+T—H
B B R A B0 5% B 4 R
# o BTE A A E TR BRI
BRLEREFNATHAAR > 4
& 8 ~ HF KRR AR Mg -
7N 7] JE S T 4 6,072,870 i 3 4
J LA TE A 1 1 558 B P 4 7 81 o

2016 F iR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

21. Share-based payments (Continued)

228

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)
(Continued)

(i)

Stock options under the Plan

Movements in the number of share options and
their expiring date and exercise prices under the

21. JBedn S AF (48)

(a) JBc o 5% Jih B <&t 80 (DA F 8 4%
[wt#1]) (4]1)

(i) %t b A N A

% a3 R A R AT 8 B M
BH - KB A RATHEE R

Plan are as follows: BER
2016 2015
TR e S K2
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
¥y 4
AT R 1 BE T B B Ak HAmE
AtJanuary 1,and H—H—HR
December 31, +-H=1+—H US$0.15 20,127,386 US$0.15 20,127,386
Expiry date WA
November 20, 2019 —F—JU4F
+—H=+H US$0.13 17,048,120 US$0.13 17,048,120
November 23, 2020 — & &4
+—HA-+=H US$0.25 3,079,266 US$0.25 3,079,266
20,127,386 20,127,386
Exercisable w47 20,127,386 20,127,386

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, all the Share
options were exercisable.

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION e Annual Report2016
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(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”) (a) Bty % JEh B 4 51 20 (DL F 18 R

(Continued) [&H#]) (%)

(ii) Stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan (if) W% v (5 0 B B (P
Movements in the number of stock appreciation W2 ETE P A R R AT A
rights and their expiring date and exercise prices WEMESE - KB A &7
under the Plan are as follows: MEE B I

2016 2015
—F A e S S
Average Stock Average Stock
exercise price  appreciation exercise price  appreciation
per share rights per share rights
FI T
AT B A 0L B T Bt A3 4 1
At January 1 R—H—H US$0.13 44,194,443 US$0.13 43,930,190
Granted E%T - - HKDO0.01 2,140,000
Lapsed BLask US$0.15 (7,446,547) US$0.13 (1,041,457)
Exercised BT HKD0.01 (1,530,000) US$0.13 (834,290)
At December 31 R+_-H=1+—H US$0.13 35,217,896 US$0.13 44,194,443
Expiry date WA
November 20, 2019 —F—JL4F
+—HZ=+H US$0.13 34,363,252 US$0.13 38,599,799
February 26,2020 —% %4
—HZ+/H US$0.26 454,644 US$0.26 454,644
March 19, 2024 ZENEZA+TIUH HKD1.40 - HKD1.40 3,000,000
November 20, 2025 — % F4F
+—H=+H HKDO0.01 400,000 HKDO0.01 2,140,000
35,217,896 44,194,443
At December 31, 2016, all outstanding stock W E—NE+_A=+—
appreciation rights were exercisable. (2015: H > A0 R AT 5 0 A 3
42,054,443 out of the 44,194,443 outstanding stock B HE Y5 By m] A7 4 % 10y 1 (E FE
appreciation rights were exercisable). (ZF—HAF 1 44,194,443

W AT 6 Y R e (ERE P s
42,054,443 1}y 7% 7T A7 i B 153
HEERE) o

2016 F iR



(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules (the “Scheme”)

The Scheme adopted by the Company was approved by
shareholders on November 27, 2010 in accordance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
options under the Scheme held by employees
(including directors) and movement in such holdings
during each of the two years ended December 31, 2016

(b) i B HE S 8] (% b vi 5 B
1B &) (GH#)

MU ETTRLANES +-Ew IR
R EF-FE A B A
O E R BT R AN > SRR T 8 )
(R 2 T 46 7 4 EAE Hh B R Y
B TR T B 25 98 -

1 Bt st 8 T A AT B T (H4i#
5) FEA B RAT A I RE R R E
F-NER FE-HLE+T A
= Hb AR B R s B W

and 2015: BRS¢
2016 2015
— A TR
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
A7 18 4 ik L T HAHE
At January 1 w—H—H HKD1.61 108,947,705 HKD1.66 133,974,355
Granted e HKDO0.816 95,920,000 - -
Lapsed oAk HKD1.40 (10,474,866) HKD1.61 (25,026,650)
At December 31 B+-RA=+—H HKD1.23 194,392,839 HKD1.61 108,947,705
Expiry date A
September 20,2021 —F_—4
JUH —+H HKD2.254 26,962,334 HKD2.254 26,962,334
March 20, 2024 TR PUAE
=HA—-+H HKD1.40 71,510,505 HKD1.4 81,985,371
December 8, 2026 TE TN
+_—H/NH HKDO0.816 95,920,000 - -
194,392,839 108,947,705

At December 31, 2016, out of the 194,392,839 options
(2015: 108,947,705 options), 73,168,943 shares (2015:
26,962,334 options) were exercisable.
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194,392,839 13 A 47 i 1y 1 ik B o
(=& — T4 108,947,705 ) >
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(c)

2015 Share Award Scheme

Apart from above Plan and Scheme, to recognize the
contributions by certain grantees and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board of Directors resolved to adopt the
2015 Share Award Scheme on January 6, 2015.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, 12,000,000
shares of the Company were granted and offered to
certain directors under the 2015 Share Award Scheme
at the exercise price at nil.

At January 1 w—H—H

Granted R T

Exercise AAEE AT

At December 31 w+-H=+—H
Expiry date FH A

November 20, 2025 —“E _HAFE+—HZ=+H
December 8, 2026 “E RNFE+T+-H/NH

(c)

B ARy S Rt

% - e 475 5 TG B 4 5T ) e
FHEILASN > AN FE R G D R0
TE—-FAE—H N HBRGERM 3
R FE—AFE+—H ke
F12015 By S8 Bh s & > H 192 3R
AT AR AR AT B0 B R A 4G T I
Bl £ 7R 4R B Y AR R o R
B RAR N I B AN SR B — 2
RS E AN -

Bl —F—-NEF_A=+—H4%E
BE > R E— RS
12,000,000 A R 42 T 45 2

B HATHES AZE -
2016 2015
ZER A TR
Awarded Awarded
Shares Shares

53 ih 1B 1 By

14,200,000 -
12,000,000 14,200,000
(9,500,000) -

16,700,000 14,200,000

4,700,000 14,200,000
12,000,000 -

16,700,000 14,200,000

2016 F iR



(d) Fair values (d) 2 RfEfE

Share options and stock appreciation rights Vi 5 R % % Ay 36 41 RE
At December 31, 2016, the fair value of stock AN EB—NE+_H=+—H %
appreciation rights and share options outstanding is 3 6 (ELHE B2 I T HE B4 2 Fe R (B0 il
determined using the Binomial Model and the Black- B A — T8 =4 AU A1 Black-Scholes
Scholes model, respectively. Their fair values and RIS o KA R EE L EERA
significant inputs into the model are as follows: SEH R -
2009 2010 2015 2016
Grants Grants Grants Grants
“EFELE e S 222 “EHAE ZE R
g %"y ®"y By
Share
Stock appreciation rights options
& 153 Y 1 HE Ji J
2016 2016 2016 2016
“E N “E A “EF A “E N
US$ Us$ HKD HKD
eI *T biid biid o
Fair value per unit HHITAREE 0.02 0.01 0.73 0.45
Share price at grant date 1% 7 A {8 - - 0.95 0.79
Fair value per share at WK B A AMEE
period end 0.10 0.10 0.74 0.74
Exercise price FTHEE 0.13 0.26 0.01 0.82
Volatility (%) R (A7) 49.39 47.91 68.77 69.14
Dividend yield (%) B (4 1) - - - -
Annual risk-free rate (%)  4F 5 2 8 i FI| 3R
(A5 ) 1.32 1.36 1.89 1.57
Remaining term (year) T B IPR (4F) 2.88 3.15 8.89 10.00
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot B R M EE (|

22. Other reserves

22. - th fifi fhs

Repurchased Share Available-
sharesheld  Currency based Safety for-sale
bytrust translation  payment fund  financial
(Note(a)) reserve reserve reserve assets Others Total
A
B AR £ SME Rt &REE WikhE
(W) SRR il i SRERE Hil et
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETT  ARETE  AR®Tr ARETT ARETT AR®Tr ARETx
At January 1, 2015 RZZ—-HE—-H—H (59,824) (84,849) 109,829 187,356 (95) 1,447 153,864
Currency translation SMEREER
differences - (29,937) - - - - (29,937)
Change in fair value of available-  W{thE4REEN AR
for-sale financial assets L) - - - - (23920) - (23920
Reclassification of ERERETENESREE
accumulated change in [EEZ552E) — 4
value of available-for-
sale financial assets
upon disposal — gross - - - - (842) - (842)
Employees stock option scheme 1 B M FE =81
— value of employee services ~ — [E B - - 22,515 - - - 22515
Acquisition of additional interest  AIJMNE A AR
in a subsidiary - - - - - (45,160) (45,160)
Shares purchased under Tt 48 Rt 1 P R
Share Award Scheme (11,063) - - - - - (11,063)
At December 31, 2015 RoZ-H1E+-A=+—H (70,887)  (114,786) 132,344 187,356 (24,857 (43,713) 65,457
2016 F 3R  MIBERIZER AR AT 233



At January 1,2016

Currency translation
differences
Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
financial assets
Share of other comprehensive
income of investments
accounted for using the
equity method
Employees stock option scheme
— value of employee services
— shares to settle SARs under
the Plan
— shares transferred to the
Awarded Shares Grantees
Shares purchased under
Share Award Scheme
Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

At December 31,2016

REZ-AE-A—H
ST R
athESHEENAR
[EE%E

EXCES SN Ay
bR IR

{i Rt 1
- EARHHEE
- Bl nsEE
e

- BRRRRRDE T

M B R e
BN AR

A X i oy

Repurchased
shares held
by trust
(Note(a))
ftHE

I Rt A
(Wit (a))
RMB'000
NREF T

(70,887)

599

6,707

(63,706)

(127,2817)

Annual Report 2016

Currency
translation
reserve

SedR S
B
RMB'000

NRHT 7

(114,786)

(129,976)

(244,762)

Share
based
payment
reserve

Bt %t
Bl
RMB'000

N AV

132,344

27,990

(6,707)

153,627

Safety
fund
reserve

e 5
Ll
RMB000

NRH T

187,356

187,356

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets

A fhih
SHEE
RMB'000

NS Ao

(24,857)

18,405

(6,452)

Others

4]
RMB'000
ARWF 7

(43,713)

2,199

(65,531)

(106,445)

Total

it
RMB000
ARWF 7

65,457

(129,976)

18,405

2,199

21,990

599

(63,706)

(65,531)

(143,963)



(a) Shares repurchased under Share Award

Scheme

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of
SARs, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved
on May 30, 2012 to adopt a share award scheme under
which the Company will grant the SARs holders number
of awarded shares of the Company (“2012 Awarded
Shares”) that is equal to the number of outstanding
notional SARs held by such holders. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, no shares were repurchased (2015:
nil) and 870,000 shares were sold in settlement of equal
number of outstanding SARs (2015: nil). As at December
31, 2016, total shares held in trust under Share Award
Scheme amounts to 400,000 shares (December 31,
2015: 2,140,000).

During the year ended December 31, 2016, 9,500,000
shares held in trust under the 2015 Share Award
Scheme has been transferred to the Share Award
Grantees, including 4,700,000 shares held by trust on
behalf of holder (2015: nil). As at December 31, 2016,
the shares held in trust under 2015 Share Award
Scheme is 16,700,000 shares (December 31, 2015:
16,600,000).

(a)

2 B Ay B g et 2 [l i i A

Ve J 3 B3 38 (LR R ) (AT f A6
[ A7 33 (ELHE 1) B 175 DL A9 A 7T
ANFERGR _F - _FHH
= AR P R AR — JEUBC A7 B
FEE S R 5 B 0 (A 4%
H A2 ) B B4 (LT f AT 2012
BER AR ) > T AR 2 S
Y F AR AR A R B B 49 (E
W R AT R - BE
F—NET A= HIREED
] - 75 =T — AR AR ey Eh E
A 5 2 [ B (- — AR ) M
870,000 B i H AR 45 1 AR 452 A AR
IR 153 484 (L MEE ) 10 R 9 AT 42 SR
BEH(CER R F)  RF
—ANEFZHEZ—H > RGSEE)
FEHIIE T 52 5T AR B0 AR
400,000 ( — & — H 4+ =
=+—H :2,140,000 %) -

BE_Z-ANFTHA=+—HI
A BE IR R > 2015 B £ 2% 8 w1 #
HTITHZIEARENABRHRS
9,500,000 A% £ 48 #8155 45 1 17 5% B
W% T & > H 4,700,000 i B %
HEARABEHE (CF—H4E %) o
Bl —F—NETFH=+—H>
2015 B BE 5T 1 E T B Z 3T A
A 0 A8 %A 16,700,000 i (—
Z—HFE+_HA=+—H:
16,600,000 /i) -

2016 F iR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
O KRR M (])

23. Deferred income tax 23. BB
2016 2015
—F A —R—HAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt UNEL T
Re-presented
25
Deferred tax assets: IR AL B IH B E -
Deferred tax assets to be recovered A 1248 B A% i [m] 9 78 AE B I
after more than 12 months 40,590 23,795
Deferred tax liabilities: HEHEBEIE £ £ -
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled M 128 ARG RN R R IE A S
after more than 12 months (66,401) (137,882)
Deferred tax liabilities — net LR — (25,811) (114,087)
(a) Movements of deferred tax account (a) HEAEPrisBifa i8S E)
2016 2015
e S —R—HAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥T 0
Re-presented
25
At January 1, w—H—H (114,087) (292,433)
Exchange differences R 54, 25 %6 (4,728) (8,079)
Tax charged to continuing profit B RS RS TR
or loss (Note 32) (Bt7E32) (31,854) 126,988
Tax charged to discontinued 2 RS #¢ 18 5875 48 15 TR
profit or loss 64,876 59,437
Disposals of subsidiaries A RN 59,982 -
At December 31, w+=-H=+—H (25,811) (114,087)
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(b) The movement in deferred income tax assets (b) BEBREEEHAMBMNES

and liabilities, without taking into (BB %S4 1E ] — BB
consideration the offsetting of balances within BN HEEE)
the same tax jurisdiction
Deferred income tax assets WRAL P 1 BOA B
Accelerated Asset
tax  retirement
depreciation  obligations  Tax losses Others Total
BEmMATE BEEEERY B HAth oES

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTFE  AR¥TE  ARETL  ARWTE  ARWTI

At January 1, 2015 R_Z—nE—H—H 19,539 11,599 66,670 33,026 130,834
(Charged)/credited to (B, Wz e

continuing profitor loss K& EHHER (15,189) 176 129,544 (89) 114,442
(Charged)/credited to (&), Wt i &k

discontinued profit or loss & {82 - (2,167) 222,159 (11,280) 208,712
Exchange differences T 5% 4 - 407 13,107 1,471 14,985

At December 31, 2015 REF—LAE

(Re-presented) +ZA=+—H
(EHEH) 4,350 10,015 431,480 23,128 468,973
(Charged)/credited to (B, ez B
continuing profitorloss K& HEHHER (4,073) 170 81,988 (58) 78,027
Credited/(charged) to ks, () 4k
discontinued profit or loss &R - 174 (39,150) (18,134) (57,110
Disposals of subsidiaries  J& % T/ - (6,897) (279,521) (4,187) (290,605)
Exchange differences e 5. 2% - 390 16,736 604 17,730

At December 31, 2016 RZZ—5
+ZH=Z+—H 277 3,852 211,533 1,353 217,015

2016 F iR



(b) The movement in deferred income tax assets (b) BEREEEHAMBMNES

and liabilities, without taking into (IR B % B4 ax v 1 W] — 18 Bt
consideration the offsetting of balances within RS ) (48)
the same tax jurisdiction (Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEBRAE
Accelerated Fair value
tax gains of
depreciations mining rights Total
PRBEHE
BLEmENE A LEARE Ak
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHET T ARHET T ARWET T

At January 1, 2015 R_Z—HE—H—H (326,455) (96,812) (423,267)
Credited to continuing profit or loss it %5 7t Hr G 48 248 25 TE 32 12,545 - 12,545
Credited/(charged) to discontinued  itzs /(% ) A 4% 1 884

profit or loss B4 R (150,678) 1,404 (149,274)
Exchange differences e 5,75 %0 (17,194) (5,870) (23,064)
At December 31, 2015 R -F—-HE+_H=1+—H

(Re-presented) (EHL27) (481,782) (101,278) (583,060)
Charged to continuing profit or loss % It Hr 48 2R 25 TE 32 (109,881) - (109,881)
Credited to discontinued profit WS T 8 I BB IR S TR

or loss 54,241 67,745 121,986
Disposals of subsidiaries & A A 313,580 37,007 350,587
Exchange differences e 5,75 48 (18,984) (3,474) (22,458)
At December 31, 2016 R_-Z—A%E+_H=+—H (242,826) - (242,826)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

23. Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Deferred income tax assets not recognised (c)

23. WEAE P4 e (A)

AR e 8 90 A Py 15 L ¥
2016 2015
—FN TR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETIE ARWTIT

Re-presented

25
Tax losses and temporary difference <3 4k i A 15 &5 T8 ) s 48
T IR 2 851,912 199,804
Deferred income tax assets not TR I A0 SE T A5 0
recognized 212,978 49,951

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss
carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

Tax losses without recognition of deferred income tax
assets can be carried forward against future taxable
income. These losses amounting to RMB336.6 million
(2015: RMB199.8 million) and RMB228.1 million will
expire in 2020 and 2021, respectively.

S5 T R AT 5 B R IS R B 2 5
TR A AR S BT 153 50 6 O IR - 2
ARPEAR T RE 7 A 1) R 20 JE BB LT
17T B 5 4 A B B 5 ) i e

I TE R AR AL JIT 15 B0 & 7 M B 1E 2R
A LA R A M A B BT A5 4R > o
W iR e AR H336.6 H &t (—
E—HAF  ARW¥199.8 H o) Al
iR AR N 2281 H H oo (—
F—FE  B) AR _F %
SRR T T —4AEFH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot R AR M EE ()

24.

240

Trade and notes payable

24. JEAT IRk B E A 52

2016 2015
—FN —R—HAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIE AR¥TC
Re-presented
HF RS
Trade payables JRE AT B3 88,360 409,944
Less: non-current portion of trade W FE IR AT R K
payables (14,161) (37,329)
Current W) 74,199 372,615
(a) Aging analysis (a) SRERDHY
2016 2015
SR ANE CE R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE  AR®TIC
Re-presented
HH 2T
Up to 6 months e A 52,262 190,178
6 months—-1 year 616 A 2148 4,727 152,561
1-2 years 15 24F 8,184 51,506
2-3 years 2 34F 16,596 9,884
Over 3 years Z i 34F 6,591 5,815
88,360 409,944
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& Ot B SRR AT (4])

24. Trade and notes payable (Continued) 24, WEAT MR B EAT SR 0% (%)
(b) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (b) HRHEHL NG LN
currencies:
2016 2015
—FN —R—HAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ Tt ANR¥EF T
Re-presented

HH 25
RMB N 87,940 138,091
Uss e 420 107,162
KZT B - 164,691
88,360 409,944
(c) The fair values of trade and notes payables approximate (C) e ST B i e A 2 4y 5 o {1 L

their carrying amounts. R 4 BEAR VT o
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Asset retirement obligations (Note (a)) B BE W (MEE (a)
Interest payable JEATLE
Salary and welfare payable JRE AT 37 4 B AR R

Withholding and other tax payable
Other payables

Less: non-current portion of

Current

FRINFRABE B HE At AT B

LAt RE A 3R IH

W FRRBE T 2

— Asset retirement obligations — EEFEERY
— Withholding tax payable — fRInCEBE
— Other payables — Ho e A EOA
b

(a) Movements of asset retirement obligations
At January 1, R—H—H
Additional provision A EA
Disposals of subsidiaries A RN
Accretion expenses HEHE A
Exchange differences REE 54, 7 %8
At December 31, W+ _H=+—H

2016 2015
ZFAE F L
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F 7t ANR¥EF T
Re-presented
25
15,757 46,716
82,477 93,198
22,810 31,689
46,601 35,094
120,163 166,055
287,808 372,752
(15,757) (46,716)
(45,052) (32,892)
= (8,289)
(60,809) (87,897)
226,999 284,855
(a) EEFEEJRBEEHIRUF
2016 2015
A SER—HAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF AR¥EFI
Re-presented
HH 25
46,716 54,684
1,354 6,076
(34,486) -
2,644 3,652
(471) (17,696)
15,757 46,716

At December 31, 2016, included in salary and welfare
payable was stock appreciation rights liabilities of
RMB4.2 million (2015: RMB12.3 million) both for the
Group and the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& Ot B SRR AT (4])

25. Provisions, accruals and other liabilities 25. HEfh - TR L H b £ 1 (4)
(Continued)

(c) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (c) BRTESEELL I &N AL
currencies
2016 2015
—F A ZR— R4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETIE ARWTIT

Re-presented

A2
RMB ANRH 116,306 41,689
uss B 170,616 322,874
KZT 254 - 6,164
HKD ki 886 2,025
287,808 372,752

(d) The fair values of provisions, accruals and other (d) e~ TEIR KH AL A WA R EE

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts. B AR AT 2 RRAR T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot R AR M EE ()

26. Borrowings 26. fH#
2016 2015
—FN —R—HAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt AR¥ET o
Re-presented
HF RS
Current i B
— Bank borrowings secured (Note (a)) — IEPPERAT K (M3 (a) 104,000 529,872
Non-current R B
— Senior notes (Note(b)) — WESCEE (M (b)) 4,586,555 4,424,247
4,690,555 4,954,119
(a)  The bank borrowings are secured over the Group’s right to receive its (@)  ASHE AU CRERAT 5 Sk LAA S B AR BB K %
share of revenue allocated under Daan PSC. TEE i 40 LA T T 0 A 4 R M S K 40 B
BYRALE Ry BTG LR o
(b) (b)
Coupon rate Due date 2016 2015
FHAE FIHH TR N R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 0 ANR¥T 0
2018 Notes 2018 ZE4# 6.875% February 6, 2018 ZEZ— MEHNH 1,363,390 1,266,562
2019 Notes 2019 &4 7.5% April 25,2019 ZE-JUENA T HH 3,223,165 3,157,685
4,586,555 4,424,247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

(b)

26. Borrowings (Continued) 26. frisk (%)
(Continued) (b) (#)
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company repurchased a WEF-NEFH=ZF—HIFERE > A&
portion of the 2019 Notes from the open market of US$24.0 million AE [ 2 B T 35 (0] B2 S A (R A 95 T
(equivalent to RMB159.1 million) in aggregate principal amount. The 2404 &t (S ER ANRH159.1 F &) 1
purchase consideration paid was US$17.1 million (equivalent to 2019 L 248 o [a) B S A BHE Ay 3296171
RMB110.7 million) and a gain of US$6.3 million (equivalent to RMB41.6 HOH T (FENARE110.7 @ 850) > [
million) arose by comparing the consideration paid with the Sf 1 L (o] [ ) 55 G S8 A0 AR RS 1Y 24 B T
unamortized carrying amount of this portion of 2019 Notes (Note 29). T FI06.3 1 It (FEM AR 4.6
On August 12, 2016, the repurchased portion of the 2019 Notes has HEot) (BEE29) « —F—NENH+H
been cancelled by the Company and as at the date of cancellation, ARAEE O AT T8 I BRI
US$476.0 million (equivalent to RMB3,302.0 million) in aggregate S IHE (AR 75 5500 476.0 | T (SRR A
principal amount of the 2019 Notes remains outstanding. [ %3,302.0 B #70) 192019 B S BRI 5L
bk : 8
All Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities 1 S R 1Y O A B N 3% 5 538 5 B A PR A
Trading Limited. ke
Effective interest rate and estimated fair value (c) BBERIR DL B AT 2 B (E
Bank Senior
borrowings Notes Total
BT B ER st
Effective interest rate: B R
As at December 31, 2016 T ZF =N 4.79% 8.86% 4.79%
+=H=+—H to 8.99% to 8.99%
As at December 31, 2015 T E—HAE 1.5% 8.47% 1.50%
+=ZA=+—H t0 7.5% to 8.79% to 8.79%
Estimated fair value A REE
As at December 31, 2016 i TN 104,000 3,486,007 3,590,007
+ZH=1+—H
As at December 31, 2015 ) S 529,872 2,061,718 2,591,590
+ZA=+—H

The fair values of Senior Notes are based on its closing prices quoted
on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and are within level
1 of the fair value hierarchy; and the fair value of bank borrowings is
based on the borrowing rate at 4.79% (2015: 1.5% to 7.5%) and within
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Senior Notes which bear fixed interest rates are not subject to
interest rate changes.

PSR SRR AN O SO (R P LA T 3 i 2
225 T WO SRR N AE > SIS A AU (E
S FE A T ERAT A BN 2 AR (R R A
AN H4.79% (—F —HA4F : 1.5%-7.5%) ifi
E o B A A SAE SR — R A -

105 S S ELR B S8
) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
O KRR M (])

26. Borrowings (Continued) 26. fi#x (%)
(d)  The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: (d)  AEFEAME KT ERESRENT s
Bank borrowings Senior Notes
BT BRFER
2016 2015 2016 2015
RN R TR RN SRR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF ANR¥T T AR T 0 ANR¥ET T
Within 1 year —4ERLA 104,000 529,872 - -
Between 1 and 2 years —F AR - - 1,387,400 -
Between 2 and 5 years TR - - 3,302,012 4,545,520
104,000 529,872 4,689,412 4,545,520
(e)  Carrying amounts are denominated in the following currencies: (e)  HRTIEFHLIANT B WS AL -
2016 2015
TR AE TE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NS
Re-presented
HHTZET
RMB N 104,000 96,100
uss$ ESH 4,586,555 4,858,019
4,690,555 4,954,119
(f) Undrawn banking facilities: (f) FIRBURI TS5 -
2016 2015
A TE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ETFIT
Floating rate: TR
— Expiring within one year —AE R E - 290,000
Fixed rate: [if] 22 FI
— Expiring within one year —AE R E = 143,900
- 433,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

27. Other gains/(losses), net 27. HibFf3 (HBK) — HH
2016 2015
—F A —R—hAR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ANR¥TF T
Re-presented

HF RS
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary BT ARG (B 17(b))

(Note 17(b)) 526,132 -
Provisions for receivable TR R AR A (252,756) (84,447)
Gains arising from acquisition of an WAL I W A S AR A U A

associate (Note 8(a)(ii)) (K1E 8(a)(ii) 29,798 -
Losses on financial instruments SRl T HAR R (19,595) -
Gains from write off of payables TS I B AN 15 = 29,387
Others HAth 14,270 7,158

297,849 (47,902)
28. Taxes other than income taxes 28. BiIH (Fr i3 BLERAP)
2016 2015
ZER AN TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET o AR¥F0
Re-presented
HH 2T
PRC: ]
Urban construction tax and education IR A R B 0 2

surcharge 2,839 3,849

Others HAth 96 484

2,935 4,333

Corporate and other segments: RS R H At 7775 -

Withholding tax and others (Note) AN S oA (Hf7E) 10,479 18,998
13,414 23,331

Note: i

During the year, all (2015: all) withholding tax is related to interest expenses JAAAERE » g (2 F— T4 - BT A) AAFnfCaasi iy

arising from the intra-group loans. LA 1) O 3R R T 7 AR O A AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SO Wk M E (8

29.

248

Finance costs — net

29. MEEH — B

2016 2015
—FN —R—HAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ET o
Re-presented
HF RS
Finance income BEWA
Interest income on deposits TEFF B YA 17,490 19,610
Finance costs B
Interest expenses at coupon IS (4 R 2 i 1) 20
rates/bank rates AT RZH) (369,061) (352,029)
Amortization of discounts T 354 (52,066) (53,716)
Gains on repurchase of 2019 Notes ] i 2019 18 Jo IR 1 i =
(Note 26) (7% 26) 41,592 -
Other fees HoAth 2 (558) (1,607)
(380,093) (407,352)
Exchange losses, net e SeHE 2% > W5HAE (23,858) (34,032)
(403,951) (441,384)
Finance costs — net WHEMN — B (386,461) (421,774)
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Employee benefit expense (Note 31)
Depreciation and depletion of property,
plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Impairment charges on property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)
Impairment charges on investments in
associates (Note 8)
Impairment charges on intangible assets
(Note 7)
Auditor’s remuneration
— audit and audit related services
— non-audit services
Operating lease expenses

Wages, salaries and allowances

Housing subsidiaries

Share options — value of employee
services (Note 22)

Awarded shares — value of employee
services (Note 22)

Stock appreciation rights expenses

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (Note)

Welfare and other expenses

B TH MR A (MfaE31)
REYE ~ TS T8 B P ke

BT B

REYEE ~ TR S 0 (3 2R
(7% 6)

W A ST B W E (M7t 8)

IV AR K (M AL 7)

A B A
— Rk LA AR B AR
— FeE IR
KeE i E 2

TE -~ Hra LA

A 5 A

W ICHE — f BIRBS(E (8 (K7L 22)
BER Ay — B BB E(E (7t 22)

I 4 384 (ELHE 22T
BIRE A — BE S AT R # (ffat)

A ) K2 Ho At 22 1)

2016 F iR

2016
RN

RMB’000
YN

133,291

356,873
6,987

153,288
81,339
40
4,655

604
11,264

2016
B
RMB’000
INNL BT

92,959
2,166

18,242

9,748
(7,414)

11,106
6,484

133,291

2015
e Sk K
RMB’000
AR¥ET o

Re-presented
25
143,844

515,850
4,389

763,792

1,222
7,164

12,504

2015

ZE A
RMB’000
ANR¥ET I
Re-presented

HH 251

97,412
2,163

15,008

7,090
3,739

11,877
6,555

143,844



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

31.

250

Employee benefit expense (Continued) 31. B LH M RUA (%)

Note: it -

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the state-sponsored AT A EH P E TRE TEN20% (%
retirement plan at a rate of 20% (2015: 20%) of the specified salaries of the —FAE 1 20%) R TE ST AT B R E B TR R 4
qualified employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible for the wH# o FERBUG A SRR E THEEE T -

pension liability to the retired employees.
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

hAREHAL

AEFEBE " F—ANFEL T —H
E+_A=t+—HIEELLA K
FHALWE -

2016 2015

—F AN e

Directors EH 4 4
Non-director individual JHEHE AL 1 1

The details of emoluments paid to the five highest
individuals who were Directors of the Company during
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 have been
included in Note 38. Details of emoluments paid to the
remaining non-director individual are as follows:

RN FEE F - NEL T T
FrHHA=t—HE4EEENRA
T AN R AR 2 S
w16 CAE M RE38FI R o« CATER T

i YNSRI
2016 2015
“ERoRE CEF I
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETIE  ARWTIC

Salaries and allowances B SOk 3,267 3,120
Discretionary bonuses 1% 88 4 - 2,808

Pension costs — defined BIRE A — e AR #
contribution plans - 14
3,267 5,942
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

(a) H#admribi At (4)
U 24 T T 91 AL 5

Number of individuals

AN
2016 2015
—E A ZE T
Emolument bands (in HKD) HEAER [ (HET)
HKD3,000,001 — HKD4,500,000 3,000,001 #7C — 4,500,000 #7C 1 -
HKD4,500,001 — HKD5,000,000 4,500,001 #5C — 5,000,000 ¥ T 1 -
HKD5,500,001 — HKD6,000,000 5,500,001 # G — 6,000,000 ¥ C = 1
HKD6,000,001 — HKD6,500,000 6,000,001 #JC — 6,500,000 ¥ T = 2
HKD6,500,001 — HKD7,000,000 6,500,001 #57C — 7,000,000 #57C 1 -
HKD7,000,001 — HKD7,500,000 7,000,001 #57C — 7,500,000 #5C = 1
HKD9,500,001 — HKD10,000,000 9,500,001 # ¢ — 10,000,000 it G 1 -
HKD10,500,001 — HKD11,000,000 10,500,001 # ¢ — 11,000,000 # JC 1
5 5
During the financial year ended December 31, b) "EE_-F—AHFET_H
2016, none of the directors of the Company and =+— H 1k i B B 4E B IR
the five highest paid individuals: TRAT AT A 2y W) 3 S gk L A4 R R
HALBETHZHIE :
(i) received any emolument from the Group as an (i)  UWHUAEATIEM 4 1E B In A A 4
inducement upon joining the Group; 2] I ) 2 Bl
(ii)  waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments. (i) FEEsk R B AT TR o
Senior management remuneration band () BB H NG RE 2
Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for BRERHEE " FE—NFE+_H
the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in Note e el & I 5= YA OF i 2 o Sy
38. The senior management’s remuneration for the year 38 HE_EFE—NE+ A
ended December 31, 2016 is within the following bands: =t+—HIHEESHEM AN H
R
Number of individuals
ANB
2016 2015
- S CE R
Emolument bands (in HKD) S B (HE o)
HKD3,000,001 — HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 # 6 — 3,500,000 ¥ T 1 -

HKD3,500,001 — HKD4,000,000
HKD4,500,001 — HKD5,000,000

3,500,001 #57C — 4,000,000 ¥ 7T -
4,500,001 #57C — 5,000,000 ¥ 7T =

2016 F iR



Current income tax — overseas
Deferred income tax (Note 23)

HHPEB — W5k

2016
RN
RMB’000
YN

115,312

PEIE TSR (M 7% 23) 31,854

147,166

2015
ZE—HA
RMB’000
AR¥ET o
Re-presented

HH 25

5,870
(126,988)

(121,118)

(a) Taxation has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b) The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:

(a)  WRBLHL BEACAE BEAl o I R BL AR
S R ) AR e P AE 7 S5 P
TEB R BATRLR o

(b)  ASHE R BRBL AT AR A BLIE > BLER
B 1 A 8 14 - 3 A
I 8 7 AR 1Y) B i 0 A 1) 22 A

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the respective
countries

Tax effects of:

— Income not subject to tax

— Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes

— Tax losses and temporary differences

for which no deferred income tax
asset was recognized

— Adjustments in respect of prior years

— Others

Tax charge

T
2016 2015
ZRANE CE R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET 6 AR¥F0
Re-presented
HHE
B B 15 8 BT s 18 (457,981) (1,467,259)
TEA B B R 0 A 4% 8
B R B I
(90,440) (184,831)
B TE S 2
— HEFHBRA (622) -
— AE B
10,641 683
— KEREEABEER
RS e 4 B I I o B
163,027 48,545
— DATTAE B 757 1,305
— HAh 63,803 13,180
BLIE % 147,166 (121,118)

The weighted average effective tax rate was -32% (2015: 8%)
for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Annual Report 2016

I TN A = F R
2P A 5 -32% (% — T
i1 8%) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

33. Dividends 33. HEfE IR
The directors do not propose dividend for the year (2015: AN ) E O E R EOR R 8 AR
Nil). (2015 : 4E&) -
34. Loss per share 34. TR iEE
(a) Basic (a) A
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the HARR I R R RIEARNFTEE
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the B REAL FISE > BR DAASAE BN B 88 1T
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue e B I RET- S B E B

during the year.

2016 2015
—F AN TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETIE ARWTIT

Re-presented

A2
Loss for the year attribute to owners  A4EARL F A & REAG K5 1R
of the company arising from: BB
— Continuing operations — R (605,367) (1,344,056)
— Discontinued operations — b (717,086) (179,147)
Weighted average number of IHET-25 % @ I E (T
ordinary shares (thousands) 2,860,410 2,599,744
Basic loss per share HEAE R
— Continuing operations — PR (0.21) (0.52)
— Discontinued operations — K (0.25) (0.07)
(0.46) (0.59)
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(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share
options outstanding which are potentially dilutive. A
calculation is performed to determine the number of
ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the weighted
average number of outstanding share options. The
number of ordinary shares calculated above for basic
earnings per share is increased by the number of
ordinary shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options at the date later of
beginning of the relevant period or the date of issue.

Loss attributable to owners of the

Company used to determine RCE-AIEEN
diluted earnings per share
— Continuing operations — R
— Discontinued operations — gk
Weighted average number of THEF- 35 % @ B H (T %)

ordinary shares (thousands)

Weighted average number of diluted 25155 45 % Hi B Uk 25 (0 76 R VB A
potential ordinary shares for diluted &3 & AT 485 (T %)

earnings per share (thousands)

Diluted loss per share i R 1 s 1R
— Continuing operations — HRses
— Discontinued operations — Bk
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FHVIA 1o 5 3 IEO A B A A Y AR 2 W)

(b) FifE

B AR R N A ) IR T A G R AE
T B A% o RO T
Y IR BT 5 o A R
ARAT o 2 B B e LA Y A TR
JE o A T SOHE o ARBERAT I
RE 19 Ton AR -5 BT WA S SR )
fE{E - 52 W] REC #2228 S (E (E (R
AN m B 9 -3 4F BE T AE) B A
8 P B o i DA _E AR Bl
a7 A FHA R BRE > 7 b
B B M IR T A ] 9 ] 30 400 T G
AT H WE 2 A F AT i
AT SR AT 19 3 2 A R -

2016 2015
ZEANE e S S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F7t AR¥T T
Re-presented

25
(605,367) (1,344,056)
(717,086) (179,147)
2,860,410 2,599,744
2,860,410 2,599,744
(0.21) (0.52)
(0.25) (0.07)
(0.46) (0.59)



Loss before income tax Bk BT A5 B AT 1R

Adjustments for: A

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries BB T ARG (fi27)
(Note 27)

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 7% ~ 31 k& M &Y

Interest expenses — net (Note 29) BRSO (Kt 29)

Provision for receivable TR RO R A

Impairment loss IERIERES

Share of profits from investments in EHBE A EBCE A%
associates

Share of losses from investments in EAABAERENBERMNHE
joint ventures

Gain arising from acquisition of an
associate

Share-based payment to employees Wil R ST 810 °F IR B IR LA

Exchange losses (Note 29) FE 5048 2% (K175 29)

Losses on derivative financial instruments 4= 4 il T 2185

Gains on write-off of payables (Note 27) &3MEHFIE (W3 27)

o i M i S A A i 2

Others HAth

Changes in working capital: BT
Trade and other receivable iR e B L At BB i K
Trade and other payable JREAST T JEL Ath B A 33K
Inventories Ny

Cash generated from operations B EAENELE

Cash flows from operating activities BEWRHEENRERR

Cash generated from continuing FRE s A B
operations

Interest paid BT FLE

Income tax paid EENRET

b ggE (M) AR B S

Cash (used in)/generated from
discontinued operations

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

R IRB) (BE A ), A vl B 4 9 A

Year ended December 31,

BE+_H=1+—HILEE

2016

&
RMB’000
LSS

(457,981)

(526,132)
363,860
362,603
252,756
234,667

(35,682)
3,382

(29,798)
27,990
23,858
19,595

(14,270)

(123,015)
65,516
(4,607)

162,742

162,742
(382,997)
(69,567)

(81,057)

(370,879)

2016 F iR

2015
—E AR

RMB’000
ARHETIT

Re-presented

HH 251

(1,467,259)

520,239
387,742

84,447
765,014

26,627

22,098
34,032

(29,387)

298,604
(161,413)
63

480,807

480,807
(337,903)
(9,055)

192,223

326,072



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

36. Commitments and contingencies 36. 7&uf FIE Lk A AE
(a) Commitments (a) 7&if
(i) Capital commitments for the purchase of (i) WHABE S TRAZHEZ
property, plant and equipment 2N L A )

As at December 31,

e
2016 2015
SEOAE SR LR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TE  ARWTIT

Authorized by the Board of #wHE S REL
Directors but not contracted for 131,563 598,993
Contracted but not provided for ELER A B R B - 31,377
131,563 630,370
(ii) Operating lease commitments (ii) REBWMERE
The Group has operating lease commitments AR R RS B WA E M
related to its non-cancellable operating leases for VA S A] B i 828 FH 4 &
offices. The future aggregate minimum lease oo KB ETE N AR K B
payments under these operating leases are as K EfT k&S AT
follows:
As at December 31,
BRT+-A=+—H
2016 2015
ZE—N —EF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥T L ANR¥ETIT
Less than 1 year D —4E 8,846 10,662
Within 1-2 years — ZE4E 4,235 7,680
Within 2-5 years N g 472 7,373
Over 5 years AHEDE - 52

13,553 25,767
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(b) Contingencies

On August 28, 2000, MIE entered into a PSC with
Sinopec for exploration and development of Luojiayi 64
block at Shengli oilfield in Shandong Province, which
was suspended since the end of 2004. In April 2005, MIE
requested an extension from Sinopec to restart the
project. On September 27, 2006, MIE received a letter
from Sinopec denying the request to restart the project
and seeking to terminate the PSC on the grounds that
the extension period of the trial-development phase
had expired and MIE had not met its investment
commitment under the PSC. The Company believes its
investment in the project at Shengli oilfield had met the
required commitment amount under the PSC. The PSC
with Sinopec has not been formally terminated and the
dispute has not entered any judicial proceedings. As
advised by the external legal counsel of the Company,
the probability of claim from Sinopec for unfulfilled
investment commitment, if any, in relation to the pilot-
development phase is remote as the statute of
limitations has run out

Apart from the above, the Group has contingent
liabilities in respect of claims or other legal procedures
arising in its ordinary course of business from time to
time. As at December 31, 2016, the directors of the
Company did not anticipate that any material liabilities
will arise from the contingent liabilities other than those
provided for in the financial statements

(b) A AR

A EBEFENA -+ /\H > MIE
SR AL ET SR M LA > DL
R T BRAEES 7 1L 3R s ik i) 2
FE64EM - ZHEHD B %
PU4EREPAYE - T T HAEN
A > MIE [ 7 {b B2 3R 4iE R BR DA
EFEBAMEIER o N FF
NESLAZ+LEH > MIEE#G A
b5 P L B B % T B BRI K
4> H oA b DA B B EE R B A =
HIFR . J i B2 MIE 3 R JB AT 2 5 4%
A TRIE TG REH > EoK
IR S Ay A TR o MIE 2 2% 1 T
FlHEIEE FHRECHA G E M
A TR 1 T R R 9 R R AR o B
A AL B EE & A A TR R R IE 20
1E > HR% o 0 o A AT fo] WA AR
¥ o ARIEAR ) BT A AN I A R
ko P Ak e BE R R B B
A 58 AR B AR R R I () 1Y AT R
PRI > MEIR B R AR SR RA RS

B B AG DLAN - ARG EAE F RS
IR T 3% A B AR A A i AR
JPARBR Y B0 B o R N
ToA=Z+F—H > ARAFREREEY
B % B B R R AL > AN AEAE
EROEEENNEViR i PN Y EE S
JH o

2016 F iR



The Group is controlled by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL"),
which owns 48.13% of the Company’s shares and is also the
ultimate parent company of the Group. FEEL is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate
benefit owners are Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei and
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”, Mr. Zhang's spouse).

(a)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial

(a)

7% 4£ [# 5% Far East Energy Limited ( LA
T féi#% [FEEL ) B3 - FEELBEA A
S E B 48.13% - 7 H A 58 [ ) B
HBEATF] o FEEL A —RKAE R HEM A
FREAAT » HERHEZ 5w 5k A %G
A~ YT e RO T bt R
[

AN UK S NI

Wi T B SR A 3t BT BB AL

statements, the following transactions were carried out

with related parties:

Transactions with PSC partners HEMDRERBENRS
Global Oil Corporation (“GOC") BRERA M
— Cash receipts from the PSCs — MR E o A AR IRk
received by the Group on SR R
GOC'’s behalf
— Advances to GOC — FTERER AR IE
— Repayment received from GOC — B BR R T 3K
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — MR A A AR IR R
on GOC's behalf AT AS A E
— Deposit paid on GOC's behalf — fRERBRA W AT 5B T
RS IR 78 42
PetroChina RPN
— Sales to PetroChina — Hrhoaih ey EE AR
— Expenditures for PSCs incurred — MR B A FEARER S
on PetroChina’s behalf BT SAS Y AR EE
Transactions with joint ventures HEBNENRS
SGE HE A H

— Shareholder’s loan to SGE

— fe T P IRIE H 9RO K

Annual Report 2016

LB 7 I S Z SR IR

2016 2015
ZFAE F L
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANR¥T T
Re-presented

25

54,161 82,498
(82,638) (45,869)
27,546 25,462
(21,087) (25,874)

- (18)
520,264 708,053
(181,908) (207,748)
(24,341) (186,111)



(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a)
statements, the following transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)

Transactions with controlling BRUAS 2 ) g 20 e 3 2 W) i it
shareholder of the Company’s JB R B AR 2 W) I 4% 5 I
ultimate holding company and/or a e e R A BRI A W, N L
company/person related to the 5 (*)

controlling shareholder of the
Company’s ultimate holding
company (¥)

— Purchases of spare parts — RIEH

— Purchase for oilfield services — SRS IR

— Sales of vehicles —

— Rental of vehicles and office premises — XHEMERNWHE
— Loan advanced during the year — AR K

— Loan repayment received during — AAFIEE K

the year
* All amounts disclosed above re-presented gross amount transacted *

between the Group’s subsidiaries, acting as operator for Daan, and
Moliging with Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company and its
subsidiaries, and Wide Reliance (Hong Kong) Limited which are
controlled by Mrs. Zhang.

W T BB SR A 3t BT BB AL
SLEHI TR ZE 7 SR R (A)

2016 2015
ZFAE F L
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T 7t ANR¥TF T
Re-presented

HH 25

- (81)
(70,015) (74,103)
- (494)
(946) (820)

- (1,080)

- 1,080

VI b e ga W) S8 A A LI T A8 (fF AR
LN AR ) BRI T2 W 52 5 i 4
W HMRERBEAMMEARAFALAETS
Al DABAR I (B ) A PR 7 2 3R R BT 4
il o

2016 F iR



(b) Year-end balances with related parties are summarized

as follows:

Included in ‘trade and other
receivables’:

Trade receivables from PSC partner

Other receivables from PSC partners

Shareholder loan receivable and
interest from joint venture

Other receivables from Palaeontol B.V

Shareholder loans granted to
Palaeontol B.V

Other receivables from companies
controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company

Included in ‘trade and other payables’:

Trade payables to companies
controlled by the controlling
shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company

Others

I % Bl Wik | 95 -

FEASCEE oy A RSB 5

S il B A 43 B T

WS AS 4 I B A EOR
3k SRS

HAth Uk Palaeontol B.V 3k JE

1%F Palaeontol B.V i 5 3

IR
IR

HAbREU 32 A R e B2 T
32 P B RAE Wil B 2 ) B KA

I JREASF B Ll AoF ik ] L4
JEAS 524 ) B A 42 B 2 i
e TR ] (9 2 ) 9 B ) IR

HoAth

Annual Report 2016

2016
e
RMB’000
INL ST

94,651
205,837

112,781

823,217

19,365
1,255,851
2016

e

RMB’000
AR Tt

7,054
5,550

12,604

(b) BB 225 AR BREARSE W T

2015
ZE—HA
RMB’000
AR¥ET o

Re-presented

HH 25

76,926
148,005

330,647

14,066

569,644

2015
TR
RMB’000
ARMT T
Re-presented

251

6,326

6,326



(b) Year-end balances with related parties are summarized

as follows: (Continued)

Other receivables from PSC partners represent
advances to GOC and PetroChina mainly from cash
receipts received by the Group on the behalf of GOC
and expenditures incurred from and for the respective
PSCs by the Group on the behalf of GOC and
PetroChina, respectively.

Trade payables to companies controlled by the
controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company represent payables for oilfield related
services from Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development
Company and its subsidiaries, Songyuan Guotai
Petroleum Technology Service Company and Jilin
Guotai Drilling Engineering Technology Service
Company.

At December 31, 2016, all (2015: all) cash call balances
are interest-free and unsecured, and the balances of
shareholders’ loans are unsecured, carrying nominal
interest rate of ranging from 4.9% to 11.9% per annum
(2015: 6.15%).

(b) BRI 22 5 A R R B AR A Y

(%)

[ HC At B W 2E i 23 RS TR & VR
FIE | TEAS S BRIR A 1 A0 A 4
W9 FRIH » E B AR A G H % IR ER
BRI B A 09 B CER B A I
WA R IE AR i 20 I T AR
R A AR Y

[ AT 52 A% ) i 6 422 s Oy 2 FB ML
FAEH 9 2 7] 00’ T A E )
AR B 22 i B A R m)
O R T 28 A TR R B A R
25 ) B AR B 2 8 PR TR S0 R
B AT B2 7] AT i FE AR Bl A 5 )
(RS

RoE—NEFH=F—H JF
H(ZFE A4 R) BL& M3
MK E HARSTAE > IrE
(ZF—HAE ) B G 5
EIME > A FREFIRHE 5 4.9%
F11.9% (ZF—T1.4 : 6.15%) °

2016 F iR



(c)

(d)

Loan to related parties

Loan to a joint venture:

At January 1,

Loans advanced during the year

Discounting impact of
shareholder’s loan

Loan repayments received

Interest charged

Disposals of subsidiaries

Exchange difference

At December 31,

Loan to an associate:
At recognition date,

— Addition

— Interest charged

— Interest receivable
— Exchange gain/(loss)

At December 31,

The shareholders loans to associate as at December 31,
2016 is unsecured, carries interest ranging from 4.9% to

11.9% per annum (2015: 6.15%).

Key management compensation:

Salaries

Bonuses

Value of share based payment—
employee services

Benefits in-kind

Bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period in which management

rendered the related services.

(c) TR B
2016
ZENE
RMB’000
NS ST
FHELERR
w—H—H 330,647
AN TEAT B 22,998
R AR B P R 5 2
(1,743)
ELfE R K _
FE A 15,897
g BTN (376,369)
e 58, 7= %A 8,570
w+—-H=+—H -
i N
Em%ﬁ%ﬂ%s 809,472
— B 3,857
— FEWRA 1,145
— JEISFE 2,807
—@ETm 5,936
w+—-A=+—H 823,217

AR

2015
ZE R
RMB’000
ABRHTT

Re-presented

EvEY]l
159,204

186,111
(30,901)
(16,940)
23,434

9,739

330,647

AFE—NETFH=Z+—H o &
LT S N R SO
s B PR R E 15 4.9%
£11.9% (—F— 4

6.15%) ©

(d) ERBEHABMEIURWT :

2016

TR N

RMB’000

ANBR¥ T

e 15,319

4 8,446
%%iﬁ@ﬁ—ﬁé%%%ﬁ

12,754

HoAth 7 F) 1,780

38,299

AR o

Annual Report 2016

2015
ZFE AR
RMB’000
NER¥T I

23,518
6,864

11,423
1,647

43,452

< A B 2 SR R RS 1%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R ML (AR)

38. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 38. # 3 i Fl] 25 f i 25 (& (A
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong w35 622 35 ) 58 383 1k I
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies Aal(EEFMNEER) M
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BN (5 622G 35) Bl & WP %)

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules)

(a) EFLHERATHEHNE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

BEF-AFETH=1t—HIk
ERE - B CE AT E A

The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive officer for the years ended December 31, 2016
is set out below:

SHEFNWT

Employer's
Share  Awarded contribution
Salariesand Discretionary  Housing options Shares  to pension Other
Fees allowances bonuses allowance  expenses  expenses scheme benefits Total
Ak
Name of Director ft:3 W HEREE  MEEE  RERE BRERD ZRRREDN  BRE ALEN it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARWFE  ARWFE  ARWFE  ARMFE  ARWFRE  ARRFR  ARRFX ARMFR AREFR
For the year ended REZZNE
December 31, 2016 TRt RLEE
Zhang Ruilin* R - 3,500 3,326 365 684 - PA] 456 8,354
Zhao Jiang Wei ftig} - 3,000 665 m 684 848 64 337 5,869
Mei Jianping T 266 - - - - - - 5 266
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 333 - - - - - - - 333
Guo Yanjun*** e v 266 - - - - - - - 266
Xie Na#*** e = = = - - - - - _
Tao Tak Yin ** R
Dexter - 1,083 2,608 - - - 6 - 3,697
Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood
Harper - 3,261 - - 81 - - - 4144
Tian Hongtao ik - 1,996 1,597 3 2128 6,281 48 30 12,1
865 12,846 8,196 667 4973 7129 " 823 35,640

2016 4E5R » MIEEFIERAR AT 263



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R M EE (4])

38. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 38. # /i fll 25 fu b 25 (H HFH(A
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong w35 622 75) 58 383 ik I
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies 2 w) (¥ 8% % P 22 & ORL) A
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of HlY (55 622G &= ) B ERI PR ER)
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK (%)

Listing Rules) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFREREAITEHS (H)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief HIF—EF—HE+_H=1+—HIE
executive officer for the years ended December 31, 2015 FE S BEFRNEFERATE RN
is set out below: SHIIUE
Employer's Stock
Share  Awarded contribution appreciation
Salariesand Discretionary ~ Housing options shares to pension Other rights
Fees allowances bonuses allowance  expenses  expenses scheme benefits granted Total
il
Name of Director ELiZs We  Eemmw  BEEE  REEN  BRELRA ZEROER  BEER EREA RENER 4t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEWFE  ARETE  AREFT  AR®Tx  AE®Fx  ARETr  ARETr  ARETR  ARTFR  AR%TR
For the year ended REZZ-1f
December 31, 2015 +ZH=+—H
L4
Zhang Ruilin* RHR - 3,500 3120 365 507 - 2 - 306 7821
Zhao Jiang Wei FhIE ] - 3,000 624 268 507 1,148 61 - 302 5980
Mei Jianping figT 20 - - - - - - 9% - 348
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard
Miller 312 - - - - - - 98 - 40
Sing Wang**## Fhreer - _ - - - - - - - -
Hung Leung**** ‘;\,}ﬁ-;**** - - - - - - - - - -
Cai Rucheng*##* T e 216 - - - - - - - - 216
Guo Yanjun*** BT v 3 - - - - - - - - 3
Yie Na##* Higee - - - - - - - - - -
Tao Tak Yin** Rl
Dexter - 2,496 - - - 2,397 14 43 - 5,650
Andrew Sherwood Harper Andrew Sherwood
Harper - 3,045 - - 576 - - - - 3,621
Tian Hongtao iipioe - 1812 - 28 561 2,397 47 - 29 4,934
811 13913 3,744 661 2,151 5,942 145 939 707 29,013

*%

* KK X

264

Mr. Zhang Ruilin is also the chief executive officer
Resigned with effect from May 31, 2016
Appointed with effect from November 13, 2015

Resigned with effect from November 13, 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B Ot B R M EE (|

38. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhang Ruilin, during
the year ended December 31, 2016 by a defined benefit
pension plan operated by the group in respect of
Mr.Zhang Ruilin’s services as a director of the company
and its subsidiaries is RMB23,410 (2015: RMB22,890).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
during the year ended December 31, 2016 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Zhao Jiangwei’s services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB63,898 (2015:
RMB61,024).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Dexter Tao, during
the year ended December 31, 2016 by a defined benefit
pension plan operated by the group in respect of Mr.
Dexter Tao’s services as a director of the company and
its subsidiaries is RMB6,429 (2015: RMB14,490).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Tian Hongtao,
during the year ended December 31, 2016 by a defined
benefit pension plan operated by the group in respect
of Mr. Tian Hongtao’s services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is RMB48,468 (2015:
RMB46,534).

=0 g
il
PoEE
=t
N Fwa

i

(b) AR IR A

B2 _E—-ARFE+A=1+—HI1
AERE > AR FE YR E R AR
PREHE AR A B e E A B AR
F) R H N o R A RS T )
X AT R R AR AR A N R 23,410
(= F—HAE: AR 22,890

Jo) °

BEF—-ANFE+H=Z+—HIE
FERE > pR A4S AR [ O R E Ui AR AR
PREFE| S VLB ST A A E B AR
F) S 8 w9 R AR ES T )
X AT R R AR AR A A N R 63,898
(=& —HAFE: AR ¥61,024

Jo) o

BELZ—ANETA=ZT—HI
AERE > PR AS AR [V LY B E I AR
PR 1) P 8 B SR A E B AR A
A S T ) AR RS I 1)
AR R AE R B R 6,429 0T
(ZF—Hh4E: AR%14,4907T) -

BE_F—-ANF+HA=+—HIE
AERE > AN AR S YRR IR AR
PREHE ) RS A E A AR
A R H N o R A RS T 1)
X AT R R AR AR I 2 N R 48,468
JL( =& — H A NR%46,534

Jo) o
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AR 2 ] B B 5 IR Dl

As at December 31,

Statement of financial position of the Company

w+_-A=+—H
2016 2015
ZE A —E—HAF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR¥F ANREETT
Assets H
Non-current assets I B )
Property, plant and equipment B - TR M skt 1,209 1,567
Interests in subsidiaries TR A 3,846,254 4,109,400
Loans to subsidiaries T A AR 758,732 1,862,992
Available-for-sale financial assets A it 4l & 7 21,084 4,618
4,627,279 5978577
Current assets WEE
Amounts due from associate =N E 174,903 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U /3 F RIH - 170,048
Prepayments, deposits and AT 3R~ AR e 4 M
other receivables  HAREIGK 778,444 69,541
Restricted cash 2 B il Bl 4 - 259,744
Cash and cash equivalents W& KBl mY 724,919 132,213
1,678,266 631,546
Total assets B R 6,305,545 6,610,123
Equity RE5
Equity attributable to owners BB ARA VA H
of the Company I HE £
Share capital A 1,068,796 1,068,796
Other reserves oAt a 1,428,398 1,352,461
Retained earnings e (1,091,227) (409,230)
Total equity WE 35 48 %0 1,405,967 2,012,027
Liabilities i
Non-current liabilities Ik B £ 05
Borrowings K 4,586,555 4,424,247
Provisions, accruals and other MEAR ~ FEERE L HAD
liabilities 515 45,053 32,891
4,631,608 4,457,138
Current liabilities it B £ 8
Provisions, accruals and other M - TR R HoAh
liabilities ﬁfﬁ 193,253 140,958
Current income tax liabilities TS B A E 54,141 -
Derivative financial instruments fiitE 4w T H 20,576 -
267,970 140,958
Total liabilities A 4,899,578 4,598,096
Total equity and liabilities HE 7 J B AR AR 6,305,545 6,610,123

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2017 and

was signed on its behalf.

Zhang Ruilin
B
Director

#wH

Annual Report 2016
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Tian Hongtao
3t
Director

#wH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B Ot R R MIaE (AR

39. Statement of financial position and reserve 39. g&ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂ%&%fﬁ%

movement of the Company (Continued) i (%)
Statement of financial position of the Company AN w BRI E (4])
(Continued)
(a):  Other reserve movement of the Company (@) © AN ) 1 HoAt £t A 53 B
Repurchased Available-
shares held Currency Share based for-sale
by trust Capital translation payment financial
(Note 22(a)) reserve reserve reserves assets Total
R
[0 B ¢ A3y Hhikg Ty S £ o
(M7t 22(a)) BAE oSkt it SRR Hgt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARWTET ARWTE AR¥WTET AR¥TT AR¥TT

At January 1, 2015 W —HE—H—H (59,824) 1,366,956 (193,138) 99,042 (95) 1,212,941
Currency translation ST AR

differences - - 131,736 - - 131,736
Employees stock option 1 B WA

scheme
— value of employee services — i B IRISE(H - - - 20,119 - 20,119
Reclassification of ATk

accumulated change in S R

value of available-for-sale
financial assets upon

disposals - - - - (842) (842)
Revaluation of available- ] R 4
for-sale financial assets HHHE - - - - (430) (430)
Shares purchased under T3 B R - -
Share Award Scheme it s B A7 (11,063) - - - - (11,063)
At December 31, 2015 /I S R 3
+=-A=+—H (70,887) 1,366,956 (61,402) 119,161 (1,367) 1,352,461

2016 F 3R » MIBEREERBR A A 267



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

39. Statement of financial position and reserve
movement of the Company (Continued)

39, /s 1O B R 4 e 2

A2y w1 A B IR DL (4

Statement of financial position of the Company

268

(Continued)
(a) Other reserve movement of the Company (Continued) (a) AN E) R H A (A e Bl (4
Repurchased Available-
shares held Currency  Share based for-sale
by trust Capital translation payment financial
(Note 22(a)) reserve reserve reserves assets Total
fR¥ERH
T 5 L JBed A T i
(Bt 22(a)) BARE PiA i b Hst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 AR T8 AR T8 AR T8 AR T8 AR F 50
As at January 1, 2016 R-B—A%—H—H (70,887) 1,366,956 (61,402) 119,161 (1,367) 1,352,461
Currency translation ST E B
differences - - 109,397 - - 109,397
Available-for-sale WL A
financial assets - - - - 1,657 1,657
Employees stock option 1 5 0 B HE S )
scheme
— value of employee — {§ B MREEE
services - - - 27,990 - 27,990
— shares to settle SARs — BRI (i
under the Plan FHEI T - - - 599 - 599
— shares transferred to the ~ — EFRS AR SE AL 7
Awarded Shares W T
Grantees 6,707 - - (6,707) - -
Shares purchased under i £y 5 et
Share Award Scheme i B R A7 (63,706) - - - - (63,706)
At December 31, 2016 R4
+ZA=Z+—H (127,886) 1,366,956 47,995 141,043 290 1,428,398
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As a result of the impact of the matters as disclosed in Note
2.1.1, prior year financial statements had to be re-presented.
The following tables show the adjustments recognised for
each individual line item. Line items that were not affected
by the change have not been included. As a result, the sub-
totals and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided. The impact on the current period is not
disclosed.

(a) consolidated statement of financial position

Assets B

Non-current assets KRB & E
Property, plant and equipment AREE - TR
Intangible assets Wy gE

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

FRFR - PR e KA
e N

Current assets WEEE

Inventories fitt

Prepayments, deposits and other AT GRS R H A
receivables Tk

Trade receivables TR K

Cash and cash equivalents BERAEEEY

Assets of disposal group classified FRA TR R B A
as held for sale i

Total assets BEME

W21 TR B HN 2 DI
EIBmMETIETERES - FPliEE
FIR TEAHBHMER WAL AR
TARZHEBRHERE o KL kR
B /INFE DL B B EOR B8 B T 3 R B B
T EHE AR o TH R 5 S A 0 R
KT HE -

(a) & OFBABHIR LR

As at December 31, 2015
ANE—HET A=A

As previously  Re-presentation

reported adjustments Re-presented
[IEGER] EeyiEcE By
Note 2.1.1(b)
WH3E2.1.1(b)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NS ARHTT NERHT 7

5,214,718 418,858 5,633,576
356,810 3,785 359,595
496,214 1,664 497,878

6,632,131 424,307 7,056,438

44,308 9,048 53,356
221,184 2,535 223,719
82,595 8,361 90,956
199,166 3,801 202,967

1,009,922 23,745 1,033,667
448,052 (448,052) -

1,457,974 (424,307) 1,033,667

8,090,105 - 8,090,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

40. Re-presentation of comparative figures 40. LB FRIER 25 (5)
(Continued)
(a) consolidated statement of financial position (a) HPFBABSR DR ()
(Continued)

As at December 31, 2015
RoZE—HFEFZHA=1+—H

As previously  Re-presentation

reported adjustments Re-presented
e HEH 2T HHET
Note 2.1.1(b)
B3t 2.1.1(b)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG S T ARBT G INEL S
Liabilities =17
Non-current liabilities FRB AR
Deferred income tax liabilities AL ER B M 120,130 17,752 137,882
Trade and notes payable JREAF R 2 T A+ ZE 4 36,589 740 37,329
Provisions, accruals and el TR K
other liabilities HAb s fE 82,340 5,557 87,897
4,663,306 24,049 4,687,355
Current liabilities W afE
Trade and notes payable OB £ B S B B AoF 08 354,151 18,464 372,615
Provisions, accruals and other WS~ AR JOH A
liabilities A 281,933 2,922 284,855
1,170,368 21,386 1,191,754
Liabilities of disposal group classified #4541
as held for sale ig=L 45,435 (45,435) -
1,215,803 (24,049) 1,191,754
Total liabilities AfRAH 5,879,109 - 5,879,109
Total equity and liabilities HaRkaEaR 8,090,105 - 8,090,105
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(b) consolidated statement of comprehensive (b)
income

o O & 1 Wi i

For the year ended December 31, 2015
BEZ-HAE+ A=+ HIL4EE

As previously

presented Re-presentation adjustments Re-presented
R 251 OB 2 5 FHET
Note 2.1.1(a) Note 2.1.1(b)
f3E2.1.1(a) K5t 2.1.1(b)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
INGL SO NG AR¥T T NG
Continuing operations  #HEHKE
Revenue W2 1,032,734 (310,549) - 722,185
Depreciation, depletion  #7# ~ JrFE )
and amortization b ] (596,893) 130,325 (53,671) (520,239)
Taxes other than income  #iJ8
taxes (BT 3 BLER M) (153,971) 130,640 - (23,331)
Employee benefit B T3 A
expense (174,405) 30,561 - (143,844)
Purchases, services and 1% ~ IR% &
other direct costs o B 4% A (169,675) 48,709 - (120,966)
Distribution expense S (89,435) 68,919 - (20,516)
General and I
administrative
expense (115,469) 16,238 - (99,231)
Impairment charges R EER (724,032) 233,888 (274,870) (765,014)
Other losses, net HAthg %k FE (378,669) 2,226 328,541 (47,902)
Finance income B IA 20,496 (886) . 19,610
Finance costs 5 2 (328,575) (112,809) - (441,384)
Loss before income tax B it 5 8L i 5 48 (1,704,521) 237,262 - (1,467,259)
Income tax credit/ BB,
(expense) (&) 179,233 (58,115) - 121,118
Loss for the year ARG R (1,525,288) 179,147 - (1,346,141)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
SO BRI (E

40. Re-presentation of comparative figures 40. LB FRIER 25 (5)
(Continued)
(b) consolidated statement of comprehensive (b) B a R ()

income (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2015
WE_Z—AET A=+ —HIMEE
As previously
presented Re-presentation adjustments Re-presented
R 251 EHR I BRI
Note 2.1.1(a) Note 2.1.1(b)
Wik2.1.1(a)  KFEE2.1.1(b)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ANR¥T T NGNS ST PN S ST ANR¥T 7T

Discontinued operations % I %%

Loss for the period AL LR
from discontinued IRt i
operations - (179,147) - (179,147)
Basic (loss)/earnings RAER (BR),/
per share Wt
— Continuing operations — FFAEALE (0.59) 0.07 - (0.52)
— Discontinued — KR
operations - (0.07) - (0.07)
(0.59) - - (0.59)
Diluted (loss)/earnings  FiBE 1 (IEiE)
per share W
— Continuing operations — FFEA8E (0.59) 0.07 - (0.52)
— Discontinued — BIREEE
operations - (0.07) - (0.07)
(0.59) - - (0.59)
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